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December 20, 2002
Members of the Board of Supervisors and Citizens of Contra Costa County:

The Comprehensive Annua Financial Report (CAFR) of the County of Contra Costa for the fiscal year of 2001-
2002 is presented in compliance with Section 25253 of the Government Code of the State of California. The
Office of the County Auditor-Controller, which is responsible for both the accuracy of the presented data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, prepared this report. We believe the data,
as presented, are accurate in all material aspects and presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the
financia postion and changes in financia position of the County as measured by the financia activity of its
various funds and component units and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum
understanding of the County's financia affairs have been included.

This year our CAFR will be significantly different and improved from those issued in prior years. Thisis the
result of a mgjor new reporting standard, Governmenta Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Satements — and Management’ s Discussion and Analysis —for Sate and Local Governments. In
addition to the fund financial statements and statistical section that we have presented in the past, we will now
present more information to better enable readers to determine the cost of County services and how effectively it
has used itsresources. Thisincludesthe following:

» Management’'s Discusson and Anadyss (MD&A) is a forma narrative by the County’s
management to provide an overview and analysis of the County’s financid activity for the
year and any known facts that may significantly affect future activity. Some of the
information that was previoudy presented in this Introductory Section is now in the
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis.

» Government-wide Financial Statements provide abroad overview of the County’s financesin
amanner similar to a private-sector business. The new statement of net assets presents all of
the assets, including capital and infrastructure assets, net of dl liabilities including long-term
debt. In addition to general revenues (i.e. taxes and investment earnings), the new statement
of activities presents the program revenues and expenses associated with the various
functions of County government, its business-type activities and its component units.



* Required Supplementary Information (other than MD&A) consists of the General Fund's
budgetary comparisons.

The CAFR represents the culmination of al budgeting and accounting activities engaged in by management
during the year, covering all of itsfinancial transactions. The CAFR is organized into three sections:

» The Introductory Section isintended to familiarize the reader with the organizationa structure
of the County, the nature and scope of the services it provides, and the specifics of its legd
operating environment.

* The Financial Section includes the independent auditor’s report on the basic financia
statements, MD&A, audited basic financid statements, note disclosures and supporting
statements and schedules necessary to provide readers with a comprehensive understanding
of the County’ sfinancia activities of the past fiscal yesr.

» The Statistical Section contains comprehensive statistical data for the County relating to its
physical, economic, socid and palitical characterigtics.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The County reporting entity includes all the financia balances and activities of the primary government as well as
all of its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the primary government is
financidly accountable or other organizations for which the nature and significance of the relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion would make the enclosed financia statements mideading or
incomplete. For further information on these component units see Note 1.A in the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements section of this report.

The reporting entity excludes certain separate legal entities which may have“ Contra Costa’ in their title, or which
are required to keep their funds in the County Treasury or receive their tax apportionment from the County.
Examples are school didtricts, the community college district, cities, city redevelopment agencies, the Bay Area
Rapid Trangt Didtrict, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission, and a variety of special purpose districts for
cemeteries, mosquito abatement, recreation and parks, etc. These entities are autonomous organizations that
handle their own fiscal affairs and for which the Board of Supervisors has no oversight responshility.
Accordingly, they are not included in the accompanying basic financia statements, except for their assets,
principally cash and investments, which are held by the County Treasurer.

Contra Costa County was incorporated in 1850 as one of the origina 27 counties of the State. It is one of nine
counties in the San Francisco-Oakland Bay Area. The County covers about 733 square miles; the western and
northern shordlines are highly industriaized, while the interior sections are suburban/residential, commercia and
light industrial .

The County has a general law form of government. A five member Board of Supervisors, each elected to four
year terms, serves as the legidative body. A County Adminigtrative Officer is appointed by the Board and runs
the day-to-day business.



The County provides the full-range of services contemplated by statute. These services include public protection,
highways and dreets, sanitation, headth and socid services, planning and zoning and general administrative
Services.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONSAND OUTLOOK

Long-term population and job growth projections remain podtive. As of January 1, 2002, the County's
population was estimated at 981,555, an increase of 23.1 percent since 1990. A study prepared by the
Association of Bay Area Governments projects a 36.0 percent increase in popul ation between 2000 and 2040.

The County's October 2002 jobless rate increased from 3.6 percent to 5.1 percent since October 2001. Consi stent
with higtorical performance, it was significantly below the State-wide average of 6.2 percent. The County's
economy is very diverse; mgjor industries include petroleum refining, steel manufacturing, chemicas, eectronic
equipment, paper products, services and food processing. The County consistently ranks as a leading county in
both per capita and household income.

Additional information on the County’s economic conditions and outlook is presented in the MD&A and in the
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

MAJOR INITIATIVESAND SERVICE EFFORTSAND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The County continued to explore and initiate ways to improve its operations to provide the most efficient and
effective level of service to the public. The following highlights some of the County’s major
accomplishments, initiatives and service-level efforts for fiscal year 2001-2002:

* The County has been successful in maintaining favorable bond ratings, which continue to produce
significant taxpayer savings through lower borrowing costs. Debt issuances during the period
included:

0 The County sold $70 million in Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notesin September 2001.
o Private placement leases were refunded with upfront debt-service savings of $280,000.

0 The County of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority issued $12,650,000 in lease revenue
bondsin June 2002.

 The County continued its efforts to conserve energy and successfully completed ten energy
conservation projects in nine buildings and the Main Detention Facility, which included replacing 15-
30 year-old heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) systems and upgrading digital control
systems. The completion of these projects will result in estimated cost savings in excess of $200,000
per year. The funding for these projects came from low-interest loans from the California Energy
Commission.



The County also continued to explore new ways to save energy and, consistent with the County’s
sustainable building policy, developed the solar 309 KVP Photovoltaic System projects. The $2
million project was financed 50 percent by receiving $1 million in grant funding from P G & E to
install photovoltaic roof panels at 50 Douglas Drive and the Main Detention Facility. Thisisthe first
installation of photovoltaic panels by the County and is estimated to annually reduce energy costs by
approximately $80,000.

This year the County redesigned its Recommended Budget format to link departmental budgets with
actual performance. The new Recommended Budget format includes performance measures and
workload and outcome indicators. This change increases departmental accountability and assists the
Board of Supervisorsin making sound policy and budgetary decisions.

Because of the County’s continued efforts to assess program costs with actual performance and
benefits, the County secured a three-year grant for performance software for the “ Spirit of Caring”
initiative (Mental Health Services). This software is expected to generate data about costs, services,
and performance outcomes that will lay the foundation for a cost/benefit analysis of prevention/early
intervention efforts (Contra Costa Futures Initiative).

The Community Services Department was recognized as a “Program of Achievement” by the
National Head Start Association, which affirms that a program has successfully performed at a very
high level of quality over a sustained period of time. This recognition was given to Community
Services as the first such award in the history of California and as the second such award in the West
Coast Region IX.

The County continued to focus on public outreach and information. The County’s Government
Access Channel, CCTV, received nine awards for excellence in cable programming, including two
national Telly awards and seven Western Access Video Excellence (WAVE) awards.

Library service throughout the County continued to be enhanced. In 2001-2002, the Board of
Supervisors provided $1.3 million from the County’s General Fund to the Library. This funding
assisted in enabling the following:

o Creating a strong partnership with cities by requiring cities to match the County’s
contribution in order to receive County funds.

o Providing fair and equitable library service throughout the County, including the County
funding the contribution match for unincorporated aress.

0 Asaresult of the County’s efforts and commitment to enhancing library services, the number
of library hours per week increased by 22 percent over the prior year and the libraries were
accessible for additional evening hours.

o0 For the first time, library circulation reached the 4 million mark; library circulation was not
this high even when libraries were open 60 hours a week.



0 The County Library received a $2 million donation from Mirant California, LLC which will
provide $400,000 annually over the span of five years. In accepting these funds, the Board of
Supervisors requested the East Region Library Board to develop a service plan utilizing these
funds. The East Region Library Board recommended, and the County’ s Board of Supervisors
approved, using these funds to increase library services in East County by purchasing
additional books and implementing after-school library programs.

* The County continued to improve assistance to low-income parents by acquiring a new Head Start
Center in Antioch. This newly acquired campus will allow the County to expand services provided
by Head Start. The Head Start Program is critical in the County’ s efforts to assist low-income parents
in becoming successful participants in the work force and/or move from welfare to work.

*  The County continued its commitment to provide excellent health care in aquality environment:

0 The Pittsburg Health Center was relocated from a very antiquated building to a newly
renovated Los Medanos Community Clinic in February 2002.

0 Construction of aMartinez Ambulatory Care building at the hospital campus in Martinez.

* Anexcellent quality of health care continued to be provided and expanded. The Contra Costa Health
Plan’s Advice Nurse Program became the first public entity to receive accreditation from the
Utilization Review Accreditation Commission. The program was expanded to provide services under
contract to eight other counties and now covers 245,000 citizens.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

County management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the
assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and that accounting data are compiled to alow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generaly accepted in the United
States of America. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

Budgetary Controals

The objective of the County’s budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with lega provisions embodied in the
annua budget approved by the Board of Supervisors. Budgetary control is maintained at the object level for al
annually budgeted funds, however, the lega leve of control is a the department level. Using the County's
automated accounting system, the Auditor-Controller redtricts each department’s expenditures to the amounts
appropriated by the Board of Supervisors for the year. Increases in budget appropriations must be approved by
the Board of Supervisors as a transfer from the Reserve for Contingencies, as a transfer from another
appropriation, or as an appropriation of new or unanticipated revenue. No department is permitted to spend more
than its available appropriations. Any appropriations remaining in the departments at the end of the fiscal year
automaticaly lapse and are transferred to fund balance. The year-end fund balance, dong with projected



revenues, becomes available for appropriation the following year. An encumbrance accounting systemis used to
facilitate effective budgetary control. An encumbrance reserves a portion of an appropriation at the time a
commitment is made to acquire goods or services. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund
balances at June 30, 2002, and are re-appropriated as part of the following year's budget.

Additional information on budget policy and control is presented in the Note to Required Supplementary
Information on page 80.

General Governmental Functions

The financia activities of the genera governmental functions are reported in the Genera, Specia Revenue, Debt
Service, Capital Projects and Permanent Funds. Included in these Funds are the specia districts governed by the
Board of Supervisors and the County’s blended component units except for the Housing Authority, which is
included in enterprise operations.

Enter prise Operations

The County’s business-type activities are reported in the Enterprise Funds. These include the County Hospital,
Health Maintenance Organization, Airport, Housing Authority, Sheriff Law Enforcement Training Center and the
Major Risk Medical Insurance Enterprise Funds.

Cash Management

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in accordance with Caifornia Government Code Section
53600 (et seg.) which dlows investment maximums of 40.0 percent in bankers acceptances, 30.0 percent in
negotiable certificates of deposit, and up to 30.0 percent in commercia paper. Thereisno limit on investmentsin
collateralized certificates of deposit and U.S. Government issues. The County Treasurer continuesto have amore
restrictive investment policy than required by law. The Treasurer’ sinvestment policy was approved by the Board
of Supervisors. In accordance with Government Code Sections 27130-27137, an investment oversight committee
has reviewed the quarterly investment reports prepared by the Treasurer. The average yield on investments for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, was 3.27 percent.

Debt Administration

The County finances its cash requirements prior to collection of taxes by short-term borrowing. The 2001-2002
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes of $70,000,000 received ratings of MIG 1 from Moody's Investors Service
and SP-1+ from Standard and Poor's Corporation. These are the highest ratings for this type of borrowing. For
long term obligations Standard and Poor's Corporation has given the County an Issuer Credit Rating of AA.

The County has capital |ease obligations under |ease/purchase agreements for various County buildings and other
property. Past agreements have been made principaly with the Contra Costa County Public Facilities
Corporation, a non-profit public benefit corporation which assists the County in financing public buildings and
facilities. Beginningin fiscal year 1997-1998, most new agreements have been and will be made with the County
of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority, a joint powers authority consisting of the County and the
Redevelopment Agency.

\Y



Risk M anagement

The County is sdf-insured for workers compensation, general and automobile liability, medical malpractice,
dental, management long-term disability and unemployment insurance. The County maintains excess insurance
policies with private insurers to cover additional losses.

The County's Risk Management office administers claims for the various programs, provides loss prevention
services and minimizes risks through various risk control strategies.

For specific information on coverage see Note 18 in the Notesto the Basic Financia Statements.
Pension Trust Fund Operations

The County participates in and contributes to a cost-sharing, multi-employer defined benefit pension plan that is
governed by the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 and which is administered by the Contra Costa
County Employees Retirement Association (the Association). Financid activities of the plan are reported in the
County’s Pension Trust Fund and a Comprehensive Annua Financial Report is available from the Association.
Additional information about the plan is aso presented in Note 15 in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
inthisreport. The Association’s address can be found in Note 1.A.

OTHER INFORMATION
Independent Audit

For over 60 years the policy of the County has been to require an annual audit of the financial statements of the
County by independent certified public accountants. The Board of Supervisors selected the firm of Macias, Gini
& Company LLPto perform the fiscal year 2001-2002 audit.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financia Reporting to Contra Costa County for its fisca year 2000-2001
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This was the twentieth consecutive fiscal year the County has received
this award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the County must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report whose contents conform to program standards. Such a report
must satisfy both accounting principles generaly accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid only for a period of one year. We believe our current report continues to
conform to Certificate of Achievement requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

Vi



Web Site

The County maintains an Internet web site with an increasing amount of information useful to its citizens at
http://www.co.contra-costa.caus. Thisdocument is also available there.
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Macias, Gini & Company w.

Certified Public Accountants and
Management Consultants

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Contra Costa
Martinez, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
County of Contra Costa, California (County), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Contra Costa County Housing Authority
(Authority), a blended component unit of the County, which represents 10.8 percent of the assets and 16.3 percent of
the revenues of business-type activities and represents 0.8 percent of the assets and 2.2 percent of the revenues of the
aggregate remaining fund information. Also, we did not audit the financial statements of the Contra Costa Children
and Families Commission (Commission), a discretely presented component unit of the County, which represents
100.0 percent of the discretely presented component unit opinion unit. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for the Authority and Commission, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the County as of June 30, 2002, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

As discussed in Note 1.B to the basic financial statements, the County adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments; GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements —
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; GASB Statement No.
38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures; and GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement
of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements, effective July 1, 2001.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2002, on
our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering
the results of our audit.



The management’s discussion and analysis and general fund budgetary comparison schedule, as listed in the table of
contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical
sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Certified Public Accountants

M \owtas, PSR nguﬁg LL?

Walnut Creek, California
December 20, 2002
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June 30, 2002

MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

This section of the County of Contra Costa's (County) Comprehensive Annual Financia Report presents a
discussion and anaysis of the financid activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additiona information that we
have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2001-2002 by $895,371,000 (net
assets). Of this amount, $148,090,000 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the County’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors, $270,857,000 is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net assets) and
$476,424,000 isinvested in capital assets, net of related debt.

* TheCounty’ stotal net assetsincreased by $48,623,000 during the fiscal year.

* As June 30, 2002, the County’s governmenta funds reported ending fund balances of $468,266,000.
Approximately 79.2 percent of thistotal amount, $370,868,000, is unreserved fund balance.

e Asof June 30, 2002, unreserved fund balance for the Genera Fund was $115,658,000 or 12.5 percent of total
General Fund expenditures of $925,684,000.

* TheCounty’ stotal debt decreased by $9,570,000 or 1.3 percent during fiscal year 2001-2002.
*  Thedownturn in the equity markets has resulted in reduced state revenues and losses in the investments of the
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA).
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financia statements.
The County’s basic financid statements are comprised of three parts (1) Government-wide financia
statements, (2) Fund financia statements, and (3) Notes to the basic financia statements. This report aso
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financia statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s
finances, in amanner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County’ s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County isimproving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changesin net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fisca periods, such as revenues pertaining to
uncollected taxes and expenses pertaining to earned but unused vacation and sick leave.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principaly
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover al or a dsgnificant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public protection, health and
sanitation, public assistance, education, public ways and facilities and recreation and culture. The business-type
activities of the County include the County Hospital, Health Maintenance Organization, Airport, Housing
Authority, Sheriff Law Enforcement Training Center and Magjor Risk Medical Insurance.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financiad statements report groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities and objectives. The County, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmenta activitiesin
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financiad statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of resources that are available
for spending as well as on balances of resources that are available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in eval uating a government’ s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmenta funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financia statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with smilar information presented for
governmental activitiesin the government-wide statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-
term impact of the County’s near-term financing decisons. Both the governmenta fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund baances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmenta activities.

The County maintains 26 individual governmental funds (e.g. General, specia revenue, debt service, capita
projects and permanent) for reporting purposes. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund
bal ance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changesin fund balances for
the Generd Fund, which is considered to be amagjor fund. Data from the other governmenta funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements and schedules elsewherein this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule has
been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
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Proprietary funds used by the County are of two different types. enterprise funds and internal service funds.
Proprietary fund financia statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financia
statements, only in more detail.

» Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as businesstype activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of
its County Hospital, Hedth Maintenance Organization, Airport, Housing Authority, Sheriff Law
Enforcement Training Center and Mg or Risk Medica Insurance.

* Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the County’s various functions. The County uses interna service funds to account for its administrative
costs and payment of claims for its various insurance programs to protect County assets and employees.
They have been dlocated between the governmental functions and business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Individua fund data for the internal service fundsis provided in
the form of combining statements elsewherein this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of entitieslegally separate from the County
and individuas, which are not part of the reporting entity. The Contra Costa County Employees Retirement
Association pension plan, the County’s investment trust fund, private-purpose trust fund and agency funds are
reported under fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary fundsis much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notesto the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additiona information that is essentia to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financia statements.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financia statements and accompanying hotes, this report presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the County’ s General Fund budget and actua comparisons and progressin
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to employees.

Combining Statements and Schedules

The combining statements and schedules referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and
internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information (other than
MD&A).

Component Units

The blended component units, as described in Note 1.A in the notes to the basic financid statements are included
in al three parts of the County’s basic financial statements. The County and its blended component units
condtitute the primary government. In addition to the blended component units, the government-wide financial
statements and the notes to the basic financial statements also include the discretely presented component unit
described in Note 1.A in the notesto the basic financial statements.

5
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This is the firs year the County has reported its financia activities and balances in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Satements — and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. The County has not restated prior
year information for the purpose of providing the comparative data for the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) because some of that information was not readily available. However, in future years, prior
year information will be available and a comparative analysis of government-wide datawill be presented.

COUNTY'SNET ASSETS
June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Govanmeta Business Type
Adtivities Adtivities Totd
AsHs
Current and other assets $ 1049662 125,333 1,175,045
Capitd assts 633,982 191,534 825,516
Totd AsHts 1,683,644 316,917 2,000,561
Liabilities
Current and other lighilities 183,899 82,365 266,264
Long-termliabilities 671,106 167,820 838,926
Totd Ligbilities 855,005 250,185 1,105,190
Net Assets
Invested in capitd assets, net of rdated debt 437,866 38,558 476,424
Redricted 259481 11,376 270,857
Unrestricted 131,292 16,798 148,090
Tota Net Assts § 828,639 66,732 895,371

Analyssof Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
County’s assets exceeded liabilities by $895,371,000 at June 30, 2002.

The largest portion of the County’s net assets, $476,424,000, or 53.2 percent, reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liahilities.
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An additional portion of the County’s net assets, $270,857,000, or 30.3 percent, represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The mgjor restriction on net assets, $232,651,000, is for
legally segregated taxes, grants and fees. The remaining balance, $148,090,000 or 16.5 percent, is unrestricted
net assets and may be used to meet the County’ s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

COUNTY'SCHANGE IN NET ASSETS
For the Fscd Year Ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Governmentd Busness Type
Adtivities Adtivities Totd
Revenues
Programrevenues
Chargesfor sarvices $ 250,536 290,866 541,402
Operating grantsand contributions 544,900 94,474 639,374
Caoitd grants and contributions 12573 7,14 19,767
Gengd revenues
Taxes 238,684 238,684
Grants/contributions not restricted 77,741 77,741
[ nvestment earnings 27,035 298 27,333
Cther 20,158 1,076 21,234
Tota revenues 1,171,627 393,908 1,565,535
Expenses
Gengrd government 115534 115534
Public protection 365,757 365,757
Hedth and sanitation 184,109 184,109
Public assstance 328,450 328,450
Education 16,364 16,364
Public ways and facilities 56,197 56,197
Recreation and culture 793 793
Interest on debt 36,340 36,340
County hospitd 229,534 229,584
Hed th mai ntenance organization 112,386 112,386
Airport 4323 4,323
Housing authority 65,038 65,033
Mg or risk medica insurance 931 931
Sheriff law enforcement training center 1,106 1,106
Totd expensss 1,103,544 413,368 1,516,912
Changein net asts beforetrandfers 68,083 (19,460 48,623
Tranders (11,063 11,063
Changein net asts 57,020 (8,397) 48,623
Net assdts, beginning of year 771,619 75,129 846,748
Net assts, end of year $ 828,639 66,732 895,371
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Analysisof the Changesin Net Assets

The County’ s net assets increased $48,623,000 during fiscal year 2001-2002. Governmenta activities increased
net assets by $57,020,000; however, business-type activities decreased net assets by $8,397,000. The changes are
explained below in the governmenta activities and business-type activities discussions.

(in Millions)

250 +

200

150 A

100
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B Program Revenues

Generd Public Hedlth and Public Education  Publicwaysand Recregtionand Interest on debt
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Governmental activities increased the County’s net assets by $57,020,000, which was partialy offset by a
reduction in net assets from business-type activities.

Property taxesincreased as aresult of a 10.5 percent increase in assessed valuation. Thiswas due to strength
inthereal estate market and construction activity in aperiod of historically low interest rates.

Grants and contributions were up due to increased State funding for public safety services, family income
maintenance and other socia services. There was aso increased Federal funding for childcare, highway
construction and family support services.

O Expenses

Expenses and Program Revenues - Businesstype Activites
B Program Revenues

(in Millions)

County hospitdl  Health maintenance Airport Housing authority  Mgjor risk medical Sheriff law
organization insurance enforcement
training center

Revenues by Sour ce - Business-type Activities

Other

2.2%
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24.0%
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Business-type activities decreased the County’ s net assets by $8,397,000. Expenses exceeded program revenues
in the County Hospital, Hedth Maintenance Organization, Airport, Housng Authority and Sheriff Law
Enforcement Training Center.

» Thecost of medical services and supplies exceeded the increases in funding sources for the costs.

» The Sheiff Law Enforcement Training Center began operation in fiscal year 2001-2002 and incurred
start-up costs that were not yet recovered.

FINANCIAL ANALYSISOF THE COUNTY'SFUNDS

The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
As noted earlier, thisis the first year the County has reported its financial activities and balances in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 34. To comply with this Statement, many of the financid balances and activities
previoudy reported in trust and agency funds were reclassified and are now reported in governmenta funds. The
County has not restated prior year information for the purpose of providing the comparative data for the
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) because some of that information was not readily available.
However, in future years, that prior year information will be available and a comparative anaysis of County fund
data will be presented. The following is an analysis of the activities of the County’s funds for fiscal year 2001-
2002 as reported in the fund-basi s statements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of government funds reported by the
County include the General, specia revenue, debt service, capital projects and permanent funds.

As of June 30, 2002, the County’ s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $468,266,000,
an increase of $20,227,000 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $370,868,000, or 79.2 percent of
these fund balances, constitutes unreserved fund balances, which are available for spending at the County’'s
discretion. The remainder of fund balances is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending
because it has dready been committed: (1) for encumbrances - to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the
prior period ($57,608,000), (2) to reflect advances due from other funds and inventories ($6,893,000), (3) to pay
debt service ($27,464,000), or (4) for miscellaneous other restricted purposes ($5,433,000).

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County. At June 30, 2002, unreserved fund balance of the
Genera Fund was $115,658,000, while total fund balance reached $169,402,000. As a measure of the General
Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 12.5 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 18.3 percent.

In the Public Financing Authority Debt Service Fund, which is reported as part of the nonmgor governmental
funds, capital outlay expenditures exceeded proceeds from the issuance of debt in fiscal year 2001-2002 by
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approximately $12,000,000. Thisresulted in asimilar reduction in fund balance. It isnot unusual to have timing
differences between funding and expenditures for capital projects.

Proprietary Funds

As mentioned earlier, the County’s proprietary fund financia statements provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Net assets a June 30, 2002, were $20,858,000 for the County Hospitd Enterprise Fund, $5,458,000 for the
Health Maintenance Organization Enterprise Fund and $48,611,000 for the other enterprise funds. As a result of
operations during the year, net assets of the County Hospital Enterprise Fund decreased by $4,562,000, net assets
of the Health Maintenance Organization Enterprise Fund increased by $99,000 and the net assets of the other
enterprise funds decreased by $2,571,000.

Net assets of the interna service funds were a deficit of $11,830,000. As aresult of operations during the year,
net assats of the Workers Compensation Insurance County General Internal Service Fund decreased by
$11,799,000, the net assets of the Workers Compensation Insurance Fire Protection Internal Service Fund
decreased by $2,167,000 and the net assets of the other internal service fundsincreased by $394,000. The County
accelerated its Workers Compensation claim processing to reduce the future effects of rising medica treatment
costs but this resulted in the actuary further increasing the reserve for benefits and claim expense. See Note 3in
the notes to the basic financial statements for further information.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The County’s final budget differs from the original budget in that it contains carry-forward appropriations for
various programs and projects, and supplemental appropriations approved during the fiscal year. Tota budgeted
revenues were increased $138,116,000 or 15.5 percent, in the find budget. Actual revenues were less than final
budgeted revenues by $43,114,000, or 4.2 percent. Total budgeted expenditures were increased $141,434,000 or
14.7 percent, in the fina budget. Actua expenditures were less than final budgeted expenditures by
$179,058,000, or 16.2 percent. Significant factors affecting these changes were asfollows:

Original Budget vs. Final Budget

Revenue Variances

* Budgeted Intergovernmental revenues were increased because of additiond state and federal grants.
State grant increases were for Medi-Cal hedth care, family income maintenance, public safety services,
other social services and miscellaneous State aid. Federal grant increases were for of childcare, highway
construction and family support.

* Budgeted Charges for services and Other revenues were increased to include additiona funding for
remodeling and construction projects.

Expenditure Appropriation Variances

* TheFinal Budget for Genera Government - Building Maintenance was increased to reclassify interfund
charges as expenditures, which were previoudy recorded astransfers.
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The Final Budget for Generd Government - Plant Acquisition included additiona appropriations for
building and improvement projects that were funded during the year.

The Find Budget for Public Assstance - Community Development was increased for greater than
expected affordable housing construction and acquisition activity under HUD Block Grants.

The Final Budget for Public Assistance - Employment and Human Services Department (EHSD) Child
and Family Services was increased due to additiona spending requirements for Foster Care and Aid To
Adoption programs.

The Final Budget for Public Ways and Facilities - Road Congruction was increased for projects
identified and funded during the year.

Final Budget vs. Actual Amounts

Revenue Variances

Property taxes were greater than expected as red estate valuations were stronger than anticipated and
projected, given the recession.

Licenses, permits and franchise fees revenue included gas surcharge payments received from Pacific Gas
and Electric Company (PG&E). These payments were greater than budgeted, as the increase in energy
prices was not anticipated.

Intergovernmentd revenues were less than budgeted because the budgeted revenues included full
funding of capital projects and these projects were not completed during the year. State reimbursements
to the Employment and Human Services Department were less than expected.

Charges for services revenues were less than budgeted because some County construction projects were
not completed during the year, as planned. The related funding for congtruction services from other
County funds and external sources was not realized.

Other revenue was less than budgeted because some County construction projects were not completed
during the year, as planned. The related funding for other construction costs from other County funds
and external sources was not realized.

Expenditure Variances

The Finad Budget for General Government - Employee Benefits included appropriations to fund
employee benefits, improve the countywide payroll system, and manage the employee benefit programs
that were less than anticipated.

The Fina Budget for General Government - Plant Acquisition included appropriations for various
building improvement and construction projects that were not completed during the year.

The Fina Budget for Public Assistance - EHSD Workforce Services included appropriations based on
expected Intergovernmental revenues that were not realized.
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» TheFina Budget for Public Ways and Facilities - Public Works included appropriations for the design,
construction and maintenance of County roads that were not completed during the year.

* The Find Budget for Public Ways and Facilities - Road Construction included appropriations for
construction of the State Route 4 Bypass project that was not completed during the year.

CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY

Capital Assets

Capital assets for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below to illustrate changes from the

prior year:
COUNTY'SCHANGESIN CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of Deprediation)
(In Thousands)
Increasef
Governmentd activities  Busnesstype activities Totd (Decrease)
2001 2001 2001 Percent
2002 asredaed 2002 asresaed 2002 asresaed Change
Infrestructure $ 239221 227,837 239221 227,837 50 %
Land and essements 60,108 59,997 10,464 10,464 70572 70,461 0.2
Structures and inprovements 238772 232544 130,564 136806 369,336 369,350
Eoquipment 42,379 41,284 13967 18,795 56,346 60,079 (6.2
Condructionin progress 53,502 22,810 36,538 25,051 90,041 47,861 831
Totd $ 633982 584472 1915 191116 825516 775,588 64 %

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2002,
amounted to $825,516,000 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings and systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, drainage
systems, and bridges. The total increase in the County’s investment in capita assets for fiscal year 2001-2002
was 6.4 percent (an 8.5 percent increase for governmental activities and a 0.2 percent increase for business-type

activities).

Major capital asset events during fiscal year 2001-2002 included the following:

e Congtruction in progress on two office buildings for the Employment and Human Services Department in
Antioch amounted to $12,110,000 for the year.

»  Construction in progress on a 242-bed expansion of Juvenile Hall amounted to $10,386,000 for the year.

»  Congtruction in progress on a new five-courtroom Family Law Center amounted to $6,491,000 for the year.

«  Construction in progress on roads amounted to $8,070,000 for the year.

»  Construction in progress on drainage systems amounted to $14,187,000 for the year.
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«  Construction in progress on hospital ambulatory care clinics amounted to $9,778,000 for the year.

At June 30, 2002, the County had construction commitments totaling $36,063,000 as described in Note 19.E in
the notes to the basic financia statements. Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in
Note 7 in the notes to the basic financia statements.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below to illustrate changes from
the prior yesar:
COUNTY'SOUTSTANDING DEBT
Capitd Lease Obligations, Certificates of Participation, Pension Obligation Bonds, Notes Payable, Other Bonds Payable,
Lease Revenue Bonds, Tax Allocation Bonds and Specid Assessment Delot

(In Thousands)
Increase/
Govarnmantd adtivities ~ Businesstype adtivities Totd (Decresse)
Percent
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 Change
Capitd |ease obligations $ 16238 8,938 2,146 2,748 18334 11,736 56.6 %
Cettificates of participation 58,665 61,465 132550 135940 191,215 197,405 (31
Pension obligation bonds 281425 297,340 281,425 297,340 549
Notes payable 6 o4 1,044 o4 1,050 (6.3
Other bonds payable 8,055 8,505 8,055 8,505 53
Lease revenue bonds 111420 102,245 31,760 32010 143180 134,255 6.6
Tax dlocation bonds 54,525 55,360 54,525 55,360 (15
Specid assesament debt 18,539 20,276 18,539 20,276 (83
Totd $ M8917 554185 167,440 171742 716,357 725,927 (L3 %

At June 30, 2002, the County had total long-term debt outstanding of $716,357,000. The County’s legal debt
limit was $4,674,510,000. The County’s total debt decreased by $9,570,000, or 1.3 percent, during fiscal year
2001-2002.

In June 2002, the County of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority issued $12,650,000 in lease revenue bonds
to finance various capital projects of the County.

The County’s credit ratings for pension obligation bonds are AA- by Standard & Poors and Aa3 by Moody's
Investors Service. Its credit ratings for |ease revenue bonds and certificates of participation are AA- by Standard
& Poorsand A1 by Moody’s Investors Service.

Additional information of the County’ s long-term debt can be found in Note 11 in the notesto the basic financial
Statements.

KNOWN FACTS, DECISONSAND CONDITIONSTHAT ARE EXPECTED TO HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON FINANCIAL POSITION OR RESULTSOF OPERATIONS

*  The State has suffered from the economic slowdown, and the threat of terrorist activities. Duein part to its
diversity, the County’s economy has been fairly resliant, as evidenced by only a 1.5 percent increase in
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unemployment since October 2001. However, governmenta revenues have been hit harder than the overal
economy. The State benefited substantially from income taxes received from capital gains and stock options
during the market rise in the late 1990's to 2001. In fiscal year 2000-2001, State revenue from this source
peaked at $17.7 billion, which amounted to nearly 25 percent of State General Fund revenue. One year later,
this revenue fell $8.2 billion to $9.5 hillion. Asaresult of this and other factors, the State is addressing a $35
billion shortfall of projected revenues compared to expenditures for the 18-month period of January 1, 2003,
through June 30, 2004. This is expected to lead to a significant, but undetermined, reduction of County
revenue. The County receives approximately 20 percent of its revenues from taxes and a significant portion
of the remainder is provided by the State.

» To attract and maintain a high quality workforce the County must provide saaries and benefits competitive
with other potentia employers such as the State, other governmenta entities and the private sector. In
recognition of this fact, the Board of Supervisors and most of the employee organizations agreed to extend
their current labor agreements another three years, with new cogt-of-living adjustments and an enhanced
retirement benefit. The cogt-of-living adjustments range from five to six percent for the first year and from
three to five percent for each of the second and third years covered by the agreement. The new retirement
benefit is commonly known as “3 percent at 50" (for safety members) and “2 percent at 55" (for genera
members). A further explanation of the retirement benefit can be found in Note 15 in the notes to the basic
financia statements.

» Asareallt of decisons in various lawsuits affecting retirement benefits and the enhanced benefits noted
above, the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) for the County is estimated to be $406,000,000 as
of December 31, 2001. In addition, approximately $473,000,000 of retirement investment |osses attributable
to the County had not been recognized as of June 30, 2002. These factors will result in higher costs to the
County in future years.

* Genera Fund subsidies to the County Hospital and Health Maintenance Organization increased $6,249,000
from the prior year to $31,401,000 and $4,811,000, respectively. State budget cuts are expected and costs
continue to rise more rapidly than revenue. Even with cost containment effortsin place, smilar subsidies are
expected to recur in fiscal year 2002-2003.

» All of these factors were considered in preparing the County’ s budget for fiscal year 2002-2003.
REQUESTSFOR INFORMATION

This financia report is designed to provide a generd overview of the County’s finances for dl those with an
interest in the County’ s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional financia information should be addressed to the Office of the County Auditor-Controller, 625
Court Street, Room 103, Martinez, CA 94553-1282.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Component
Primary Government Unit
Childrenand
Governmentd Busnesstype FamilesHrs
Activities Adtivities Totd Commission
AsHs
Cach and investments $ 476,700 78,035 554,735 38,939
Receivables (net) 148,952 45,316 194,268 2,088
Inventories 1,872 1,167 3,039
Internal balances 16,108 (16,208
Duefromfiduciary funds 13934 13934
Due from conmponent unit 3A 34
Notesrecaivable 36,525 1,659 338134
Prepaid items and deposits 2,625 3938 6,563 19
Land hdd for resdle 1,286 1,286
Prepaid penson ast 278,723 278,723
Redtricted cagh and investments 72,583 11,376 83,959
Cooitd asts
Nondeprecigble 113,610 47,003 160,613
Derecigile, net 520,372 144,531 664,903
Total Assts 1,683,644 316,917 2,000,561 41,046
Liabilities
Short term notes payadle 70,000 70,000
Accounts payable and accrued lichilities 68,817 43543 112,360 169
Accrued interest payadle 3,838 1,379 5,267
Duetofidudary funds 35 335
Dueto primary government 3H4
Wdfare program advances 4,864 4,864
Deferred revenue 36,330 37,058 73,388
Long-termlighilities:
Duewithin one yeer 51,241 6,207 57,448
Duein morethan one year 619,865 161,613 781,478
Total Liahilities 855,005 250,185 1,105,190 523
Net Asets
Invesed in capitd assets, net of related dett 437,866 38558 476,424
Regtricted for:
Legelly segregated taxes, grants and fees 232,651 232,651
Debt savice 24,751 11,376 36,127
Permenent Fund:
Expendable 353 353
Nonexpendzble 1,726 1,726
Children's progras 33,558
Unrestricted 131,292 16,798 148,00 6,965
Total Net Asets $ 828,639 66,732 895,371 40,523

See accompanying natesto the basic finendid satements.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capita
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Function/Program Activities:
Primary Gover nment:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 115,534 73,680 19,682
Public protection 365,757 100,344 119,742 76
Health and sanitation 184,109 51,533 80,561
Public assistance 328,450 1,648 308,577
Education 16,364 738 3,152
Public ways and facilities 56,197 22,557 13,134 12,497
Recreation and culture 793 36 52
Interest on debt 36,340
Total Governmental Activities 1,103,544 250,536 544,900 12,573
Business-type activities:
County hospital 229,584 178,040 31,886 7,194
Health maintenance organization 112,386 105,157 2,757
Airport 4,323 3,002 130
Housing authority 65,038 3,536 59,459
Major risk medical insurance 931 931
Sheriff law enforcement training center 1,106 200 242
Total Business-type Activities 413,368 290,866 94,474 7,194
Total Primary Government $ 1,516,912 541,402 639,374 19,767
Component Unit:
Children and Families First Commission $ 4,696 16,643
GENERAL REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Other
Grants/contributions not restricted
Investment earnings
Other
TRANSFERS

Total genera revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changesin Net Assets

Business-
Governmental type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit

(22,172) (22,172)

(145,595) (145,595)

(52,015) (52,015)

(18,225) (18,225)

(12,474) (12,474)

(8,009) (8,009)

(705) (705)

(36,340) (36,340)

(295,535) (295,535)

(12,464) (12,464)

(4,472) (4,472)

(1,291) (1,191)

(2,043) (2,043)

(664) (664)

(20,834) (20,834)

(295,535) (20,834) (316,369)
11,947

211,376 211,376

11,616 11,616

15,692 15,692

77,741 77,741
27,035 298 27,333 733

20,158 1,076 21,234

(11,063) 11,063

352,555 12,437 364,992 733
57,020 (8,397) 48,623 12,680
771,619 75,129 846,748 27,843
828,639 66,732 895,371 40,523
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AsHs

Cach and investments

Accounts rece veble and accrued revenue (net)

Inventories

Due from other funds

Due from conmponent unit
Advancesto other funds
Notesreceveble

Prepaid items and deposits
Land hdd for rede

Restricted cash and invesments

Total Assts

Liabilitiesand Fund Balances
Liabilities
Short term notes payadle
Acoounts payable and accrued lighilities
Dueto other funds
Wdfare program advances

Advances from other funds
Deferred revenue

Tota Liabilities
Fund Balances.

Resarved for:
Encumbrances
Inventories
Advancesto other funds
Prepad items and deposits
Land hdd for rede
Housing projects
Debt sarvice
Nonexpendabl e permenent funds
Unreserved, reported in:
Generd fund
Foedid revenuefunds
Debt servicefunds
Capitd projectsfunds
Permenent fund

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilitiesand Fund Balances

See accompanying notesto thebadic finandd statements.

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Other
Gened Funds Totd

$ 59,033 340,306 399,339

135481 11,656 147,137

1,872 1,872

66,311 12,075 78,336

34 A

138 4833 5021

29,246 7,279 36,525

1,801 413 2,214

1,286 1,286

72,583 72,583

$ 366,819 377,898 744,717

$ 70,000 70,000

56,267 12,550 68,817

18482 34,475 52,957

4864 4,864

5021 5021

47,804 26,988 74,792

197,417 79,034 276,451

50,342 7,266 57,608

1,872 1,872

138 4,833 5021

1,392 413 1,805

1,286 1,286

616 616

27,464 27,464

1,726 1,726

115,658 115,658

176,792 176,792

29,092 29,092

48,973 48,973

353 353

169,402 293,864 468,266

$ 366,819 377,898 744,717
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSBALANCE SHEET

TOTHE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Fund bad ances - totd governmentd funds (page 20)

Armounts reported for governmentd activitiesin the
datement of net assetsare different because:

The pendon assts resullting from contributions in excess of the annud
required contribution in 2001 are not finenda resources and therefore
not reported in the funds.

Capitd assats usad in governmentd attivities arenot finanda resources
and therefore are nat reported in the governmenta funds.

Accrued revenue, which is nat available soon enough to pay for the
current period's expenditures, is deferred in the governmenta funds.

Notes recevable are not availddleto pay current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the governmentd funds

Internd service funds are used by menagement to charge the cogts of
«f inaurancetoindividud funds. The assetsand liabilities of these
funds, exoept for the medicd liability insurance fund, areind uded
asgovernmentd activitiesin the Satement of net assets

Interest on long-term debt is recognized asiit accrues, regard ess of when
itisdue

Codts of issuance on 2002 lesse revenue bond are not recognized as current
year expenditures and are deferred.
Current year amortization of cogts of issuance on 2002 | eese revenue bond.

Long-termlighilities induding bonds payable, are not due and payable
inthe current period and therefore are not reported in the governmentd
funds

Certificates of partidpetion
Lease revenue bonds

Tax dlocation bonds
Soecid assessmant bonds
COther bonds payable
Penson obligation bonds
Capitd |lesse obligetions
Compensated absences

Net assts of governmentd adtivities (pege 17)

See acoonpanying notesto the basic finandid Satements.
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$ 468,266

278723

633,982

1,937

36,525

(3639)

(3889)
412

) 411
(58,665)
(111,420)
(54,52)
(18589)
(805
(281,425)
(16,239)

(34,761) (583,678)

$ 828,639




COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI TURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Genegrd Cther
Fund Funds Totd
Revenues:
Taxes $ 200571 122,064 322,635
Licenses, parmitsand franchise fees 23,782 11,495 35,277
Fines, forfdtures and pendties 14,508 4,017 18525
Use of money and property 10,527 13,237 23764
I ntergovernmenta 506,352 39,372 545,724
Chargesfor sarvices 155,713 40,875 196,588
Other revenue 74,613 19,667 94,280
Total Revenues 986,066 250,727 1,236,793
Expenditures
Current:
Genegrd government 128,375 1,976 130,351
Public protection 254,070 123941 378,011
Hedlth and sanitation 172,613 9,551 182,164
Public assstance 315112 2561 337,673
Education 205 16,162 16,367
Public ways and fadilities 45,679 43151 83,830
Recregtion and culture 1,009 1,009
Debt savice:
Principa 25110 25110
Bond i ssuance cost 412 412
Interest 2,215 34,002 36,307
Capitd outlay 7,415 24,821 32,236
Total Expenditures 925,684 302,876 1,228,560
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 60,382 (52,149 8,233
Other Financing Sour ces (Usss):
Trandersin 23,568 48,662 72,230
Trandersout (76,347) (6,946) (83,293
Proceadsfromthe sde of red estate 500 500
Proceeds fromissuance of dett 12,650 12,650
Capitd leasefinancing 9,907 9,907
Tatal Other Financing Sour ces (Uses) (42,872) 54,866 11,94
Net Changein Fund Balances 17,510 2,717 20,227
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, as Previoudy Reported 144,607 257,017 401,624
Adjustments to beginning fund balances 7,285 39,130 46,415
Fund Balances at Beginning of Yeer, as Restated 151,892 296,147 448,039
Fund Balances at End of Yeer $ 169,402 298,864 468,266

See accompanying notesto the besic finandd statements
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDI TURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCESTO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Net chengein fund balances- total governmentd funds (pege 22)

Amounts reported for governmentd ativitiesin the
datement of activities are different because

Revenuesthat were deferred in the governmentd funds because they were
unavailable are reported as current revenue.

Governmentd fundsreport capitd outlay as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cogt of those assatsisdlocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as deprediation expense.

Expendituresfor cepitd assets
Lesslosson sderetirement of capitd assts
Less current year depreciaion

Someincome reported in the governmentd funds wes previoudy
reported in the satement of adtivities and thereforeis not reported
ascurrent income.

Long-term debt proceeds provide current financid resourcesto governmenta
funds, but issuing debt increeseslong-termlidhilitiesin the statement of
net assets. Repayment of bond principd is an expenditurein the
governmentd funds; but the repayment reduces|ong-termliabilitiesin
the statement of net assdts.

Prooeads from | ease revenue bonds

Deferrd of bond issuance cost

Principd payments

| ssuance of capitd lease

Some expenses reported in the stetement of activitiesdo not requirethe

useof current finencid resources and therefore are not reported as
expendituresin governmenta funds.

Changein long-term compensated absences

Anortization of pengon asset

Amortization of bond i ssuance cost

Changein accrued interest payable

Interna service funds are used by menagement to charge the cogts of
certain activitiesto individud funds. The net revenue of theinterna
service fundsis reported with governmentd activities

Changein net assets of governmentd adtivities (page 19)

See accompanying notesto the basic finandd satements.
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(12,650)
412
27,763
(9.907)

(3601)
(14,835)
@
(142)

20,227

12,953

49,510

(800)

5,623

(18579)

(12,214
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Enterprise Funds
Hedth Internd
County Maintenance Savice
Hospitd Organization Other Totd Funds
Asss
Current ass4s
Cash and investments $ 39,045 21,760 13726 74,531 80,865
Accounts rece vable and accrued revenue (net) 41,243 201 3172 45,316 1815
Inventories 1,158 S 1,167
Duefromother funds 11,131 33816 97 15044 1,820
Notesrecevable 1,659 1,659
Prepaid items and deposits 3,589 158 191 3,938
Totd Current Assdts 96,166 26,635 18,854 141,655 84,500
Regtricted cash and investments 11,376 11,376
Copitd asdts:
Nondepreciable 32,762 14,241 47,003
Deprecicble, net 113,762 A 30,675 144,531
Total Assts $ 254,066 26,729 63,770 344,565 84,500
Liabilitiesand Net Assts
Ligbilities
Current lighilities
Accounts payable and accrued lighilities $ 25,7% 15,306 2441 43543
Accorued interest payadle 1,325 % 1,379
Dueto other funds 20,382 5,690 1,393 27,465 1275
Deferred revenue 20,352 7,706 37,058
Current portion of long-termliahilities 4,208 27 709 4,995 19,079
Tota Current Lighilities 81,064 21,023 12,303 114,390 20,34
Noncurrent portion of long-termliahilities:
Copitd lease obligations 1,546 1,546
Certificates of participation, net 115,343 115,343
Compensated absences 5,689 248 301 6,328
Clamspayable 75,976
Bonds and notes payable, net 31,112 919 32,031
Total Noncurrent Ligbilities 152,144 248 2,356 155,248 75,976
Total Liahilities 233,208 21,271 15,159 269,638 96,330
Net Assts (Deficit):
Invested in capitd assdts,
net of rdated delt (3,508 A 41,972 38,558
Restricted for debt service 11,376 11,376
Unregtricted (Deficit) 12,990 5,364 6,639 24,993 (11,830)
Total Net Asets (Deficit) 20,858 5,458 48,611 74,927 11,830
Total Liabilitiesand Net Assets $ 254,066 26,729 63,770 84,500
Adjustment to reflect the consolidetion of internd service fund activities
relaed to enterprise funds. (81955
Net assets of business-type activities (page 17) $ 66732

See accompanying notesto the basic finandd statements
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Enterprise Funds
Hedth Internd
County Maintenance Savice
Hospitd Organization Other Totd Funds
Operating Revenues
Chargesfor sarvices $ 17804C 105,157 7,669 290,866 31,429
Other revenue 1,074 1,074 1,036
Tota Operating Revenues 178,040 105,157 8,743 291,940 32,465
Operating Expenses.
Sdaries and empl oyee benefits 134,768 6,199 144 142,461
Sarvices and supplies 64,662 105,977 2,346 172,985 9,618
Benefit and daim expense 42,706
Other charges 9,503 62,253 71,756
Depredigtion 6,530 14 4,839 11,383
Tota Operating Expenses 215,463 112,190 70,932 398,585 52,324
Operating loss (37,423 (7,033) (62,189) (106,645) (19,859)
Nonoper ating Revenues (Expenses)
Sate and federd grants 31,886 2,757 59,831 A,474 10
I nvestment income 294 24 3,277
Interest expense (9,977) (437) (10,414)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 21,909 2,757 59,683 84,34 3,287
Lossbefore Capital
Contributionsand Transfers (15,514) (4,276) (2,501 (22,291) (16,572
Copitd cortributions 7,14 7,14
Trandersin 32,626 4811 37,437 3,000
Trandfersout (28,868 (436) (70) (29,374)
Changein Net Assets (4,562) 9 (2571 (7,034) (13,572
Total Net Asstsat Beginning of the Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 23,566 5,286 51,825 80,677 2497
Adjugmentsto beginning net asts 1,854 73 (643 1,284 (755)
Total Net Asstsat Beginning of the Year,
asRegtated 25,420 5,359 51,182 81,961 1,742
Total Net Assetsat End of Year $ 20,858 5458 48,611 74,927 (11,830)
Reconalliation of enterprisefunds change in net assetsto statement of activities
Changein net assts of enterprisefunds. $ (7,034)
Adjustment to reflect the consolidetion of internd service fund activities
related to enterprise funds. (1,363
Changein net assts of business-type activities (page 19) $ (8,397)

See accompanying notesto the basic finandd satements.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Enterprise Funds
Hedth Internd
County Maintenance Savice
Hospitd Organization Other Totd Funds
Cash Flowsfrom Operating Activities:
Cach recaved from customers/other funds $ 1727775 114,140 15,805 302,720 30,253
Cash payment to suppliersfor goods and services (78,053) (106,600) (61,132) (245,785  (38,300)
Cash payment to employeesfor services (133,811) (6,192 (7,639) (147,642
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities (39,089) 1,348  (52,966) (90,707) (8,047)
Cash Flowsfrom Noncapital Finandng Activities:
Sate and federd grants 31,886 2,757 59,831 94,474 10
Trandfersreceived 32,626 4,811 37,437 3,000
Trandferspad (28,868) (436) (70) (29,374)
Dueto other funds 772 772 72
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 35,644 7,132 60,533 103,309 3,082
Cash Flowsfrom Capital and Rdated Finandng Activities:
Capita contributions 7194 7,14
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,843 (2217 (14,060)
Interest paid (8,652 (205) (8,857)
Lease purchase obligation principa payment 2 (600) (602)
Principa paid on bonds and certificates (3,390) (3390
Payment on other non-current obligetions (250) (60) (310)
Net Cash Used for Capital and Rdated Financing Activities (16,943 (3,082 (20,025)
Cash Flowsfrom Investing Activities:
I nterest received on investments 2 2 3,277
Investments, net (321) (321)
Net Cash Usad for Investing Activities (27) (27) 3,277
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (20,388) 8,480 4,458 (7,450) (1,683
Cash and Cash Equivalentsat Beginning of Year 70,809 13,280 9,268 93,357 82,553
Cash and Cash Equivalentsat End of Year § 50421 21,760 13,726 85,907 80,865

Reconciliation of Operating Lossto Net Cash
Used for Operating Activities
Operating loss $ (37423 (7,033) (62189 (1066450 (19,859
Adjustmentsto Reconcile Operating Loss
to Net Cash Provided by (Usad for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation 6,530 14 4,839 11,383
Changesin operdting assets and liabilities:
Decrease (incresse) in:

Accounts reca vable and accrued revenue, net (14,593) 3,170 (1,565) (12,988) (528)
Inventories (95) 8 (87)
Due from other funds 1,289 5813 5 7,107 (1,689
Prepad items and deposits 147 50 197
Incresse (decresss) in:
Accounts payable and accrued lighilities 7,698 1479 101 9,278 15,034
Employee bendfits payeble 414 5 il 510
Dueto other funds (12,095) (2,100) (23 (13426) (1,010
Deferred revenue 8,039 5,925 13,964
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities $ (39,089 1,348  (52,966) (90,707) (8,047)
Noncash capital finandng activities (Hospital)
Accrued Interest $ 1,325
Bond deferrd/OIP amortization 702
Capitd asset adjustment 2137

See accompanying notes to the basic finandid gatements.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002*
(In Thousands)
Private
Penson Investment Purpose Agency
Trust Trust Trust Funds
AsHs
Cash and invesments $ 2,718,985 833,589 9148 $ 120,591
Receivables 46,606 128 1,747
Duefromother funds 1834 1,339 5 9,797
Taxesrecdvadles 127,473
Prepad items and deposits 44
Capitd assdts net 574
Total Assts 2,768,393 834,928 9281 $ 278,608
Liabilities
Warrants outstanding 56,186 40,133
Accounts payable and accrued lihilities 63,396 212 34,521
Ermployee benefits payable 268
Dueto other funds 1492 3 25343
Deferred revenue 2
Unapportioned taxes 81,959
Tax |oss guarantess 27,032
Dueto other agendies 69,620
Total Liabilities 63,664 57,678 243 $ 278,608
Net Asets
Hdd for:
Employees pension benefits 2,704,729
Participation inindividudly directed
invesment acoounts 771,250 9,038
Total Net Asets $ 2,704,729 777,250 9,038

* Penson Trust Fund reported as of Decermber 31, 2001
See accompanying notesto the basic finendd satements
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002*

(In Thousands)
Private-
Pension I nvestment Purpose
Trust Trust Trust

Additions

Employer contributions $ 55,182

Enployee contributions 18,681

Contributionsto investment accounts 2,612,446

Intergovernmenta 700

Other revenue 4,387

Net investment income (loss) (105,084) 29,722 176

I Nvestment expense (9,448

Total Additions (40,669) 2,642,168 5,263

Deductions:

Benefitspaid 138533

Refunds of contributions 858

Digtribution frominvestment accounts 2,622,933

Adminidrative and other expenses 3,745 2,567

Prepayment discount 2920

Other 607 3,505

Membership withdrawa 10,791

Total Deductions 157,454 2,622,933 6,072

Changein Net Assets (198,123 19,235 (809)
Net AssstsHdd In Trugt at Beginning of Yesr,

asPrevioudy Reported 2,931,262 758,015
Prior period adjustment (28,410 9,847
Net AssstsHdd In Trugt at Beginning of Yesr,

asRedtated 2,902,852 758,015 9,847
Net AssstsHed In Trugt at End of Year $ 2,704,729 777,250 9,038

*Pengon Trust Fund reported for Year Ended Decenber 31, 2001.
See accompanying notes to the basic finandid satemeants.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the County of Contra Costa (the County) conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental entities. The following
isasummary of the more significant policies:

A. Definition of Reporting Entity

The County is a political subdivision created by the State of California. As such, it can exercise
powers specified by the Constitution and statutes of the State. The County is governed by a five
member elected Board of Supervisors (the Board). The Board is responsible for the legislative and
executive control of the County. The County provides various services on a countywide basis
including law and justice, education, detention, social, health, hospital, fire protection, road
construction, road maintenance, transportation, park and recreation facilities, elections and records,
communications, planning, zoning, and tax collection.

The governmental reporting entity consists of the County (Primary Government) and its component
units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Board is financialy
accountable or other organizations whose nature and relationship with the County are such that
exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financia
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board, and
(i) either the County’s ability to impose its will on the organization or (ii) there is potential for the
organization to provide afinancial benefit to or impose afinancial burden on the County.

The basic financial statements include both blended and discretely presented component units. The
blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the County’s
operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government. The
discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasizeit islegally separate from the government.

For financial reporting purposes, the County’'s basic financiad statements include al financia
activities that are controlled by or are dependent upon actions taken by the County’ s Board.

Blended Component Units

Housing Authority of the County of Contra Costa

The Housing Authority of the County of Contra Costa (Housing Authority) was established to
provide housing for the County’s low and moderate income residents. Its board members are the
same as the County Board of Supervisors. The financial activities of the Housing Authority are
reported as an Enterprise Fund. The fiscal year of the Housing Authority ends on March 31st and its
financial activities are reported as of that date.
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NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2002

Contra Costa County Redevel opment Agency

The Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency (RDA) was established for the purpose of
redevel oping certain areas of the County designated as project areas. Its board members are the same
as the County Board of Supervisors. The financia activities of the RDA are included in the specia
revenue, debt service and capital projects funds which are reported as nonmajor governmental funds.

Contra Costa County Public Facilities Corporation

The Contra Costa County Public Facilities Corporation (PFC) was established to provide financing
for the acquisition, construction, improvement and remodeling of public buildings and facilities for
the County. The County appoints a voting majority of the governing board and is able to impose its
will on the Corporation. The activities of the Corporation are included in a debt service fund which is
reported as part of the nonmajor governmental funds and in the County Hospital Enterprise Fund.

County of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority

The County of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority (PFA) is ajoint powers authority consisting
of the County and the RDA. The PFA was established to provide for the financing of public
improvements, obligations, working capital and liability or other insurance programs of the County
and the RDA. The members of the County Board of Supervisors also serve as the Directors of the
PFA. The activities of the PFA are included in a debt service fund which is reported as part of the
nonmajor governmental funds and in the County Hospital Enterprise Fund.

Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association

The Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) was established to provide
retirement benefits to employees of the County and other member agencies. The CCCERA provides
a majority of its services for the benefit of the County and, therefore, is reported as a pension trust
fund in the basic financia statements. The fiscal year of the CCCERA ends on December 31st and its
financial activities are reported as of that date.

In-Home Qupportive Services Public Authority

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code Section
12301.6, established the In-Home Supportive Services Public Authority (IHSS). This Authority
provides screening, training and referral of in-home supportive service providers and assi sts recipients
in finding qualified persons to assist eligible individuals who are unable to care for themselves at
home. The activities of the IHSS are included in a specia revenue fund which is reported as part of
the nonmajor governmental funds.

Soecial Districts and Service Areas

The County has 41 agencies referred to as County Special Districts and Service Areas. Each is
established by the County for the purpose of providing specific services in a defined geographic area.
Their board members are the same as the County Board of Supervisors. These agencies and the
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Special Revenue Fund in which each is included are: Fire Protection - Bethel 1sland Fire Protection
Digtrict, Contra Costa Fire Protection District, Crockett-Carquinez Fire Protection Didtrict, East
Diablo Fire Protection District, Oakley Fire Protection District; Flood Control - Flood Control
Digtrict, Storm Drainage District, Storm Drain Maintenance District No. 4 and Storm Drain Digtrict
No. Z-16; Health and Sanitation - Sanitation Districts Nos. 5 and 6; Service Areas - Service Areas D-
2, EMS1, L-100, LIB-2, LIB-10, LIB-12, LIB-13, M-1, M-8, M-16, M-17, M-20, M-23, M-25, M-
26, M-27, M-28, M-29, M30, R-4, R-7, R-9, R-10, RD-4 and Discovery Bay West Parking District;
Law Enforcement - Service Areas P-1, P-2, P-5 and P-6; Other Special Revenue - Contra Costa
County Water Agency. These specia revenue funds are reported as nonmajor governmental funds.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Children and Families First Commission

The Contra Costa Children and Families First Commission (the Commission) was established to
implement the provisions of Proposition 10, adopted by the voters in 1998. Proposition 10 added
Division 108 (commencing with Section 130100) to the Health and Safety Code. It provides for a
State tax on the sale of tobacco products and aso provides that this revenue be spent for early
childhood devel opment programs by the Commission. The County Board of Supervisors appoints all
nine members (and nine dternate members) of the Commission and is able to impose its will on the
Commission. Two members of the Board of Supervisors serve on the Commission. The Commission
provides most of its services directly to the citizens of the County. The financia activity of the
Commission is reported in separate columns on the government-wide financial statements.

Complete audited financial statements for each of the individual component units are issued
separately and may be obtained at the unit's administrative offices as follows:

Housing Authority of the County of Contra Costa
3133 Estudillo Street, Martinez, CA 94553

Contra Costa County Public Facilities Corporation
1220 Morello Ave., Suite 100, Martinez, CA 94553

County of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority
651 Pine Street, 6th Floor, Martinez, CA 94553

Contra Costa County Redevelopment Agency
651 Pine Street, 5th Floor North Wing, Martinez, CA 94553

Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221, Concord, CA 94520

Contra Costa Children and Families First Commission
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 125, Martinez, CA 94553

In-Home Supportive Services Public Authority
40 Douglas Drive, Martinez, CA 94553
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B. New Accounting Pronouncements | mplemented During the Y ear
New Reporting Model: GASB Satement No. 34

In June 1999, The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Satements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments. GASB Statement No. 34 provides for the most significant change in financial
reporting in over twenty years with changes to governmental financial reporting, including changesin
the basic financia statements. This new governmental reporting model is effective for the County
beginning with fiscal year 2001-2002, the period covered by these statements.

GASB Statement No. 34, requires the presentation of government-wide financial statements and fund
financial statements. The new government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide financial
statements include the reporting of long-term liabilities and capital assets such as buildings, roads,
drainage facilities, and other infrastructure within the governmental and the business-type activities.
Depreciation expenses and accumulated depreciation, which were not previoudy reported for
governmental funds, are also displayed on the government-wide financial statements. The capital
assets and related depreciation also include the costs and depreciation of infrastructure assets, which
were not previoudy capitalized and depreciated.

The fund financial statements for the governmental funds continue to be prepared under the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Fund financial statements are shown separately for specific major
governmental funds, and in total for al other nonmajor governmental funds.

Effects of New Pronouncements

The following summarizes recent GASB pronouncements and their impact, if any, on the financia
statements:

GASB Statement No. 34 establishes new financial reporting requirements for all governments,
nationwide. The main purpose is to provide more understandable and useful governmental financia
reports to awider range of users and enhance the comparability of financia statements.

Under GASB Statement No. 34, the County’s basic financial statements present the following
components in addition to the fund financial statements and other required supplementary
information:

» Management’s Discussion and Anaysis (MD&A) - The MD&A is the new easily readable
narrative that introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytica overview of the
County’s financia activities. The narrative should include currently known facts, decisions or
conditions that are expected to have a significant effect on the financia position or changes in
financial position.

»  Government-wide Financial Statements — These financia statements report the financial position
and operating results of the County as an economic entity, excluding the information about
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fiduciary activities, and are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. The government-wide financial statements include the statement of
net assets and the statement of activities.

GASB Satement No. 37

In June 2001, GASB issued Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for Sate and Local Governments: Omnibus — an Amendment of GASB
Satements No. 21, Accounting for Escheat Property and No. 34. This statement is effective for the
same period as GASB Statement No. 34 and either clarifies or modifies certain provision in GASB
Statements No. 21 and No. 34. It establishes guidance in the following areas: reporting of escheat
property, topics for discussion in the MD&A, program revenue classifications, the minimum level of
detail required for business-type activities in the statement of activities, etc.

GASB Satement No. 38

In June 2001, the GASB issued Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.
This statement modifies, adds and deletes various note disclosure requirements. Those requirements
address revenue recognition policies, debt service requirements, receivable and payable balances,
interfund transfers and balances, and short-term debt.

GASB Interpretation No. 6

In March 2000, the GASB issued Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain
Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements. This interpretation
clarifies the application of standards for modified accrual recognition of certain liabilities and
expenditures in areas where differences have arisen, or potentialy could arise, in interpretation and
practice.

The County has implemented GASB Statement Nos. 34, 37 and 38 and Interpretation No. 6 and these
statements are presented according to those requirements. A summary of the adjustments required to
implement these statementsis presented in Note 2.

. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Satements

GASB Statement No. 34 mandates the presentation of two basic government-wide financial
statements, the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. The statement of net assets
and statement of activities display information about the primary government (the County) and its
component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except
for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
County and between the County and its discretely presented component unit. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
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separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees charged to external
parties.

The statement of net assets reports the County’s financial and capital resources, including
infrastructure, as well as the County’s long-term obligations. The difference between the County’s
assets and liabilitiesis its net assets. Net assets represent the resources that the County has available
for usein providing services after its debts are settled.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the governmental activities and each segment of the business-type activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include 1) charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, including fines and forfeitures, and 2) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capita requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available, management has discretion as to which resources to apply. Generaly, restricted resources
are depleted before unrestricted. However, when prudent, unrestricted resources may be used first.

Fund Financial Satements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including fiduciary
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are separately aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The County reports the General Fund as a mgjor governmental fund. The General Fund is used to
account for all revenues and expenditures necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of the
County that are not accounted for through other funds. In addition to general administration, the
Genera Fund includes such activities as public protection, health and sanitation, public assistance,
education, and public ways and facilities.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

* The County Hospital (the Hospital) accounts for hospital operations involved in providing health
services to County residents. Revenues are principally fees for patient services, payments from
Federal and State programs such as Medicare, Medi-Cal and Short-Doyle, realignment revenues
and subsidies from the General Fund.

» The Health Maintenance Organization accounts for the operations of the County’s prepaid health
plan. Revenues are primarily capitation payments by Medicare and Medi-Cal, premiums by
private citizens and realignment revenues.
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The County reports the following additional fund types:

* Internal Service Funds account for the County's self-insurance programs — employee dental
insurance, employee medical insurance, long-term disability, workers' compensation, automotive
liability insurance, general liability insurance, state unemployment insurance, medical liability
insurance and specia district property insurance, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

* The Pension Trust Fund accumulates contributions from the County, its employees and other
participating employers, and earnings from the fund’'s investments. Disbursements are made
from the fund for retirement, disability and desth benefits (based on a defined benefit formula)
and administrative expenses. This fund includes all assets of the CCCERA.

* The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the assets of legally separate entities who make directed
investments through the County Treasurer. These entities include school and community college
districts, other special districts governed by local boards, regional boards and authorities and pass
through funds for tax collections for cities. These funds represent the assets, primarily cash and
investments, and the related liability of the County to disburse these monies on demand.

» The Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for assets held in trust for the City of Oakley related to
its redevel opment project area, as well as assets held in trust for others.

 The Agency Funds account for assets held by the County as an agent for various loca
governments.

D. Basisof Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the County is giving (or receiving)
value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes,
grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrua basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from sales tax are recognized when the
underlying transactions take place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized
in the fiscal year in which dl digibility requirements have been satisfied.

For its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the County has elected under GASB Statement
No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as any
applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Accounting Principles
Board or any Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The GASB periodically updates
its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which,
aong with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Americafor governmental units. The
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County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board after November 30, 1989.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. Property and sales taxes are accrued when their receipt occurs within sixty days after
the end of the accounting period, all other revenues, the majority of which are from the state and
federal government are accrued when their receipt occurs within one year after the end of the
accounting period so as to be both measurable and available. Expenditures are generally recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. Debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are generally recorded when
payment is due. However, where resources have been provided during the current year for payment
of interest due early in the following year, the expenditure and related liability are accrued. General
capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general
long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

. Noncurrent Governmental AssetsLiabilities

GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of account groups, and instead incorporates the
information into the governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of net assets.

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows, the enterprise and internal service funds
consider al highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, and
their equity in the County Treasurer's investment pool, to be cash equivalents. Also included is
restricted cash. The restricted cash has been restricted for repayment of debt or as reserves.

. Investments

Investment transactions are recorded on the trade date. Investments in non-participating interest-
earning investment contracts (certificates of deposit and guaranteed investment contracts) are stated at
cost, and all other investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is defined as the amount that the
County could reasonably expect to receive for an investment in a current sale between awilling buyer
and seller and is generally measured by quoted market prices.

Under GASB Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, the Pension Trust Fund reports its investments at fair
value and includes both realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments in its statement of
changes in net assets. The fair values of equity and fixed income securities are derived from quoted
market prices. The fair values of private market investments are estimated from fair values provided
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by real estate investment funds, generally using periodic independent appraisals, and aternative
investment managers. All investment purchases and sales are recorded on the trade date.

The public school districts, cemetery districts, pest control districts, recreation and park districts and
resource conservation districts within the County are required by legal provisions to maintain their
cash and investments with the County Treasurer. The County Treasurer maintains individually
directed investment accounts for these districts. The cash and investments held for these districts are
included in the Investment Trust Fund.

. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market. Governmental fund inventories are
maintained using the weighted average method. Proprietary fund inventories are maintained using
the first-in, first-out method. The costs of governmental fund inventories and proprietary fund
inventories are recorded as expenditures/expenses at the time individual items are consumed rather
than when purchased. Reported inventories of governmental funds are equally offset by a fund
balance reservation to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is not available for future
appropriation.

Notes Receivable

The notes receivable balances in the General Fund consist of 1oans made with funds provided to the
County under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development programs. The loans are
made to carry out activities for affordable housing and economic development. Generadly, the loans
are either deferred or collected on a residua receipts basis with al remaining principal and interest
due on the earlier of the due date of the note or sale or transfer of property. Any repayment of
principal or interest is treated as program income, the use of which is restricted by federal regulations.
As such, these notes receivable are recorded with an offset to deferred revenue in the fund financial
statements because the amounts are unavailable.

Prepaid Pension Asset

On March 1, 1994, the CCCERA received a payment of $333,724,000 from the County as proceeds
from the issuance of pension obligation bonds. The proceeds were used to reduce the County’s
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) at that time.

. Capital Assets

Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if
actual historical cost is not available. Contributed fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair
market value on the date contributed. Capital assets include public domain (infrastructure) consisting
of certain improvements including roads, bridges, water/sewer, lighting system, drainage systems,
and flood control. The capitalization threshold for infrastructure is $25,000. The capitalization
threshold for permanent structures is $5,000. The capitalization threshold for equipment and vehicles
was increased from $3,000 to $5,000 effective July 1, 2001. Capital assets used in operations are
depreciated or amortized (assets under capital leases) using the straight-line method over the lesser of
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the capital lease period or their estimated useful lives in the activities within the government-wide
financial statements, proprietary funds and the pension trust fund.

The estimated useful lives are asfollows:

Infrastructure 25-50 years
Buildings 25-40 years
Improvements 10-20 years
Equipment and vehicles 3-20 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Betterments and major
improvements, which significantly increase values, change capacities or extend useful lives, are
capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of
operations.

Interest is capitalized on construction in progress in the proprietary funds in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 62, Capitalization of Interest Cost in Stuations
Involving Certain Tax Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants. Accordingly, interest
capitalized is the total interest cost from the date of the borrowing net of any alowable interest
carried on temporary investments of the proceeds of those borrowings until the specified asset is
ready for itsintended use.

. Bond and Certificate of Participation Discounts, Issuance Costs and Deferred Amounts on
Refundings

In governmental fund financia statements, bond and certificate of participation discounts, issuance
costs and deferred amounts on refundings are recognized in the period incurred. In the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements, these charges are deferred and amortized over the
term of the issuance using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method.

. Property Tax Levy, Collection and Maximum Rates

The County is responsible for assessing, collecting and apportioning property taxes. Taxes are levied
for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property situated in the County. The levy is based on
the assessed val ues as of the preceding January 1%, which is also the lien date. State code requires tax
rates to be set no later than the first workday in September unless the Board of Supervisors elects to
extend the deadline to October 3. Property taxes on the secured roll are due in two installments:
November 1% and February 1% and become delinquent after December 10" and April 10",
respectively. Supplemental property taxes are levied based on changes in assessed values between
the date of real property sales or construction completion and the preceding assessment date. The
additional supplemental property taxes are prorated from the first day of the month following the date
of such occurrence. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due on the lien date (January 1%), and
become delinquent if unpaid by August 31%.
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Supplementary taxes that have been collected but unapportioned at year-end and unsecured taxes
collected in advance are reported in unapportioned taxes in the Unapportioned Taxes Agency Fund.
Secured property taxes are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year of the levy. The County apportions
secured property tax revenue in accordance with the alternate method of distribution prescribed by
Section 4701 (et al) of the State Revenue and Taxation Code (The Teeter Plan). This aternate
method provides for crediting each applicable fund with its total secured taxes upon completion of the
secured tax roll, approximately October 1st of each year.

Under the aternate apportionment method, specified amounts of penalties and interest collected on
delinquent secured taxes are held in the Tax Losses Reserve Agency Fund (TLRF). Thisreserveis
used to offset the impact of accumulated delinquency remaining at year-end. The County's
management believes that any ownership rights to the TLRF the County may have, are effective only
upon transfer or to the extent of losses related to the sale of tax defaulted property. The County has
the authority to transfer any amounts in the fund that exceed a legally defined threshold, which when
calculated was $5,138,000 at June 30, 2002. The year-end balance in the TLRF was $27,095,000.
Amounts in the TLRF are considered to be held in a custodial capacity for the participants in the
County's Teeter Plan.

. Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers.
Loans are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon
consolidation and are referred to as either “due to/from other funds’ (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds’ (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances’. Advances
between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and
are not available financial resources.

Services provided, deemed to be a market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide presentation.

. Vacation and Sick L eave

Under terms of union contracts, County employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying
amounts. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation hours.
Employees are not reimbursed for accumulated sick leave except management employees who are
eligible for a payoff of unused sick leave accruas at resignation. Management employees must have
a balance of at least 70.0 percent of their sick leave accruals and have been employed three years or
more to be eligible for this benefit. The maximum amount payable under this Sick Leave Incentive
Plan is 50.0 percent of accrued sick leave, however, the amount of sick leave payable is considered de
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minimis. Accordingly, no accrual for sick leave has been made in the accompanying basic financia
Statements.

Accrued vacation at June 30, 2002, is valued at $42,060,000, which includes $34,761,000 attributable
to the General and Specia Revenue Funds, $7,031,000 recorded in Enterprise Funds and $268,000
recorded in the Pension Trust Fund. Amounts attributable to the General and Special Revenue Funds
are expected to be claimed in future periods and paid with future resources. Accordingly, this
liability is reflected in the government-wide statement of net assets. In the proprietary funds and the
Pension Trust Fund, accumulated vacation is recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits
accrue to employees. In compliance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated
Absences, the amounts reported include estimated employer liability for taxes and workers
compensation premiums.

P. Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

2. FUND EQUITY
A. Restatement of Fund Equity/Net Assets

Fund Reclassifications

Agency Funds — During the current year, the County evaluated its agency funds and moved funds that
did not meet the definition of an agency fund under GASB Statement No. 34 to the General Fund,
nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds and private-purpose trust fund. Previously
the County had included the following activities in agency funds: road improvement fee receipts,
receipts from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and receipts from benefit
districts.

Expendable Trust Funds — GASB Statement No. 34 eliminated the use of expendable trust funds to
account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity for other governmental units. Assets held
on behaf of the City of Oakley Redevelopment Agency in connection with the Jurisdictiona
Transfers Agreement have been retroactively reclassified to a private-purpose trust fund.

Employee Medical Insurance Internal Service Fund — The County evaluated the Employee Medica
Insurance Internal Service Fund and determined that it was no longer going to charge other
departments on a cost-reimbursement basis for the administration activities related to its health plan,
supplemental life insurance, and state disability insurance and its employees' video display terminal
benefits. As a result, the functions related to these activities were reclassified from the Internal
Service Fund to the General Fund at the beginning of the year. The remaining functions were
terminated during the year.
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Other Adjustments

Public Financing Authority - The County made an adjustment in the amount of $3,355,000 to the
Public Financing Authority’s fund balance to adjust for amounts that should have been paid by the
Public Facilities Corporation. The County made an adjustment in the amount of $662,000 to the
Public Financing Authority’ s fund balance to adjust for the lease revenue bond cost of issuance to the
County Hospital Enterprise Fund.

Interfund Advances - The County made an adjustment to the Flood Control nonmajor special revenue
fund to adjust a prior year's advance in the amount of $600,000 to reflect receipts on an advance
made in a prior fiscal year. In addition, the County made an adjustment of $6,801,000 to nonmajor
governmental fundsto record previous year’ s interfund advances within the Flood Control Funds.

Enterprise Fund Capital Assets - During the year, the County performed a detailed analysis of the
enterprise funds' capital assets and initiated cost adjustments to record the proper book value of its
capital assets.

Housing Authority Enterprise Fund Adjustments - During the year, the Housing Authority wrote off
prior year construction in progress costs totaling $691,000 that were originally associated with the
Low Rent Aided Housing Program but did not directly enhance its value. The Housing Authority
also adjusted beginning deferred revenue balance related to its Community Development Block Grant
and Rental Rehabilitation programs ($621,000), recorded a notes payable ($185,000), and adjusted
beginning net assets related to the capital grant program ($125,000).

Other Miscellaneous Adjustments - The County made miscellaneous adjustments to the nonmajor
governmental funds to adjust prior year’'s activity for the Child Development Program ($122,000),
revenue accrual adjustments in the Pension Obligation Bond Fund ($37,000), the Assessment District
Debt Service Fund ($10,000), and the Assessment District Capital Projects Fund ($19,000). The
County also made adjustments to the Redevelopment Agency in the amount of $974,000 in the
Special Revenue Funds and $122,000 in the Capital Projects Funds for land held for resale.

Pension Trust Fund Adjustments

Paulson Lawsuit Settlement — The Pension Trust Fund's beginning net assets were reduced by
$27,600,000 as a result of the Paulson Lawsuit settlement (see Note 16).

City of Pittsburg — The beginning net assets were decreased by $810,000 for an amount still owed to
CalPERS for membership withdrawal plus the remaining contract balance owed by the City of
Pittsburg for prior service, as well as the reduction of the designations for facilities/system
enhancements and capital outlay that were used by CCCERA during the initial phase of the office
expansion project in 2000.
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Summary

The impact of the restatements on the fund ba ances/net assets as previously reported is presented below:

Nonmgjor Hedth Nonmgjor
Gengd  Governmenta County Maintenance Enterprise
Fund Funds Hospitd Organization Funds
Fund b ances/net assats, June 30, 2001,
as previoudy reported $ 144,607 257,017 23566 5,286 51,825
Resaements
Fund redassifications
Agency Funds 6,530 40,274 50
Expendable Trust Funds
Employee Medicd Insurance
Interna Sarvice Fund 755
Other adjustments
Public Financing Authority 4,017
Interfund Advance (6,201)
Copitd Assts 184 73 99
Housing Authority (1,622
Miscdlaneous 1,040
Pengon Trust Fund adjustments:
Paulson Lanalit Satlement
City of Aittsourg
Totd restatements 7,285 39,130 184 73 (643)
Fund balancesnet assts, June 30, 2001,
asredaed $ 151,892 296,147 25,420 5,359 51,182
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Internd Pengon Expendeble Privae-
Savice Trust Trugt Purpose
Funds Fund Funds Trust Fund
2497 2,931,262 6,962
2,885
(6,962 6,962
(755
(27,600)
(810)
(755) (28,410) (6,962) 9,847

1,742 2,902,852 9,847
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B. Schedule of Beginning Net Assets for Governmental Activities on the Government-wide
Statement of Activities

Thefdlowingis arecondiliation of beginning fund ba ances, as previoudy reported for governmenta fundsto
beginning net assats reported for governmentd activities on the satement of adtivities

Fund bd ances, beginning of the yeer, as previoudy reported $ 401,624
Change in accounting principles and prior period adjustments,

asnoted 46,415
Internd sarvice funds, asretated 8574
Capitd astsreported inthe generd fixed assats

account group a June 30, 2001 $ 586,239
Record infragtructure assats 286,475
Record infrestructure assets - accumulated depreciation (58,633)
Record accumulated depreciation for structures,

improvements and equipment (249,157)
Record congtruction in progressfor roads and drainege 18,899
Correct entries mede on equipmeant in prior years 654 584,472
Net penson as=t 293,558
Interest payable at June 30, 2001 (3,746)

Long-term obligations reported inthe generd long-term
debot account group & June 30, 2001 (Excludes daime
Payable - Reported with Internd Service Funds) (585,095)

Revenue earned but not conddered available
previousto July 1, 2001 25,817

Net assets, beginning of year, asreported
inthe statement of activities $ 771,619

C. Reservefor Prepaid Items and Deposits

Reserves are less than total prepaid items and deposits because the General Fund advanced $409,000
to subgrantees who will use the funds for federal programs during fiscal year 2002-2003. As funds
are spent, the federal government reimburses the County.
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3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Deficit Net Assets

The Child Development Special Revenue Fund, which is reported as part of the nonmajor governmental
funds, had a fund balance deficit of $79,000 at June 30, 2002. The Child Development Program incurred
increased costs while the Program was being reorganized. The activities of the restructured program are
projected to restore the Fund’ s fund bal ance to a positive balance in fiscal year 2002-2003.

Three Internal Service Funds had net assets deficits at June 30, 2002. The Medical Liability Insurance
Fund had a deficit of $4,137,000. The County provided $4,000,000 in fiscal year 2002-2003 to reduce
the deficit and plans to further evaluate funding options. The Workers Compensation Insurance Funds,
County General and Fire Protection, had deficits of $18,321,000 and $683,000, respectively. The County
is currently negotiating with labor representatives to strengthen cost containment for the workers
compensation program and has increased rates to enhance revenues for fiscal years 2002-2003 and 2003-
2004 so asto reverse the negative trend in net assets.

The Sheriff Law Enforcement Training Center Enterprise Fund, which is reported as part of the nonmajor
enterprise funds, had a deficit of $675,000. The deficit is the result of one-time start-up costs. The
Sheriff-Coroner expects to recoup these costs from future training program tuition fees collected.

4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The cash balances of substantially all funds, except the Pension and Investment Trust Funds, are
maintained in the County’s internal pool and invested by the County Treasurer. Income from pooled
investments is allocated to the funds based on average daily balances. As permitted by the Government
Code, legally separate entities that are not part of this reporting entity also have individual investment
accounts in the County Treasury. These accounts are separate from the pool and are reported in the
Investment Trust Fund. Specific investments are acquired for these individual entities at their direction
and the income from and changes in the value of those investments affect only the entity for which they
were acquired. The Retirement Board directs the investment activity of the Pension Trust Fund.

Cash and investments at June 30, 2002 (December 31, 2001, for the Pension Trust Fund and March 31,
2002, for the Housing Authority), are reported as follows (in thousands):

Deposits Investments Tota

Primary Government $ 12,032 626,662 638,694
Children and Families First Commission 5,381 33,558 38,939
Pension Trust Fund 5,894 2,713,091 2,718,985
Investment Trust Fund 35,253 798,336 833,589
Private-Purpose Trust Fund 6,162 2,986 9,148
Agency Funds 129,591 129,591

Total $ 64,722 4,304,224 4,368,946
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A. Deposits

Depositsinclude bank deposits at a carrying amount of $61,803,000. The balance reported by various
financia ingtitutions was $75,846,000. The difference between the bank balance and the carrying
amount represents outstanding checks and deposits in transit. Of the bank balance, $1,358,000 was
covered by Federal depository insurance and $74,488,000 was collateralized by the pledging financial
ingtitutions as required by Section 53652 of the California Government Code.

According to Government Code Section 53601, bank obligations such as Certificates of Deposit are
considered investments. However, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principlesin the
United States of America, the County has classified Certificates of Deposit in the amount of
$2,919,000 as deposits. Of the Certificates of Deposit balance, $1,308,000 was insured and
$1,611,000 was collateralized by the pledging financial institutions as required by Section 53652 of
the California Government Code.

Under the California Government Code, afinancia ingtitution is required to secure depositsin excess
of $100,000 made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities held in the form of an
undivided collateral pool. The market value of the pledged securitiesin the collateral pool must equal
at least 110.0 percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. Californialaw also allows
financial institutions to secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of 150.0 percent of the secured public deposits. The collateral must be held at the
pledging bank’s trust department or other bank, acting as the pledging bank’s agent, in the public
agency’ s name.

B. Investments

Statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, federal agencies,
municipalities, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation or P-1 by Moody's
Commercial Paper Record, bankers acceptances, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase
agreements, medium-term notes, negotiable certificates of deposit, mutual funds and investments in
accordance with the statutory provisions governing the issuance of bonds.

Pension Trust Fund investments are authorized by the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937.
Statutes authorize a "prudent investor" guideline as to the form and types of investments, which may
be purchased.

The County's investments (including the Investment Trust Fund) and those of the Pension Trust Fund
are categorized separately on the following page to indicate the level of custodia credit risk assumed
by each investment portfolio for their respective year-ends. Category 1 includes investments that are
insured or registered, or securities held by the County or its agent in the County's name. Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered investments with the securities held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the County's name or in the agent's nominee name with subsidiary records
listing the County as the legal owner. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments,
with the securities held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the County's
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name. Investments not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book form cannot be
categorized.

The Loca Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight responsibility for the State Treasurer’s
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The Board consists of five members as designated by State
Statute. The value of the pool shares in LAIF, which may be withdrawn, is determined on an
amortized cost basis, which is different from the fair value of the County’s position in the pool.
Information is not available on if the mutual funds in which the County has invested, had used, held
or wrote derivative products during the year ended June 30, 2002.

Investments at fair value as of June 30, 2002 (December 31, 2001, for the Pension Trust Fund and
March 31, 2002, for the Housing Authority), are shown as follows (in thousands):

Category
1 2 Tota
County (Including Investment Trust
Fund)
Negotiable certificates of deposit $ 50,000 4,000 54,000
U.S. government securities 195,849 24,176 220,025
Commercia paper 142,527 19,349 161,876
M edium-term bonds 11,050 29,467 40,517
Local obligation bonds 2,144 2,144
Bankers' acceptances 10,343 10,343
Repurchase agreements 329,372 329,372
Total categorized investments  $ 411,913 406,364 818,277
Uncategorized I nvestments:
State Treasurer's investment pool 547,504
Guaranteed investment contracts 110,252
Mutual funds 81,542
Tota investments 1,557,575
Pension Trust Fund:
Domestic stocks $ 795,786 795,786
International stocks 44,413 44,413
Corporate & government bonds 588,847 588,847
International bonds 79,707 79,707
Repurchase agreements 13,734 13,734
Total categorized investments  $ 1,508,753 13,734 1,522,487
Uncategorized I nvestments:
Mutual funds 872,521
Real estate 267,431
Alternative investments 50,652
Total investments 2,713,091
Children and Families First
Commission
U.S. government securities $ 33,558 33,558
Total Investments $ 4,304,224
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C. Other Financial Instruments

In accordance with California statutes, the County may invest in a wide variety of investment
instruments, including asset-backed securities, such as. collateralized mortgage obligations and
principal-only strips and forward contracts.

The Treasurer holds principal-only strip instruments for the benefit of some County school districts.
Those school districts utilize the services of an independent financial advisor in determining their
investment strategy.

The CCCERA has investments with trustees who hold part of their portfolio in government and
corporate obligations consisting of asset-backed securities, floating rate notes, constant maturity index
Adjustable Rate Mortgages (ARMSs), Collateralized Mortgage Obligations and LIBOR indexed
ARMs.

As of June 30, 2002, the County’s proportionate share of structured notes and asset-backed securities
held by LAIF was $16,896,000 or 3.086 percent of the County’sinvestment in LAIF.

Information is not available on if the various mutua funds in which the County and CCCERA have
invested, had used, held or wrote derivative financial products during the year.

The investments discussed above, which are included in the accompanying financial statements,
represent 10.0 percent of total investments. The Treasurer’s investment policy was approved by the
Board of Supervisors. In accordance with Government Code Sections 27130-27137, an investment
oversight committee reviews the quarterly investment reports prepared by the Treasurer.

D. SecuritiesLending by the Employees Retirement Association (Pension Trust Fund)

The CCCERA'’s investment policy permits the use of a securities lending program with its principal
custodian bank. The CCCERA lends domestic and international bonds and equities to various
brokers for collateral that will be returned for the same securities plus a fee in the future. The
custodian bank provides loss indemnification to the CCCERA if the borrower fails to return the
securities. The custodian bank manages the securities lending program and receives cash and
securities as collateral. The collateral cash cannot be invested and the collateral securities cannot be
pledged or sold by the CCCERA without borrower default. Securities on loan must be collateralized
at 102.0 percent and 105.0 percent of the fair value of domestic securities and non-domestic
securities, respectively. There are no restrictions on the amount of securities, which can be loaned at
onetime. The term to maturity of the security loans is generally matched with the term to maturity of
the securities collateral. Such matching existed at December 31, 2001. There were no losses
associated with securities lending transactions during the year. At December 31, 2001, CCCERA has
no credit risk exposure to borrowers. The fair value of investments on loan at December 31, 2001, is
$115,197,000, which was collateralized by cash and securities in the amount of $117,874,000.
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5. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at year-end of the County’s major individual funds and nonmajor and internal service funds
in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows (in

thousands):

Interna Tota
Receivables Generd Nonmajor Service Governmenta
Governmental Activities Fund Funds Funds Activities
Taxes $ 9489 1,479 10,968
Accounts 125,907 10,177 1,815 137,899
Advances 89 89
Gross Receivables 135,485 11,656 1,815 148,956
Less: Allowance for uncollectibles (4 (4
Total Receivables (net) $ 135481 11,656 1,815 148,952
Hedlth Total
Receivables- Maintenance Nonmajor Business-type
Business-type Activities: Hospital ~ Organization Funds Activities
Accounts $ 178,565 901 3,172 182,638
Less: Allowance for uncollectibles (137,322) (137,322)
Total Receivables (net) $ 41,243 901 3,172 45,316

Governmental funds report deferred revenues in connection with receivables for revenues not considered
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental and enterprise funds also defer

revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.
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At June 30, 2002, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported were as
follows (in thousands):

Unavaileble Unearned
Governmental Activities
Genera Fund:
Notesreceivable $ 29,246
Advances not yet earned 14134
Other receivables and advances 835
Resources received thet do not yet meet the criteriafor
revenue recognition 3,589
Nonmgjor Funds:
Notes receivabl e (Redeve opment Agency) 1,740
Notesreceivable 5,539
Other advances 49
Resourcesthat do not yet meet the criteriafor
revenue recognition 1,937 17,723
Total Governmental Activities $ 38,462 36,330
Budnesstype Activities
County Hospital Enterprise Fund:
Resources received thet do not yet meet the criteriafor
revenue recognition $ 29,352
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Resources received that do not yet meet the criteriafor
revenue recoghition 7,706
Total Busnesstype Activities $ 37,058
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INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Receivables/ Payables

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):

Due To/From Other Funds

June 30, 2002

Recavable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Generd Fund Nonmgor Governmental Funds 30,633
County Hospital Enterprise 15,737
Heelth Maintenance Organization Enterprise 200
Nonmg or Enterprise Funds 1171
Internal Service Funds 995
Agency Funds 16,465
Investment Trust Fund 1,107
Private-Purpose Trust Fund 3
66311
Nonmg or Governmental Funds Generd Fund 7,981
Nonmg or Governmental Funds 2,083
County Hospital Enterprise 531
Hedlth Maintenance Organization Enterprise 24
Nonmgor Enterprise Funds 7
Internal Service Funds 116
Agency Funds 970
Investment Trust Fund 33
12,075
County Hospital Enterprise Generd Fund 4,807
Nonmgor Governmental Funds 659
Heelth Mantenance Organization Enterprise 5410
Nonmgor Enterprise Funds 116
Internal Service Funds 122
Agency Funds R YA
11,131
Hedlth Ma ntenance Organization Enterprise Generd Fund 39
Nonmgor Governmental Funds 1
County Hospital Enterprise 3735
Nonmgor Enterprise Funds 4
Internal Service Funds 5
Agency Funds 32
3,816
Nonmg or Enterprise Funds Generd Fund 1
Nonmgor Enterprise Funds A
Agency Funds 2
97
Internal Sarvice Funds Generd Fund 1,267
Nonmg or Governmental Funds 553
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[ nvestment Trust Fund Generd Fund > 6
Nonmg or Governmental Funds 37

Agency Funds 129%6

1,339

Private-Purpose Trust Fund Gengrd Fund 3
Agency Funds 2

5

Agency Funds Agency Funds 6,559
Gengrd Fund 2,234

Nonmg or Governmental Funds 509

County Hospital Enterprise 379

Hedth Mantenance Organization Enterprise 56

Nonmg or Enterprise Funds 1

Interna Service Funds 37

Investment Trust Fund 22

9,797

Penson Trust Fund* Gengrd Fund 1,884
1,834

Subtotal 108,275

* Adjustment to Generd Fund needed due to Pension Trust Fund
being reported as of Decaber 31, 2001 260

Total $ 108,535

Advances To/From Other Funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Nonmgjor Governmental Funds $ 138

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds 4,883
Total $ 5,021

The interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that: (1) interfund goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system,
(3) payments between funds are made and (4) interfund loans. Interfund balances in the agency funds
result from interfund borrowings.
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Transfers

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, lease payments or debt service, subsidies of various
County operations and re-allocations of special revenues. The following schedule briefly summarizes the
County’ s transfer activity (in thousands):

A. Between Governmental and Business-type Activities:

Transfer From Transfer To Amount  Purpose
General Fund County Hospital Enterprise ~ $ 31,401  Provide subsidy to cover portion of
Hospital's operation.
General Fund Health Maintenance 4811 Provide subsidy to cover portion of HMO's
Organization Enterprise operation.
General Fund Internal Service Funds 3,000 Transfer funds from the General Fund to

the Medical Liability Internal Service Fund.

County Hospital Enterprise* General Fund 22,383 Transfer funds to reimburse the Genera
Fund for intergovernmental transfer (IGT)
payments, including a $702,000 prior year
expenditure accrual.

County Hospital Enterprise Nonmajor Governmental 6,042 Transfer a portion of the Saaries and
Fund Benefits Expense to Pension Obligation
Bond.
Health Maintenance Nonmajor Governmental 240 Transfer a portion of the Salaries and
Organization Enterprise Fund Benefits Expense to Pension Obligation
Bond.
County Hospital Enterprise Nonmajor Governmental 443  Transfer of funds to cover the County
Fund Hospita and Health  Maintenance

Organization's pro rata share of certain

project lease payments.
Health Maintenance Nonmajor Governmental 196 Transfer of funds to cover the County
Organization Enterprise Fund Hospitaak and Hedlth  Maintenance
Organization's pro rata share of certain

project lease payments.

Nonmajor Governmental County Hospital Enterprise 1,225 Transfer interest earnings from the PFA to
Funds subsidize the Los Medanos project.
Nonmajor Enterprise Nonmajor Governmental 70 Transfer a portion of the Salaries and
Funds Funds Benefits Expense to Pension Obligation
Fund.
$__ 69811

* The County's required transfer payment to the State Disproportionate Share and Emergency Services Fund was
$24,064,000 and was recorded in the General Fund as a health expenditure. The revenue is recorded in the Hospital
Enterprise Fund as patient service revenue. Reimbursement to the General Fund is recorded as an operating transfer
from the Hospital to the General Fund.
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B. Between Fundswithin the Government or Busin%s-typeActiviti&e“’:

Transfer From Transfer To Amount Purpose
Genera Fund Nonmgjor Governmental 1,300 Transfer funds to library to pay operating
Funds EXDENSES.
Nonmgjor Governmental 34  Provide a one-time appropriation to the Library
Funds from Digtrict IV.
Nonmgjor Governmental 329 Transfer property tax.
Funds
Nonmgjor Governmental 500 Transfer greater than expected state mandated
Funds cost reimbursements for automated systems
development.
Nonmagjor Governmental 11 Transfer fundsto pay for capita outlay.
Funds
Nonmg or Governmental 60 Provide an annud subsidy to cover operating
Funds expenses of the Automated Warrant 1D program.
Nonmgjor Governmental 24,352  Transfer a portion of the Salaries and Benefits
Funds Expenses to Pension Obligation Bond.
Nonmg or Governmental 143 Transfer funds for Sheriff's Patrol usage of
Funds helicopter and communication services.
Nonmagjor Governmental 10,406 Transfer of funds to cover the General Fund's
Funds pro rata share of certain project costs.
Nonmajor Governmental Generd Fund 1,000 Transfer fundsto pay for capita outlay.
Funds
Generd Fund 125 Trander funds for mentd hedth services
performed.
General Fund 60 To trandfer contract housing fees from Land
Devel opment to Housing Rehab.
Nonmg or Governmental 101 Transfer  Nationa  Pollutant  Discharge
Funds Elimination funds to the Road Fund.
N([):ijg'SOY Governmental 60  Transfer funds from permanent fund to Library.
n
Nonmgjor Governmental 206  Transfer fundsto pay for capita outlay.
Funds
Nonmgjor Governmental 3,032 Transfer fundsto cover debt service payments.

Funds

@

These transfers were diminated in the consolidation, by column, for the Governmental and Business-type activities.



COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
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June 30, 2002
Transter From Transter To Amount Purpose
Nonmajor Governmental Nonmajor Governmental 1,122 Transfer a portion of the Salaries and Benefits
Funds Funds Expense to Pension Obligation Bond.

Nonmajor Governmental 15  Transfer available funds from a Service Area

Funds Specia Revenue Fund to the Assessment

District Special Revenue Fund.
Total $ 42,856

The County pays a subsidy to the County Hospital and Health Maintenance Organization Enterprise Funds to

provide resources for operating costs which are in excess of operating revenues. Subsidies for the past three
years are as follows (in thousands):

Y ear Ended June 30, Total Subsidy
2000 $ 17,856
2001 29,963
2002 36,212

Certain health and welfare realignment revenues, previously recorded in the General Fund and transferred via
subsidy to the Hospital and the Health Maintenance Organization, are now recorded directly to those funds as
intergovernmental revenue. In fiscal year 2001-2002, these intergovernmental revenues were $18,879,000 for
the Hospital and $2,757,000 for the Health Maintenance Organization.
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7. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2002 (March 31, 2002, for the Housing Authority), was
as follows (in thousands):

Bdance
Juy 1, 2001 Tranders& Bdance
(esredaed) Additions  Reiremants  Adjusments  June 30, 2002

Governmental Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and essaments $ 59,997 117 (5] 60,108
Condruction in progress 22,810 30,692 53,502
Totd cgpitd assets, not being
depreciated 82,807 30,809 (6) 113,610
Capital assts being deprediated:
Infrastructure 286,475 17,619 304,04
Sructures and improvements 420,496 25,327 (84 445,739
Eoui pment* 102,489 14,922 (14,696) 102,715
Totd cgpitd asts, being
depreciated 809,460 57,868 (14,780) 852,548
Less accumulated deprecidion for:
Infragtructure (58,639 (6,235) (64,873
Sructures and improvements (187,952 (19,097) 82 (206,967)
Eoui pment* (61,205 (10,082 10,951 (60,336)
Totd accumulated depreciation (307,795 (35,414) 11,033 (332,176)
Tota capitd assts being
depreciated, net 501,665 244 (3,747) 520,372
Governmentd ativities capitd
asHds net ¢ 584,472 53,263 (3,73 633,982
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Business-type Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction In progress

Total capital assets, not being
depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures and improvements
Equipment*
Total capital assets, being
depreciated

L ess accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements
Equipment*

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital
assets, net

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

3

$

June 30, 2002
Balance

July 1, 2001 Transfers & Balance
(asrestated)  Additions Retirements Adjustments  June 30, 2002
10,464 10,464
25,051 14,267 (2,779) 36,539
35,515 14,267 (2,779) 47,003
226,882 389 2,000 229,271
37,300 1,491 (8,981) 779 30,589
264,182 1,880 (8,981) 2,779 259,860
(90,076) (8,631) (98,707)
(18,505) (2,752) 4,635 (16,622)
(108581)  (11,383) 4,635 (115,329)
155,601 (9,503) (4,346) 2,779 144,531
191,534

191,116 4,764 (4,346)

* Asindicated in Note 1.K, the County increased the capitalization threshold for equipment from $3,000 to
$5,000. Consequently, the equipment costing less than $5,000 was removed from the accounts. The book
value of the equipment removed from the general fixed assets was $1,430,000. The book value of the
equipment removed from the County Hospital Enterprise Fund was $644,000, the Health Maintenance
Organization Enterprise Fund was $6,000 and nonmajor enterprise funds were $5,000.

At July 1, 2001 the County made the following restatements to capital assets (in thousands):
Business-type activities capital assets as reported in the prior year:

Reclassify costsidentified in the structures and improvements to construction

in progress

Record cost adjustments for structures and improvements and equi pment
Record adjustments to accumulated depreciation for structures and improvements

and equipment

Business-type activities capital assets asrestated - July 1, 2001

$ 185,993
431
1,042
3,650
$__ 101116

The Pension Trust Fund had net capital assets of $574,000. This consisted of leasehold improvements

and office equipment.
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Depreciation
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows (in thousands):

General government $
Public protection

Health and sanitation

Public assistance

Education

Public ways and facilities

Recreation and culture

Total depreciation expense - governmental functions $

Depreciation expense was charged to the business-type functions as follows (in thousands):

County Hospital $
Health Maintenance Organization
Nonmajor enterprise funds

Total depreciation expense - business-type functions $

8. SHORT-TERM NOTESPAYABLE

20,767
8,714
229
689
369
4,428
218

35,414

6,530
14
4,839

11,383

On June 30, 2002, the County had tax and revenue anticipation notes outstanding in the amount of
$70,000,000 with interest at 3.0 percent per annum. The notes were issued September 6, 2001, and will
be redeemed October 4, 2002. Interest is payable on September 5, 2002, and at maturity. The redemption
monies were from taxes and other revenues transferred to a fiscal agent during the fiscal year. Total
interest incurred on these notes during fiscal year 2001-2002 was $1,717,000. These notes were issued to

finance seasona cash flow requirements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.

As of July 1, 2001, the County had tax and revenue anticipation notes outstanding in the amount of

$55,000,000. Thisamount was repaid on October 1, 2001.
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9. PAYABLES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at year-end were as follows (in thousands):
Total
General Nonmajor Governmental
Governmental Activities: Fund Funds Activities
Accounts $ 17,621 6,297 23,918
Accrued payroll 38,646 6,253 44,899
Tota Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities $ 56,267 12,550 68,817
Hedlth Totd
Maintenance Nonmajor Business-type
Business-type Activities: Hospita Organization Funds Activities
Accounts $ 14,702 14,810 2,324 31,836
Accrued payroll 11,094 496 117 11,707
Total Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities $ 25,796 15,306 2,441 43,543
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10. LEASES
A. Operating L eases

Tota rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2002 (March 31, 2002, for the Housing Authority),
for all operating leases and month-to-month lease arrangements amounted to $9,192,000 for the
General Fund, $294,000 for the nonmajor governmental funds, $2,563,000 for the Hospital Enterprise
Fund, $35,000 for the HMO Enterprise Fund, $134,000 for nonmajor enterprise funds and $258,000
for the Pension Trust Fund.

At June 30, 2002 (March 31, 2002, for the Housing Authority), the future minimum rental payments
required under non-cancelable operating leases for buildings and equipment, other than month-to-
month lease arrangements, are as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Activities Business-type Activites
Nonmajor Hospital Nonmajor
Fiscal Year Generd Governmental Enterprise Enterprise
Ending June 30, Fund Funds Fund Funds* Total

2003 $ 5,878 61 173 4 6,116
2004 5,172 15 111 4 5,302
2005 3,899 4 100 4 4,007
2006 3,094 5 100 3,199
2007 2,365 5 100 2,470
2008-2012 9,835 16 500 10,351
2013-2017 2,555 500 3,055
$ 32,798 106 1,584 12 34,500

* Includes only Housing Authority amounts.

B. Capital Leases

The County has capital lease purchase agreements for various County buildings and improvements
and equipment. The assets acquired under these lease purchase agreements are included in the
County’s capita assets. The costs of these assets were $16,858,000 for buildings and improvements
and $8,413,000 for equipment. The obligations related to these lease purchase agreements are also
included in the County’ s long-term obligations, Note 11.

New capital lease obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 were $9,907,000. Of this
amount, $7,415,000 was used to obtain various assets during the fiscal year. Remaining unspent
proceeds will be used in subsequent years.
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11. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the year ended June 30, 2002, (in
thousands):

61

Bdance Bdance  Anounts
dy 1, June30, DueWithin
2001 Additions  Retirements 2002 OneYear
Governmental adtivities
Compensated absences $ 31,160 3,601 34,761 3476
Cams paydle 71,433 57,912 (41922 87428 17,817
Capitd lease dbligations 8,938 9,907 (2657) 16238 3211
Catificates of participaion 61,465 (2800) 58665 2,740
Pension bonds payable 297,340 (15915 281425 16,915
Notes payable 6 6)
Other bonds payable 8,506 (450) 8,055 915
Leaserevenue bonds 102,245 12,650 (3475 111,420 3,855
Tax dlocation bonds 55,360 (83%) 54525 A5
Specid assesament debt 20,276 (1,687) 18583 1,367
Tota governmenta activities
- longterm dbligations $ 656,783 84,070 (69,747) 671,106 51,241
Busnesstypeadctivities
Compensated absences $ 652 509 7,031 703
Medicd lighility danmspayable 8,583 (172 (784) 7,627 1,262
Capitd lease dbligations 2,748 (602) 2,146 600
Certificates of participation 135,940 (3390) 132550 3570
Notes payable 1,044 (60) 934 65
Leese revenue bonds 32,010 (250) 31,760 710
Totd businesstype activities
- longrterm obligations-gross 186,847 337 (5086) 182,098 6,910
Caoitdized premiuns, discounts and
deferred amounts on refundings (15,012 734 (14,278) (703)
Totd businesstype activities
- long-term obli getions-net § 17185 337 4352) 167,820 6,207



COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2002

Individual issues of bonds, notes and certificates of participation outstanding at June 30, 2002 are as
follows (in thousands):

Annud Origind Outdanding
Interest Principa Issue a June 30,
Type of indebtedness (purpose) Maturity Rates Ingtd | ments Anmount 2002
Governmental activities
Pens on obligation bonds (4): 2014 5556.80% $ 1591533280 $ 313640 $ 281,425
Catificates of participation (1):
1992 Consolidated capitd projects 2018 550950 1,555-1,625 37,300 25,870
1997 Capitd projects 2021 355510 655-2,610 34,910 32,795
58,665
Lease revenue bonds (1):
1998 Leaserevenue 2025 380515 525-1,745 24,695 23,385
1999 Leaserevenue 2028 4.00-5.25 1,095-3,350 66,560 58,120
2001A Lesserevenue 2026 315415 335900 13,905 13,570
2001B Leaserevenue 2017 4.255.20 80-250 3,695 3,695
2002 Lesserevenue 2027 2.755.00 155-760 12,650 12,650
111,420
Tax dlocation bonds (3):
1992 Tax dlocation bond 2024 5.25-7.00 155-645 29,315 7425
1995A Tax dlocation bond 2026 3.90-7.00 25-115 1,645 1,505
1995B Tax dlocation bond 2026 4.256.90 45200 2,735 2,525
1999 Tax dlocation bond 2029 4.00-5.125 475-3,250 44,615 43,070
54,525
Soedid assesamant debt with
government commitmant (5):
Kenangton 91-1 2013 5.25-6.00 150-300 4684 2,380
PAeasant Hill 87-1 2005 6.80-7.30 620-770 8,785 2,155
Peasat Hill BART 93-5 2015 5.44-6.93 55-140 1530 1,195
San Ramon 89-1 2005 755-7.85 750 930 265
Wayside Plaza 91-2 2007 7.00-7.20 135-190 2,010 770
Peasat Hill BART CFD 92-1 2016 8.00 7-14 171 144
Peasant Hill BART CFD 98-1 2017 4.20-5.10 135-3,075 4785 4475
Norris Canyon 2001-1 2032 4.106.10 110-495 7,220 7,205
18,539
Other bonds payable (2):
Recrestion and park 2005 4.255.10 445510 4485 1,465
Sormdrainage 2005 425 5 200 15
CCC PFA revenue bonds 2001 2017 4.00-5.69 360-570 6,575 6,575
8,055
Total Governmental activities $ 532,679
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Annud Origind Outstanding
Interest Principa Isue a June 30,
Type of indebtedness (purpose) Maurity Rates Ingalments Armount 2002
Businesstype activities
Notes payable (6):
Sate Dept. of Transportation 2011 6.06% B53 $ 558 393
Sate Dept. of Trangportation 2016 5.08 13-25 300 251
Sate Dept. of Trangportation 2010 548 1323 200 155
Promissory Note 2059 752 185 185
o34
Lease revenue bonds (1):
Hospitd Enterprise
1999 Los Medanos 2028 300525 150-505 8,125 7,655
2001A LosMedanos 2026 315415 10-265 4125 4,025
2001B CC Regiond Medicd Center 2027 425520 445-1,365 20,080 20,080
31,760
Certificates of participation, net (2):
1997 Cettificates of participation 2023 3756.00 3,390-10,185 145,340 132,550
Total Busnesstypeactivities 165,294

NOTES:

(1) Debt service payments are made from lease payments by the County General, Special Revenue

and Hospital Enterprise Funds to the PFC and the PFA.

(2) Debt service payments are made from restricted property taxes and other revenues recorded in the

General and Debt Service Funds.

(3) Debt service payments are made from tax increment financing.

(4) Debt service payments are made from all County revenues.

(5) Debt service payments are made from specia assessments levies on properties in each assessment
district. The County administers the assessment and repayment of these bonds. Since early
redemption is alowed, there may be differences between the earnings on money received from
property owners wishing to pay off their debt early and the interest obligation that accumulates on
their debt between the time they submit funds to the County and the next available redemption
date, as stated in the bonds officia statements.

The County has higtorically funded this

difference and to that extent may be obligated in some manner for this debt.

(6) Debt service payments are made from operating revenues.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. County

management believes that the County isin compliance with al significant limitations and restrictions.
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Following is a schedule of debt payment requirements to maturity for governmental activities for long-
term obligations, excluding compensated absences and claims payable that have indefinite maturities,
outstanding at June 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Fscd Year
Ending Capital Lease Obligations  Catificaties of Participation Pension Bonds Payable
June 30, Principd Interest Principd Interest Principd Interest
2003 $ 3211 70 2,740 3,080 16,915 18,351
2004 2,20 646 2,80 293 18,000 17,269
2005 1575 540 3,040 2,797 14,485 16,099
2006 1,037 473 3,215 2,643 17,730 15,150
2007 1,072 415 3,30 2479 21,295 13971
2008-2012 4,859 1,178 14,685 9,852 128,400 46,375
2013-2017 1,342 403 15,900 6,081 64,600 6,118
2018-2022 852 77 12,805 1,569
Totd ¢ 16238 4522 58,665 31,444 281,425 133,333
Fscd Year
Ending Other Bonds Payable Lease Revenue Bonds
June 30, Principd Interest Principd Interest
2003 $ 915 372 3,855 5,230
2004 1,010 329 4,180 5,078
2005 1,015 282 4,350 4,915
2006 530 247 4515 4,744
2007 570 222 4,705 4,564
2008-2012 1,905 820 2,325 19,838
2013-2017 2110 297 24,700 14,237
2018-2022 19,920 8,728
2023-2027 21,005 3,260
2028-2032 1,865 93
Totd § 8,055 2,569 111,420 70,737
FHeed Year
Ending Tax AllocationBonds ~ Specid Assessment Bonds
June 30, Principd Interest Principd Interest
2003 $ 945 2,964 1,367 1,082
2004 995 2917 1,568 B4
2005 1,040 2,868 1,648 877
2006 1,075 2,815 793 797
2007 1135 2,760 824 748
2008-2012 6,650 12,805 2,562 3215
2013-2017 8,720 10,679 4,752 2492
2018-2022 11,520 7,801 1,225 1,357
2023-2027 15170 4,041 1,650 99
2028-2032 7,275 383 2,200 b1
Totd § 5455 50,038 18,589 12,832
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As of June 30, 2002, annual debt service requirements of business-type activities to maturity except for
medical liability claims payable are as follows (in thousands):

Fscd Year Hogpitd

Ending Capitd Lease Obligations  Cartificates of Participation Notes Payable

June 30, Principd Interest Principd Interest Principd Interest
2003 $ 600 123 3570 7,097 65 58
2004 730 83 3,730 6,919 69 55
2005 816 47 3,925 6,718 Ie) 50
2006 4,130 6,506 79 46
2007 4,350 6,268 A 41
2008-2012 25,715 28129 363 133
2013-2017 33435 19,403 &4 76
2018-2022 43510 9,033 70
2023-2027 10,185 280 70
2028-2032 70
2033-2037 70
2038-2042 70
2043-2047 70
2048-2052 70
2053-2057 70
2058-2060 185 26

Totd g 2146 259 132550 90,353 94 1,051
FHsd Year

Ending Lease Revenue Bonds

June 30, Principd Interest
2003 $ 710 1543
2004 730 1514
2005 760 1,484
2006 795 1,453
2007 825 1,420
2008-2012 4,680 6,546
2013-2017 5,80 5337
2018-2022 7,510 3,716
2023-2027 9,355 1592
2028 505 25

Totd $ 3,760 24,630

I ssuance of New Debt

Public Financing Authority

In June 2002, the County of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority issued $12,650,000 in lease
revenue bonds (2002 Series A), with interest rates ranging from 2.75 to 5.00 percent. The costs of
issuance amounted to $412,000. The proceeds will be used to finance various capital projects of Contra
Costa County, purchase a reserve fund surety bond, and pay costs of issuance relating to the 2002 Series
A bonds.
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Defeased Obligations

In prior years, the County has defeased certain obligations by placing a portion of the proceeds of new
debt issuances in irrevocable trusts to provide for al future debt service payments on the refunded
obligations. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability of the defeased debt are not included
on the financia statements of the County. On June 30, 2002, $156,014,000 in outstanding obligations is
considered to be defeased.

Legal Debt Limit

As of June 30, 2002, the County’s debt limit (5 percent of valuation subject to taxation) was $4.674
billion. The total amount of debt applicable to the debt limit was $336 million, net of assets in the debt
service funds and other deductions alowed by law. The resulting legal debt margin was $4.338 billion.

Arbitrage

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions with respect to the issuance of tax-
exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage regulations deal with the investment of all tax-exempt
bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders. Generadly, all
interest paid to bondholders can be retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebates are not reported
and paid to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) at least every five years. The County engages consultants
to perform calculations of excess investment earnings on tax-exempt bonds and as of June 30, 2002, does
not expect to incur aliability.

CONDUIT DEBT

From time to time Multifamily/Single Family Housing Revenue Bonds have been issued in the County’s
name to provide mortgage loans secured by first trust deeds on newly constructed and existing housing
and to provide fundsto builders for construction/remodeling of housing projects.

The bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the County. They are payable solely from payments made
on and secured by a pledge of the acquired mortgage loans or housing units and certain funds and other
monies held for the benefit of the bondholders pursuant to the bond indentures. The County is not
obligated in any manner for repayment of the indebtedness. Accordingly, no liability has been recorded
in the basic financia statements.

As of June 30, 2002, the County had participated in the issuance of twenty-nine series of Multifamily or
Single Family Housing Revenue Bonds. The aggregate principal amount remaining payable for the bonds
issued was $315,966,000.

Not included in the above amount is a defeased issue of $43,115,000.
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13. NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES

The government-wide financial statements and proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements utilize
a net assets presentation. Net assets are categorized as invested capital assets (net of related debt),
restricted and unrestricted.

* Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding
balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets
reduce the balance in this category.

* Restricted net assets — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legidation.

» Unrestricted net assets — This category represents net assets of the County, not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reserves segregate portions of fund balance that are either
not available or have been earmarked for specific purposes. The various reserves are established by
actions of the Board and management and can be increased, reduced or eliminated by similar actions.

As of June 30, 2002, reservations of fund balance are described below:

»  Encumbrances — to reflect the outstanding contractual obligations for which goods and services have
not been received.

* Inventories—to reflect the portion of assets which do not represent available spendable resources.

* Advances to other funds — to reflect the amount due from other funds that are long-term in nature.
Such amounts do not represent available spendable resources.

* Prepaid items and deposits — to reflect amounts paid in advance by the County for goods not yet
received or services not yet performed.

* Land held for resale — to reflect investment in land which does not represent available spendable
resources.

* Housing Projects - to account for financial resources designated for increasing and improving the
supply of housing for persons and families of low or moderate income.

» Debt service — to reflect the funds held by trustees or fiscal agents for future payment of bond
principal and interest or asreserves. These funds are not available for general operations.

»  Nonexpendable Permanent Funds — to reflect the fund' s principa balance which is not expendable.
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14. PERMANENT FUND

The Permanent Fund accounts for the financia activities and balances of donor-restricted endowments for
the County’s libraries. Interest income may be used for the establishment and furnishing of children’s
areas within libraries, literacy programs and the acquisition of books that meet the criteria of the
endowments. In accordance with the terms of the endowments and California Government Code Section
25355, only the interest income may be used; any unused income may be used in a subsequent year. The
amount available for spending, $353,000 at June 30, 2002, is shown on the Statement of Net Assets as
Net Assets Restricted for Permanent Fund - Expendable.

15. EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN
A. Plan Description

The Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan (the plan) governed by the County Employees Retirement
Law of 1937 (the 1937 Act). The plan covers substantially al of the employees of the County, its
special districts, the Housing Authority and thirteen other member agencies. The plan issues stand-
alone financia statementswhich can be directly obtained from its office, asindicated in Note 1.A.

The plan provides for retirement, disability, death and survivor benefits, in accordance with the 1937
Act. Annual cost-of-living adjustments to retirement benefits can be granted by the Retirement Board
as provided by State statutes.

The plan is divided into four separate benefit sections of the 1937 Act. These sections are known as:
General - Tier |, Generd - Tier 1, General - Tier Il and Safety. Tier | includes members not
mandated to be in Tier Il and reciprocal members that elect Tier | membership. Tier 1l includes
members hired on or after August 1, 1980, by the three employers adopting this benefit provision and
their members who elected to transfer from Tier | at that date. Tier 111 was approved by the Board of
Supervisors in January 1998, and implementation began in October 1998. Safety includes members
in active law enforcement, active fire suppression work or certain other “Safety” classifications as
designated by the Retirement Board.

Service retirement benefits are based on age, length of service and final average salary. For the Tiers
I, Il and Safety sections, the retirement benefit is based on a one-year average salary, in accordance
with Section 31462 of the Government Code. For Tier 11, the benefit is based on a three-year average
saary.

As of June 30, 2002, 3,733 Tier 1| employees with five years service were eligible to irrevocably elect
Tier I1l. Members eligible for Tier 11l are required to elect or decline enrollment. As of June 30,
2002, 3,015 employees elected Tier I11. Subsequent enrollments will occur as more employees from
Tier 1l acquire five years of service.
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B. Funding Policy

Pursuant to provisions of the 1937 Act, the Retirement Board recommends the annual contribution
rates for adoption by the Board of Supervisors. New contribution rates, based on the actuaria study
as of December 31, 2000, became effective July 1, 2001. The contribution requirements are
determined as a percentage of payroll.

The employer rates were calculated on the alternate funding method permitted by Section 31453.5 of
the Government Code. The “entry age normal funding” method is used to calculate the rate required
to provide all the benefits promised to a new member. Unfunded costs resulting from this calculation
are amortized over 17 years from the December 31, 2000, val uation date.

Active plan members are required to contribute an actuarially determined percentage of their annua
covered salary. The required percentage rates vary according to the benefit section and entry age of
the employee. The rates in effect during fiscal year 2001-2002 (based on covered payroll as of
January 1, 2001) ranged from 3.99 percent to 10.37 percent of the employees’ annual covered salary.

The County employer rates of contribution, calculated as a percentage of the County’s covered
payroll of $427,866,000 as of January 1, 2001, for fiscal year 2001-2002, were:

General Members, Tier | 19.09%
General Members, Tier I 13.67
General Members, Tier |11 14.75
Safety Members 20.84

The County’s annual pension cost and prepaid pension asset, computed in accordance with GASB 27,
Accounting for Pensions by Sate and Local Governmental Employers, for the year ended June 30,
2002, were asfollows:

Annua required contribution (County fiscal year basis) $ 43,833,000
I nterest on pension asset (23,484,000)
Adjustment to the annual required contribution 38,319,000
Annual pension cost 58,668,000
Contributions made 43,833,000
Decreasein pension asset (14,835,000)
Pension asset, beginning of year 293,558,000
Pension asset, end of year $ 278,723,000
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The following table shows the County’ s annual pension cost and the percentage contributed, for the 2002
fiscal year and each of the two preceding years:

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Ended June 30, Cost (APC) APC Contributed Asset
2000 $ 43,313,000 78.05% $ 305,576,000
2001 50,921,000 76.40% 293,558,000
2002 58,668,000 74.71% 278,723,000

The County has made its annual required contribution (ARC) for each of the past three years. The
difference between the ARC and the annual pension cost (APC) is due to the amortization of the Net
Pension Asset.

See Note 20.D — Subseguent Events for additional information.

16. PAULSON LAWSUIT SETTLEMENT

During the year ended December 31, 1999, CCCERA settled its litigation, entitled Vernon D. Paulson, &t
a. v. Board of Retirement of the Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement Association, et al. As of October
14,1999, all legal documents to finalize the case settlement were signed by the court.

The consolidated lawsuit was brought on behalf of a class of retired members of CCCERA regarding the
inclusions and the exclusions from “final” compensation that are used in calculating members' retirement
benefits as aresult of the Ventura Decision. The Ventura Decision held that a County Retirement System
operating under provisions of the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 must include certain types
of cash incentive payments and additional pay elements received by an employee, within the employees
“compensation earnable” and “final” compensation when calculating the employee’ s retirement benefits.
A settlement agreement has been entered into with all parties and a petitioners' class has been certified
consisting of al retired members of CCCERA whose effective retirement date was on or before
September 30, 1997 (i.e., the period prior to the October 1, 1997 effective date of the Ventura Decision).

The Board has designated $90 million from unrestricted excess earnings to cover the anticipated liability
of the settlement. Interest at the actuarially assumed rate (currently 8.50 percent per annum) is credited to
the settlement amount until the fina liability is determined. As claim forms are submitted, benefits
recalculated and paid, the funds will be transferred to the Employer Advance Reserve to cover the
liability. The costs will then be “funded” to the Retiree Reserves. It is anticipated that it could take
another year for CCCERA to determine the final effect of this case.

The recaculation and distribution of past and future benefits will be conducted in batches. As of
December 31, 2001, CCCERA has already recal culated and paid 16 batches (3,203 claimants), for atota
of $50.8 million. As of March 2002, CCCERA has recalculated batches 17 through 19 (462 claimants),
for atotal of $3.0 million in past benefits. Of the $29.8 million paid and accrued for 2001, $2.2 million
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pertains to the current year and $27.6 million is for periods prior to the year ended December 31, 2001,
and is recorded as a prior period adjustment on the Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets —
Fiduciary Funds. The liability for past benefits cannot be reasonably estimated due to the complexity
involved in calculating the “Paulson Benefit.” As caculations are completed, the liability for the past
benefits will be recognized. As of December 31, 2001, the Paulson Lawsuit settlement designation is
$53.1 million.

PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE AND RECEIVABLES

The County Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and
are insured under third-party payer agreements. Charges for services are reported at estimated net
redizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others for services rendered and include
estimated retroactive revenue adjustments due to future audits, reviews, and investigations. Retroactive
adjustments are considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered, and such amounts are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known or
asyears are no longer subject to such audits, reviews, or investigations.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs are extremely complex and subject
to interpretation. As aresult, thereis at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change
by a material amount in the near term. The County Hospital’s Medicare and Medi-Cal cost reports have
been audited by the fiscal intermediary through June 30, 2000. As such, the cost reports for the prior year
are still under review by fiscal intermediaries and have not been settled due to certain unresolved
reimbursement issues. The County believes it has adequately provided for any liabilities that may arise
from the fiscal intermediaries’ audits.

Net receivables from patients and third-party payers at June 30, 2002, are summarized as follows:

Medicare $ 13,617,000
Medi-Ca 10,322,000
Insurance and other third-party payers 4,137,000

Total 3 28,076,000

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County self-insures its unemployment, dental and management long-term disability. The County is
self-insured to $750,000 per occurrence for workers' compensation, and maintains $10 million of excess
insurance coverage per occurrence with commercia insurance carriers. The County is self-insured to $1
million per occurrence on public and automobile liability, and maintains $30 million excess insurance
coverage with commercial insurance carriers. Liability claims arising from operations at the County’s
two airports are fully insured to $100 million under a separate commercial insurance policy. The County
is self-insured to $500,000 per occurrence on medical malpractice and maintains $10 million of excess
insurance with commercial insurance carriers. The County adjusts all self-insured claims in-house.
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The County maintains up to $600 million "All Risk" insurance coverage subject to a $50,000 deductible
to cover its property, except for loss caused by earthquake or flood. Loss caused by earthquake isinsured
to $90 million and is subject to a minimum $1 million deductible. Loss caused by flood is insured to
$200 million and is subject to a $100,000 deductible.

The County maintains a separate insurance policy to cover the Sheriff-Coroner’s helicopter for $1.6
million and up to $50 million for liability arising from the helicopter use.

During the past three years there have been no instances of the amount of claim settlements exceeding
insurance coverage.

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the County's self-insurance activities. It is the County's
policy to provide in each fiscal year, by charges to affected operating funds, amounts sufficient to cover
the estimated expenditures for self-insured claims. Charges to operating funds are recorded as
expenditures/expenses of such funds and revenues of the Internal Service Funds. Accrual and payment of
claims are recorded in the Internal Service Funds.

The County has accrued a liability of $95.1 million at June 30, 2002, for all self-insured claims in the
Internal Service Funds, which includes an amount for incurred but not reported clams. The self-
insurance reserve is based on actuarially determined amounts for workers compensation, public and
automobile liability, and medical liability and based on management's estimates for all other reserves. In
the opinion of the County, the amounts accrued are adequate to cover claims incurred but not reported in
addition to known claims.

Changes to the Internal Service Funds' claims liability amount for fiscal years 2000-2001 and 2001-2002
are as follows (in thousands):

Liability at June 30, 2000 $ 80,337
Current year claims and changes in estimates 24,119
Claim payments (24,435)

Liability at June 30, 2001 80,021
Current year claims and changes in estimates 57,740
Claim payments (42,706)

Liability at June 30, 2002 $ 95,055

The actuarialy determined claims liabilities, including incurred but not reported claims, are based on the
estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims, using past experience adjusted for current trends, and any
other factors that modify past experience. It also includes incrementa claim adjustment expenses. In
addition, estimated recoveries on settled and unsettled claims were evaluated in terms of their estimated
reaizable value and deducted from the liability for unpaid claims.
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19. COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES
A. Grants

The County participates in a number of federal and State grant programs which are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Audits of certain grant
programs through June 30, 2002, have not yet been conducted. Accordingly, the County's
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount,
if any, of expenditures which may be disalowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at
this time. The County believes that such disallowances, if any, would not have a material effect on
the basic financial statements.

B. Health Insurance

Health care benefits for active and retired employees are jointly financed by the beneficiaries and by
the County. Most employees have a choice of participation in five medical plans. Kaiser
Permanente, a private heath maintenance organization (HMO); Health Net (HMO); Hedth Net
(PPO); and the Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP) A and B, operated by the County Health Services
Department. Employees represented by either the Deputy SheriffsS Association (DSA), District
Attorney Investigators Association (DAIA), or United Professional Fire Fighters' IAFF Local 1230
are eligible to participate in medical plans administered by the California Public Employees
Retirement System (CalPERS).

For non-CalPERS administered medical plans, the County subvents 80.0 percent of Kaiser, 80.0
percent Health Net (HMO), 60.0 percent Health Net (PPO) and 98.0 percent of CCHP A and 90.0
percent of CCHP B premiums for plan members. The County subvention for CalPERS administered
plansis a flat rate depending on the employees union representation and the number of dependents
covered under the plans. All permanent employees have a choice of two dental plans: a County self-
funded plan administered by Delta Dental, and a PMI Delta Care Plan. The County’s self-funded
plan is an indemnity program and the PMI Delta Care plan is a prepaid program.

The County's contribution to heath and dental plans during fisca year 2001-2002 for active
employees was $47,711,000. The County's liability for health care benefits is limited to its annual
contribution.

C. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

In addition to providing retirement benefits as described in Note 15, retired employees are allowed to
continue participation in the medical and dental plans described above. As of June 30, 2002, there
were 4,040 retired employees participating in the hedth plans, and the County contributed
$16,335,000 toward payment of the premiums. The cost of retiree health care is recognized when the
County makes its contribution on a pay-as-you-go basis and is accounted for in the General Fund,
Special Revenue Library and Fire District Funds, Enterprise Funds, or Fiduciary Funds as
appropriate. This postemployment benefit was approved by Board of Supervisors resolution number
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264 on August 22, 1961, with an effective date of October 1, 1961. To be €ligible, the retiring
employee must have been amember of a participating health plan at the date of retirement.

D. Special Assessment Debt

The County is considered to be “obligated in some manner,” as defined by GASB Statement No. 6,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Special Assessments, for its special assessment debt. The
County is obligated to foreclose on properties for which owners have failed to pay assessment
installments as they fall due and the County may honor deficiencies to the extent that lien foreclosure
proceeds are insufficient. The County’s obligation to advance monies to pay debt service in the event
of delinquent assessment installments is limited to the amount of remaining original bond proceeds
and installments received. Special assessment debt isincluded in the County’s statement of net assets
and specia assessment transactions are included in the Assessment Districts Debt Service Fund. Debt
service payments are made from special assessments of the related special assessment district.

E. Construction Commitments

The County had entered into contracts for the construction of certain projects. At June 30, 2002,
there were outstanding commitments of $6,067,000 for the Martinez Health Center project,
$20,109,000 for the Juvenile Hall Replacement project, $5,422,000 for the Family Law Center
project, and $4,465,000 for the new Powers Child Care Center project.

F. Pending Legal Matters

Numerous lawsuits are pending or threatened against the County. The County has recorded
actuarially determined reserves in the Internal Service Funds to adequately cover estimated potential
material adverse losses at June 30, 2002.

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
A. 2002-2003 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes

On October 17, 2002, the County issued $55,000,000 of short-term tax and revenue anticipation
notes. The notes bear interest at 2.50 percent and mature on November 17, 2003.

B. 2002 L ease Revenue Bonds, Series B

In September 2002, the County of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority issued $25,440,000 in
lease revenue bonds (2002 Series B), with interest rates ranging from 2.0 to 4.6 percent. The
proceeds will be used to defease $25,870,000 of 1992 Certificates of Participation (Consolidated
Capital Projectsissue).

C. Consolidation of East County Fire Districts

As of November 1, 2002, the Bethel Island, East Diablo and Oakley Fire Protection Districts will be
consolidated into a new district called the East Contra Costa Fire Protection District. An informal
study concluded that this consolidation allows for a more cost-effective application of existing
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resources to provide a higher level of fire protection and emergency medical response servicesin the
Bethel Island, East Diablo, and Oakley Fire Protection District areas. Funding for the new district
will come primarily from property taxes; and, it will also receive funds through County Service Area
EMS-1 (emergency medical services). There will be no change in the governance of the new district,
asthe Board of Supervisorswill remain the governing body.

. Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA)

On October 1, 2002, the Board of Supervisors approved revised retirement benefits for CCCERA
members. The revised benefits include a 3 percent of eligible salary per year of service to safety
employees retiring at age 50, and 2 percent of eligible salary per year of service to regular employees
retiring at age 55 and also a cost of living adjustment (COLA) for safety employees and regular
employees. Also approved was a $200 per month additional benefit for retirees who retired prior to
January 1, 1983.

In the past, CCCERA has been able to contribute a portion of excess earnings from its investment
portfolio to the County in the form of subsidiesto cover a portion of the County’ s required retirement
contributions. However, CCCERA'’s investment portfolio has experienced a decline in market value
and CCCERA has recently informed the County that subsidies would cease after December 2002.
The additional net County cost of retirement contributions is expected to be $12 million in fiscal year
2002-2003 and $25 million in fiscal year 2003-2004.

. State Budget

The State is addressing a $35 billion shortfall of projected revenues compared to expenditures for the
18-month period of January 1, 2003, through June 30, 2004. Thisis expected to lead to a significant,
but undetermined, reduction of County revenue. The County receives approximately 20 percent of its
revenues from taxes and a significant portion of the remainder is provided by the State.
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SCHEDUL E OF REVENUES EXPENDITURESAND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(In Thousands)
Actud
Amounts Variance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Pogdtive
Origind Find Bads (Negive)
Revenues.
Taxes $ 190,038 190,038 200,571 10,533
Licensss, pamitsand franchise fess 7,335 7,787 23,782 15,995
Fines, forfatures and pendties 13431 13,750 14,508 78
Use of money and property 12,312 12,339 10,527 (1,812
Intergovernmenta 474,330 540,418 506,352 (34,066)
Chargesfor savices 155,212 171,60 155,713 (15977)
Other revenue 33,406 93,158 74,613 (18,545)
Total Revenues 391,064 1,029,180 986,066 (43114)
Expenditures.
Current:
Generd Government:
Adminigtrator 364 3,779 3,369 410
Assessor 11,760 12,442 11,694 748
Auditor-Cortroller 6,297 5,797 5,686 11
Board of Supervisors 3582 4171 3,655 516
Building Maintenance 8,343 15251 15141 110
Building Occupency Cost 17,390 17,362 14,365 2,997
Centrd Service/Miicrofilm 295 472 306 166
Jek of theBoard 495 531 463 68
Community Acoess Tdevision 8% 8% 197
County Counsd 3,526 3,858 3,149 709
Crockett-Rodeo Revenues 992 992 248 744
Econormic Devd opment 332 339 313 26
Bledions 4777 4,792 4,766 26
Employee Benefits 29,562 24,892 15,043 9,849
Het Sarvices 2110 5430 1,622 3,808
Gengd Savices Adminigration 1 1 @ 2
Humen Resources 7,445 7414 4877 2537
I nformetion Technology 254 2544 1,969 575
Insurance 9,367 9,802 9,3% 407
Management Informetion Systens 1,399 1615 601 1,014
Personnd Merit Board 97 97 72 25
Plat Acguisition 30,907 115,396 25513 89,883
Purchasing 732 864 729 135
Revenue Callections 1,889 1,889 1,841 48
Teephone Exchange 4,694 4,935 2403 2532
Treasurer-Tax Collector 33830 4,018 3,683 335
UAAL Penson Bond Delat Service Transfers (3,225 (3,225) (3,225)
Totd Generd Government 153,740 246,353 128,375 117,978
(continued)
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(In Thousands)
Actud
Amounts Variance-
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Podtive
Origind Find Bads (Negative)
Public Protection:

Agriculture 3164 3,074 2,847 227
Animd Services 5,400 6,050 5,672 378
CCC Department Child Support Sarvices 21,713 21,453 19,990 1,463
Community Devel opment 5,595 5,839 5072 767
Conflict Defense Services 1,148 1,148 1,039 109
Coroner 1,580 1611 1,591 20
Crimind Grand Jury 77 77 58 19
Didtrict Attorney 20,515 20,498 18,677 1821

Didtrict Attorney Family Support 1 1 1
Emergency Services 2,749 259 2444 155
Hood Control 84 668 170
Grand dury R R 82 10
Jal 45,035 46,243 46,107 136
Jal - Hedth Savices 7,711 8,957 8917 a0
Judtice System Programs 4,495 4,495 1,060 3435

Juvenile Dependency Medidion 108 108 108
Law and Justice Systeme 346 346 272 74
Locd Agency Formetion 258 308 275 33
Probation - Progrars 21,518 2,256 20,105 2151
Probation - Facilities 16,214 16,963 16,719 244
Probation - Care of Court Wards 8,332 8,332 7,839 43
Public Administrator 188 1838 186 2
Public Defender 14,819 15412 14,724 688
Recorder 2,677 2,677 2,393 284
Sheriff 65,692 67,643 65,784 1,859
Trid Court Programs 20520 2154 22,152 2
Vehide Theft Programs 1,260 1,260 740 520

UAAL Pension Bond Debt Sarvice Transfer (11,502) (11,502) (11,502)
Totd Public Protection 260,539 269,120 254,070 15,050

Hedlth and Sanitation:

Children's Sarvices 6,243 5312 5,225 87

Consarvator/Guardianship 1,278 1,267 1,267
Environmental Hedlth 10,285 9,686 9,315 371

Generd Sewer Planning 23 24 24
Hedlth Services Homdess Program 4114 3,879 3128 751

Medicd Digproportionate Share 2,407 21,681 21,681
Mentd Hedth 79,715 84,551 78,667 5,834
Public Hedth 37,957 38,619 38,447 172
Solid Weste Management 478 478 344 14
Substance Abuse 16,731 18,331 17,655 676

UAAL Pension Bond Debt Sarvice Transfer (3,140 (3,140 (3,140)
Totd Hedth and Sanitation 176,001 180,688 172,613 8,075
(continued)
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(In Thousands)
Actud
Armounts Vaiance
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Podtive
Origind FHnd Badis (Negetive)
Public Assgtance:
Ann Ader Child & Family 195 195 172 23
Community Deve opment 6,984 14,275 12,269 2,006
Community Services 20,635 2334 2481 913
Hous ng Rehabilitation 203 229 229
EHSD - Adminigration 313 5,356 3,076 2280
EHSD - Child & Family 86,598 96,426 95,812 614
EHSD - Aging & Adult 69,548 64,872 61,879 2,993
EHSD - Workforce Sarvices 124,749 127,316 117,839 9477
EHSD - WHRC Investment Board 9,136 9,136 6,081 3,055
SarvicesIntegration 626 626 232 3A
Veterans Sarvices 531 571 525 46
UAAL Penson Bond Delat Service Transfer (5,483 (5,483 (5483
Totd Public Assstance 314,035 336,913 315112 21,801
Education:
Cooperative Extenson Sarvices 227 227 211 16
UAAL Penson Bond Delat Service Transfer (6) (6) (6)
Totd Education 221 221 205 16
Public Waysand Fadlities
Public Works 30,681 30,568 23,629 6,939
Road Congtruction 17,359 30,237 23,046 7,101
UAAL Penson Bond Delat Sarvice Trander (996) (996) (996)
Totd Public Waysand Fadilities 47,044 59,809 45,679 14,130
Recregtion and Culture
Park Adminidration 1 1
Totd Recregtion and Culture 1 1
Delt Service
Interest 4222 4222 2215 2,007
Capitd Outlay 7,415 7,415 7,415
Total Expenditures 963,308 1,104,742 925,634 179,058
Excessof Revenues Over/Under Expenditures (72,244) (75,562) 60,382 135944
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses):
Trandersin 23,568 23,568 23,568
Trandfers out (76,347) (76,347) (76,347)
Capitd lessefinancing 9,907 9,907 9,907
Net Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses) (42,872) (42,872) (42,872)
Net Changein Fund Balances (115,116) (118,434) 17,510 135,944
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as Previoudy Reported 144,607 144,607 144,607
Prior period adjustment 7,285 7,285 7,285
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as Restated 151,892 151,892 151,892
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 36,776 33458 169,402 135,944
(condluded)
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BUDGETSAND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

After a series of public hearings and in accordance with the provisions of Sections 29000-29145 of the
Cdlifornia Government Code and other statutory provisions, commonly known as the County Budget Act,
the County Board of Supervisors legally adopts a budget for each fiscal year on or before October 2. This
budget establishes the maximum authorized expenditures for the fiscal year that cannot be exceeded
except by subsequent amendments to the budget by the Board of Supervisors. Budgets are adopted for
the Genera Fund on the modified accrud basis.

Expenditures are controlled by management at the object (summary accounts) level within budget units
(departments) of the County. The legal level of control is at the department level. Supplemental
appropriations, which are normally financed by unanticipated revenues during the year, and any
amendments or transfers of appropriations between summary accounts or departments must be approved
by the Board of Supervisors. Pursuant to a Board of Supervisors Resolution, the County Administrator is
authorized to approve transfers of appropriations among summary accounts within a department as
deemed necessary and appropriate. Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control by the Board of
Supervisors is at the department level. Budgeted amounts in the budgetary comparison schedule are
reported as originaly adopted and as amended during the fiscal year by resolutions approved by the
Board of Supervisors.

The County uses an encumbrance system as an extension of normal budgetary accounting. Under this
system, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in
order to reserve that portion of applicable appropriations. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are
recorded as reservations of fund balance since they do not congtitute expenditures or liabilities.
Encumbrances are combined with expenditures for budgetary comparison purposes. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at year-end.

The amounts reported as expenditures by department include amounts charged each department to service
the pension obligation bond debt because the budget includes these amounts as expenditures. “UAAL
Pension Bond Debt Service Transfer” is a reporting adjustment made at the function level to achieve
agreement with the financial statements where these expenditures are reported as transfers in accordance
with GAAP.
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AsHSs

Cash and investments
Accounts recaivable and accrued revenue
Duefromother funds
Advancesto other funds
Notesrecavable
Prepaid items and deposits
Land hdd for resde
Total Asss

Liabilitiesand Fund Balances.
Liabilities
Short termnotes
Accounts payable and accrued ligbilities
Dueto other funds

Advancesfrom other funds
Defarred revenue

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances

Reserved for:

Encunbrances
Advancesto other funds
Prepaid items and depodits
Land hdd for resde
Housing projects
Debt sarvice
Nonexpendabl e permenent fund
Unresarved, reportedin:
Soedd revenuefunds
Deht servicefunds
Cooitd projectsfunds
Permenent fund

Tota Fund Balances
Tota Liabilitiesand Fund Balances

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Specid Debt Cepitd
Revenue Savice Projects Permanent
Funds Funds Funds Fund Totd
$ 223034 65,213 49,919 2,140 340,306
11,423 232 1 11,656
8,847 2713 515 12,075
4,883 4,883
7,279 7.279
413 413
1164 122 1,286
$ 257,043 68,158 50,557 2,140 377,898
$

11,043 1,297 210 12550
23,808 10,215 301 61 34,475
4,107 D 824 5,021
26,988 26,988
65,946 11,602 1,425 61 79,034
7,229 37 7,266
4,883 4,883
413 413
1164 122 1,286
616 616
27,464 27,464
1,726 1,726
176,792 176,792
29,092 29,092
48973 48973
353 353
191,097 56,556 49,132 2,079 298,864
$ 257,043 68,158 50,557 2,140 377,898
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(In Thousands)
Specid Debt Capitd
Revenue Savice Projects Permenent
Funds Funds Funds Fund Totd
Revenues:
Taxes $ 109,423 9814 2827 122,064
Licenses, permitsand franchise fees 11,495 11,495
Fines, forfatures and pendties 4,017 4,017
Use of money and property 5342 5,783 2,070 12 13,237
Intergovernmenta 38,775 9 5838 39,372
Chargesfor services 40,875 40,875
Other revenue 18,033 1,607 27 19,667
Total Revenues 227,960 17,213 5,512 42 250,727
Expenditures:
Current:
Generd government 1,976 1,976
Public protection 123863 78 123941
Hedth and sanitation 9,551 9,551
Public assgtance 14,982 3781 3,798 22,561
Education 16,162 16,162
Public ways and fadilities 43,150 1 43151
Recredtion and culture 1,09 1,09
Debt service:
Principd 83 25,027 25110
Bond i ssuance cost 412 412
Interest 633 33385 24 34,002
Capitd outlay 24,821 24,821
Total Expenditures 211,549 87,426 3,901 302,876
Excess (Ddfidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 16,411 (70,213) 1611 42 (52,149
Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses):
Trandfersin 2,760 45,902 48,662
Trandfers out (5422) (1,464) (60) (6,946)
Proceads fromthe sde of red estate 500 500
Proceads from i ssuance of debot 12,650 12,650
Taota Other Financing Sources (Uss) (2,162) 57,088 (60) 54,866
Net Changein Fund Balances 14,249 (13,125) 1611 (18) 2,717
Fund Balancesat Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 144,020 65,617 47,380 257,017
Adjugmentsto beginning fund balances 32,828 4,064 141 2,097 39,130
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, as Restated 176,848 69,681 47,521 2,097 296,147
Fund Balancesat End of Year $ 191,097 56,556 49,132 2,079 298,864

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI TURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
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Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Specia revenue funds are used to account for revenues that are restricted by law or adminigrative action to expenditures for
specified purposes. Nonmajor special revenue funds used by the County are listed below:

ROAD FUNDS

These Funds were established to provide for maintenance and construction of roadways. Revenues consist primarily of
the County's share of State highway user taxes and are supplemented by Federal funds.

LIBRARY FUND

This Fund was established to provide library services for al areas of the County except the City of Richmond. Property
taxes provide most of the Fund's revenues.

FIRE PROTECTION FUNDS

These Special District Funds provide fire protection servicesto both cities and unincorporated areasin the County. They
are financed primarily by property taxes.

HEALTH AND SANITATION FUNDS

These Funds provide a variety of health and sanitation services. They are financed by State grants, the County's share of
the tobacco tax and user fees.

SERVICE AREAS FUNDS

These Special District Funds provide services such as lighting, park, or street maintenance to specific areas in the
County. They are financed by property taxes and user charges.

FLOOD CONTROL FUNDS

These Specia District Funds provide services to control flood and storm waters. Revenues are primarily received from
property taxes and federal grants.

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUNDS

These Funds provide for a variety of law enforcement services financed by property taxes, narcotics seizures and court
fines and fees.

COURTSAND CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUNDS

These Funds are used for the improvement of courthouse and criminal justice facilities and related automated
information systems. Revenues are derived from court fines and fees.
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RECORDER/CLERK MODERNIZATION FUNDS

These Funds provide for automation of civil and small claims functions of the courts and for micrographics and
modernization of the Recorder's Office. Revenues received are from filing and recording fees.

LAND DEVELOPMENT FUND

This Fund was established to report growth management related activities, such as Building Inspection, Public Works
engineering and Community Development growth management related services.

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (RDA) FUNDS

These Funds are used to account for the financia resources designated for the improvement of targeted low to moderate
income housing areas and the elimination of blight.

CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND

This Fund is used to account for the financia resources designated for the County's Child Devel opment programs.

IN-HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICESPUBLIC AUTHORITY (IHSS) FUND

This Fund is used to provide services to both providers and recipients of in-home care delivered through the In-Home
Supportive Services program.

OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

These Funds account for the activities of several non-grant Special Revenue Funds. They include Fish and Game,
Survey Monuments, Victim Assistance, Sans Crainte Drainage and County Water Districts.






COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Fre Hedth & Savice Hood
Road Library Protection  Sanitaion Aress Control
Asds
Cash and investments $ 47,400 9,900 39,043 6,065 14,298 19,634
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 5414 773 1,630 314 o4 850
Due from other funds 1,240 258 633 43 607 227
Advancesto other funds
Notesrecavable
Prepaid items and deposits a1 200 1
Land hdd for rede
Total Asts $ 54,145 10,931 41,515 6,422 14,969 20,712
Liabilitiesand Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued lidhilities ¢ 915 1,107 5,24 ar7 803 256
Dueto other funds 2,884 39%5 248 1,941 1051 2,746
Advancesfrom other funds 138
Defared revenue 1,500 14 20 9
Total Liabilities 5299 1516 5,562 2,427 1,84 3,140
Fund Balances
Resarved for:
Encumbrances 442 1,252 3,808 1 162 327
Advancesto other funds
Prepaid items and depodits il 200 1
Land hdd for resde
Housing projects
Unresarved:
Desgnated for eoui pment replacement 4341 68 29
Undesigneted 43972 8,095 31,936 3,94 12,953 16,948
Total Fund Balances 48,846 9415 35,953 3,995 13,115 17,572
Total Liabilitiesand Fund Balances $ 54,145 10,931 41,515 6,422 14,969 20,712
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Courts & Recorder/ In-Home Other
Law Crimind Clek Land Redevd opment Child Supportive  Specid
Enforcament Judtice Modenization  Deved opment Agency Devdopmat  Savices Revenue Totd

26,430 1,381 7,268 29,644 4,671 17,300 223,034
% 336 36 32 1 914 377 298 11,423
70 Q0 24 1,324 158 3,050 746 377 8,847
4,883 4,883
1,740 5539 7,279
100 8 4 413
1164 1,164
_Bo» 186 738 31290 /84 3972 117 28397 57048
150 189 50 912 643 81 166 11,043
5,778 204 312 1,778 245 3,349 866 2011 23,808
3,969 4,107
32 17,659 1,740 59 5,955 26,988
5,928 425 362 20,349 5,954 4,051 A7 8,132 65,946
629 19 485 17 4 83 7,229
4,883 4,883
100 8 4 413
1,164 1,164
616 616
369 5,074
20,038 1,381 6,947 10,087 (104 172 15,299 171,718
20,667 1,381 6,966 10,941 1,880 (79 180 20,265 191,097
26,595 1,806 7,328 31,290 7,834 3,972 1,127 28,397 257,043
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI TURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Hre Hedth & Sarvice Hood
Road Librasy  Protection Sanitaion Aress Control
Revenues
Taxes $ 145% 12650 62,695 4519 3179 5178
Licenses, permitsand franchise fees 149 17 3587
Fines, forfatures and pendties 1,216
Use of money and property 1,142 17 529 129 439 443
| ntergovernmenta 6,286 3317 2615 4,761 1411 512
Chargesfor services 5,036 738 2518 103 2,969 11,380
Other revenue 2,716 1,346 871 111 845
Total Revenues 20,776 18,068 69,377 10,728 8,126 21,945
Expenditures
Current:
Gengrd government 280
Public protection 67,499 6,380 16,136
Hedth and sanitetion 9,551
Public asigtance
Education 16,035 127
Public ways and facilities 33,797 711 1
Recregtion and culture M
Dett service
Principd 77 6
Interest 7 134
Total Expenditures 33797 16315 67,49 9,635 8,128 16,271
Excess (Ddfidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (4,021) 1,753 1,878 1,093 2 5,674
Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses):
Trandersin 102 134 206 15
Transfersout (434 (206) ® (15) (102
SHedf red edate 500
Tota Other Finandng Sour ces (Usss) 602 960 (8) (102
Net Changein Fund Balances (3419 2,713 1,878 1,085 2 5572
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 33,767 6,496 29,130 2910 1,834 15,670
Adjugmentsto beginning fund balance 18,498 206 4995 1,273 (3,670
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, asRestated 52,265 6,702 34,075 2910 13117 12,000
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 48846 9415 35,953 3995 13115 17,572
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Courts & Recorder/ In-Home Other
Law Crimind Clek Land Redevd opment Child Supportive  Spedid
Enforcement  Judice  Modenization  Devdopment Agency Devdopment  Services Revenue Totd

4818 1,474 314 109423
7,692 50 11,4%

387 2,395 19 4,017
469 188 528 460 (20) 1,018 5342
9,229 174 17 76 8,026 959 1,392 38,775
701 3113 11,130 3187 40,875
574 6,525 3,546 3 1,49 18,033
16,178 2,757 3,130 25,951 1,934 11552 962 7476 227960
13 1 1,682 1,976
14,983 1 1,407 14,427 305 123863
9,551

1,403 11,497 599 1,483 14,982

16,162

8641 43,150

1% 1,099
83

79 463 683

15,19 2 1,407 23,068 1,482 11,497 599 6653 211549
982 2,755 1,723 2,883 452 55 363 823 16,411
532 1 500 2,760
(1106) (2440 (2) (401) (349 (214 (125) (5422
500

(574  (2,440) ) (390) (349) (2149) 375 (2,162)
408 315 1,701 2,493 103 (159) 363 1,198 14,249
17,278 791 5,265 4,879 803 202 14985 144,020
2,981 275 3,569 974 (122) (183 4082 32,828
20,259 1,066 5,265 8448 1,777 80 (183) 19067 176,848
20,667 1,381 6,966 10,941 1,880 (79) 180 20265 191,007
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ROAD SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Variancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Positive
Origind FHnd Anmounts (Negetive)
Revenues
Taxes $ 14,59 14,596
Use of money and property 1,810 1810 1,142 (668)
Intergovernmenta 235838 9,013 6,286 2727
Chargesfor sarvices 3,687 4277 5,036 79
Other revenue 1,069 1,037 2,716 1,679
Total Revenues 30,155 30,733 29,776 (957)
Expenditures
Public Waysand Fadlities
Sarvicesand supplies 52,464 50,147 28,970 2177
Other charges 2310 5,526 4,256 1,270
Fixed asts 687 868 571 297
Resarves 561 561 561
Total Expenditures 56,022 57,102 33,797 23,305
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (25,867) (26,369) (4,021) 22,348
Other Finandng Sources:
Trandersin 102 102 102
Seof red edae 500 500
Toatal Other Finandng Sources 102 602 602
Net Changein Fund Balance (25,765) (25,767) (3419 22,348
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 33,767 33,767 33,767
Adjugmeantsto beginning fund balance 18,498 18,498 18,498
Fund Balance a Beginning of Year, as Retated 52,265 52,265 52,265
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 26,500 26,498 48,846 22,348
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Postive
Origind Fnd Armounts (Negetive)
Revenues.
Taxes $ 11,636 11,636 12,650 1,014
Use of noney and property 4 4 17 13
Intergovernmental 2880 2,880 3,317 437
Chargesfor sarvices 699 699 738 39
Other revenue 1973 1,017 1,346 329
Total Revenues 17,192 16,236 18,068 1,832
Expenditures
Generd Government
Fixed asts 1576 1,549 280 1,269
Totd Generd Government 1576 1,549 280 1,269
Education
Sdaiesand benefits 11,312 11,253 9,930 1,323
Sarvices and supplies 3283 4,263 3,638 625
Other charges 2,209 2282 2112 170
Fixed asts 1,032 43 355 83
Totd Educetion 17,836 18,241 16,035 2,206
Total Expenditures 19412 19,790 16,315 3475
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (2,220) (3,554) 1,753 5307
Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses):
Trandersin 134 134 60
Trandersout (434 (434 (434)
Tatal Other Financing Sour ces (Uses) (434 900 960 60
Net Changein Fund Balance (2,654 (2,654) 2,713 5,367
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 6,496 6,496 6,496
Adjugmentsto beginning fund belance 206 206 206
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, asRetated 6,702 6,702 6,702
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 4,048 4,048 9415 5,367
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FIRE PROTECTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Postive
Origind Fnd Amounts (Negetive)
Revenues
Taxes $ 60,823 60,823 62,695 1,872
Licenses, permits, and franchisefees 197 197 149 (48)
Use of noney and property 424 424 529 105
Intergovernmenta 953 953 2615 1,662
Chargesfor sarvices 1,638 1,685 2518 833
Other revenue 420 628 871 243
Total Revenues 64,455 64,710 69,377 4,667
Expenditures
Current:
Public Protection
SHaries and benefits 52,808 51,364 50,051 1,313
Sarvicesand supplies 13041 13,010 8533 4477
Other charges 2335 2,614 2,196 418
Fixed as#ts 18,969 20,420 6,719 13,701
Total Expenditures 87,153 87,408 67,49 19,909
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (22,698) (22,698) 1,878 24,576
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses):
Trandesin 243 206 (37
Trandersout (243) (206) 37
Total Other Finandng Sources (Uses)
Net Changein Fund Balance (22,698) (22,698) 1,878 24,576
Fund Balance a Beginning of the Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 29,130 29,130 29,130
Adjustments to beginning fund balance 4,945 4,945 4,995
Fund Balance a Beginning of the Year, asRestated 34,075 34,075 34,075
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 11,377 11,377 35,953 24,576
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HEALTH AND SANITATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Positive
Origind Fnd Anmounts (Negetive)
Revenues.
Taxes $ 4,443 4514 4519 5
Fines, forfatures and pendties 878 1171 1,216 45
Use of money and property 4 9 129 120
Intergovernmenta 5074 4,842 4,761 (8D
Chargesfor sarvices 0 D 103 13
Other revenue 28 28 (28)
Total Revenues 10517 10,654 10,728 74
Expenditures
Current:
Hedth and Sanitation
Sdaiesand bendfits 335 397 145 252
Sarvices and supplies 9,436 9,294 7,648 1,646
Other charges 3443 3,681 1,746 1935
Fixed assdts 66 %5 12 83
Totd Hedth and Sanitation 13,330 13,467 9,551 3,916
Debt srvice
Principd 77 77 7
Interest 7 7 7
Total Expenditures 13414 13551 9,635 3,916
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (2,897) (2,897) 1,003 3,990
Othe Finandng Uses:
Trandersout (8 8 8
Tatd Other Financing Usss (8 (8 8
Net Changein Fund Balance (2,905) (2905) 1,085 3,990
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 2910 2910 2910
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 5 5 3,995 3,990
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SERVICE AREAS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Variancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Podtive
COrigind Hnd Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3,003 3,005 3,179 174
Licensss, permitsand franchisefees 2 20 17 3
Useof money and property 42 56 439 (207)
Intergovernmenta 1,250 1,250 1411 161
Chargesfor services 2,288 2,283 2,969 631
Other revenue 141 159 111 (48)
Total Revenues 7,244 7,268 8,126 858
Expenditures
Current:
Public Protection
Sarvices and supplies 9,726 9,288 4,316 4,972
Other charges 1551 2,035 2,035
Fixed assdts 1,665 1,655 29 1,626
Resrves 59 59 59
Totd Public Protection 13,001 13,037 6,380 6,657
Education
Sarvices and supplies 17 17 17
Other charges 130 130 127 3
Totd Education 247 247 127 120
Public Ways and Fedlities
Sdaiesand bendfits
Sarvices and supplies 2193 2,099 578 1521
Other charges 5 117 109 8
Fixed assdts 605 588 24 564
Totd Public Waysand Fedilities 2,803 2804 711 2,093
(continued)

94



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDUL E

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

SERVICE AREAS SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Recredtion and Culture
S aies and bendfits
Savices and upplies
Cther charges
Fixed asxts

Totd Recredtion and Culture
Debt Savice:
Principa
Total Expenditures

Excess (Ddfidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Trandfersin
Trandersout

Tota Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses)
Net Changein Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported
Adjugments to beginning fund baance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asRetated

Fund Balance at End of Year

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Fnd Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Pogtive
Origind Fnd Armounts (Negetive)
2 2 2
521 534 226 308
191 197 178 19
2,239 2,239 498 1,741
2,953 2,972 04 2,068
6 (6)
19,004 19,060 8,128 10,932
(11,760) (11,792) ) 11,790
15 15
(19 (15 (15
(10) (15) 15
(11,770) (11,807) ) 11,805
1,844 11,844 1,844
1,273 1,273 1,273
13117 13117 13117
$ 1,347 1,310 13,115 11,805
(concluded)
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDUL E
FLOOD CONTROL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Postive
Origind FHnd Armounts (Negetive)
Revenues.
Taxes $ 4,715 4,785 5,178 393
Licenses, parmitsand franchisefees 3174 3472 3,587 115
Use of noney and property 422 479 43 (36)
Intergovernmentd 470 773 512 (260)
Chargesfor sarvices 10,266 10,781 11,380 599
Cther revenue 1,125 1542 845 (697)
Total Revenues 20,172 21,832 21,945 113
Expenditures
Current:
Public Protection
Sdaies and benfits 3 2 2
Sarvices and supplies 16,043 18122 15,258 2864
Other charges 10,832 9772 811 8,961
Fixed asts 116 331 65 316
Resarves 487 419 419
Totd Public Protection 27,481 28,69%6 16,136 12,560
Public Ways and Fedilities
Sarvices and supplies 249 249 249
Other charges 2 2 1 1
Totd Public Ways and Fedilities 2,501 2,501 1 2,500
Deht sarvice
Principd 448 448
Interest 14 B 134 (36)
Total Expenditures 30,116 31,743 16,271 15472
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (9,944 (9,911 5,674 15,585
Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses):
Trandersin 16 16 (16)
Trandersout (1,500) (1,533 (102) 1431
Total Other Financing Sour ces (Uses) (1,484 (1,517) (102 1,415
Net Changein Fund Balance (11,428 (11,428 5572 17,000
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 15,670 15,670 15,670
Adjustmentsto beginning fund ba ance (3,670) (3,670) (3,670)
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Yeer, as Restated 12,000 12,000 12,000
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 572 572 17,572 17,000
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Positive
Origind Fnd Amounts (Negetive)
Revenues
Taxes $ 4,736 4,998 4,818 (180)
Fines, forfatures and pendties 333 333 337 4
Use of money and property 80 120 469 349
Intergovernmenta 5,697 6,731 9,229 2498
Chargesfor sarvices 297 2,783 701 (2,087)
Other revenue 710 715 574 (141)
Total Revenues 11,903 15,735 16,178 443
Expenditures
Generd Governmernt
Sarvicesand aupplies 1,072 1,071 1,071
Cther charges 1 1
Fixed asts 1,209 1,208 13 1,195
Tota Generd Government 2281 2,280 13 2,267
Public Protection
Sdaries and benefits 1,374 1,64 1,485 169
Sarvicesand aupplies 17,655 16,586 8,330 8,256
Other charges 3,502 6,503 5131 1,372
Fixed assets 161 780 42 738
Tota Public Protection 22,692 25,523 14,938 10,535
Recregtion and Culture
Sdariesand benfits 4 5 5
Sarvicesand aupplies 226 223 167 56
Other charges 21 23 23
Fixed assets 10 10 10
Tota Recreation and Culture 261 261 195 66
Total Expenditures 25,234 28,064 15,196 12,368
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (13,331) (12,329) 932 13311
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses):
Trandersin 60 60 532 472
Trandersout (106) (1,206) (1,206)
Total Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses) (46) (1,046) (574) 472
Net Changein Fund Balance (13,377) (13,375) 408 13,783
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 17,278 17,278 17,278
Adjustments to beginning fund balance 2,981 2981 2,981
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as Restated 20,259 20,259 20,259
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 6,882 6,884 20,667 13,783
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COURTSAND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Pogtive
Origind FHnd Amounts (Negetive)
Revenues.
Fines, forfeituresand pendities $ 2109 2109 2,3% 286
Use of noney and property 188 188
I ntergovernmentd 174 174
Total Revenues 2,109 2,109 2,757 648
Expenditures
Generd Government
Savicesand supplies 241 241 1 240
Other charges 12 12 2
Totd Generd Government 253 253 1 252
Public Protection
Sarvices and supplies 275 275 1 274
Tota Public Protection 275 275 1 274
Total Expenditures 528 528 2 526
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 1,581 1,581 2,755 1174
Other Finandng Uses
Trandersout (2,769) (2,440) (2,440)
Total Other Financing Uses (2,769) (2,440) (2,440
Net Changein Fund Balance (1,188 (859) 315 1,174
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 791 791 91
Adjustments to beginning fund baance 275 275 275
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year, as Restated 1,066 1,066 1,066
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ (122) 207 1,381 1,174
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
RECORDER/CLERK MODERNIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Variancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Positive
Origind Fnd Amounts (Negetive)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 17 17
Chargesfor services 1277 1,277 3113 1,836
Total Revenues 1,277 1277 3,130 1,853
Expenditures
Public Protection
Sdaies and benefits 635 629 435 194
Sarvices and supplies 3871 3871 07 2,964
Other charges 6 6
Fixed asts 2,012 2,012 59 1,953
Total Expenditures 6,518 6,518 1,407 5111
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (5,241) (5,241) 1,723 6,964
Othe Finandng Usss:
Trandersout (22) (22) (22)
Total Other Financing Uses (22 (22 (22
Net Changein Fund Balance (5,263) (5,263 1,701 6,964
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 5,265 5,265 5,265
Fund Balance at End of Year $ 2 2 6,966 6,964
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LAND DEVEL OPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Positive
Origind Find Armounts (Negetive)
Revenues.
Licensss, permitsand franchisefees $ 10,826 10,842 7,692 (3,150)
Useof money and property 528 528 528
Intergovernmenta 76 76
Chargesfor services 9,104 9,195 11,130 1935
Other revenue 568 2,004 6,525 4521
Total Revenues 21,026 22,569 25,951 3,382
Expenditures
Public Protection
Sdaries and benefits 7,126 6,637 6,224 413
Sarvicesand supplies 11,542 11,172 6,068 5104
Other charges 1071 1833 1811 2
Fixed assts 306 459 324 135
Totd Public Protection 20,045 20,101 14,427 5,674
Public Ways and Fedilities
Savicesand supplies 9,055 10,317 8427 1,890
Other charges 52 215 214 1
Totd Public Waysand Fadllities 9,107 10,532 8,641 1,891
Total Expenditures 29,152 30,633 23,068 7,565
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (8,126) (8,064) 2,883 10947
Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses):
Trandersin 1 n
Trandfers out (341) (401) (401)
Total Other Financng Sour ces (Uss) (341 (400) (390) 11
Net Changein Fund Balance (8,467) (8,465) 2493 10,958
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 4,879 4,879 4,879
Adjustments to beginning fund baance 3,569 3,569 3,569
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as Restated 8,448 8,448 8,448
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ (19) (17) 10,941 10,958
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDUL E
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FHISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Fnd Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Pogtive
Origind FHnd Armounts (Negetive)
Revenues.
Taxes $ 1,440 1,440 1,474 A
Use of money and property 55 55 460 405
Cther revenue 2,200 2,200 (2,200)
Total Revenues 3,695 3,695 1934 (1,761)
Expenditures.
Current:
Public Assgance
Savicesand supplies 456 456 456
Other charges 6,703 6,708 1,403 5,305
Totd Public Assgance 7,164 7,164 1,403 5,761
Dett sarvice
Interest 79 (79
Tota Expenditures 7,164 7,164 1482 5,682
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (3,469) (3,469) 452 3921
Other Financing Usss:
Trandersout (349 (349
Total Other Finandng Uses (349 (349
Net Changein Fund Balance (3,469) (3,469) 103 3572
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 803 803 803
Adjustmentsto beginning fund balance 974 974 974
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year, asRestated 1777 1777 1777
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ (1,692 (1,692) 1,830 3572
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

CHILD DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

(In Thousands)
Variancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Postive
Orignd Fnd Amounts (Negetive)
Revenues:
Use of money and property $ (20) (20
Intergovernmenta 7,037 7,922 8,026 104
Other revenue 1,039 3,626 3,546 (80)
Total Revenues 8,076 11,548 11,552 4
Expenditures
Public Asssance
Sdaiesand bendfits 2971 5014 5014
Sarvices and supplies 4,616 6,009 5,983 26
Other charges 464 501 500 1
Total Expenditures 8,051 11,524 11,497 27
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 25 24 55 31
Other Financing Uses
Trandersout (214 (214 (214
Tata Other Financing Usss (214 (214) (214
Net Changein Fund Balance (189) (190) (159 31
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 202 202 202
Adjugmentsto beginning fund balance (122) (122) (122)
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as Restated 80 80 80
Fund Balance at End of Yeer $ (109 (110 (79 31
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
IN-HOME SUPPORTIVE SERVICESPUBLIC AUTHORTIY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Postive
Orignd Fnd Amounts (Negetive)
Revenues.
I ntergovernmental $ 100 959 859
Other revenue 863 863 3 (860)
Total Revenues 963 962 D
Expenditures
Current:
Public Asssance
SHaiesand benefits 189 454 454
Savicesand supplies 290 %6 8 8
Other charges 57 57
Fixed asts 29
Total Expenditures 508 607 599
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 35 356 363
Net Changein Fund Balance 355 356
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported
Adjustmentsto beginning fund baance (183 (183 (183)
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year, as Restated (183) (183) (183)
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 12 13 18 7
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDUL E
OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Positive
Origind Find Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 228 228 314 86
Licenses, parmits and franchise fees 104 104 50 54
Fines forfaturesand pendties 5 5 19 14
Use of money and property 2,568 2,604 1,018 (1,586)
Intergovernmenta 1,798 1,798 1,392 (406)
Chargesfor services 503 581 3187 2,606
Other revenue 493 1,933 1,496 (437)
Total Revenues 5704 7,253 7476 223
Expenditures.
Current:
Generd Government
Sarvicesand supplies 4,275 2,637 45 2,592
Other charges 1,638 1,637 1
Totd Generd Government 4,275 4,275 1,682 2,593
Public Protection
Sdaries and benfits 11 11
Sarvicesand supplies 2,804 4200 2904 1,296
Other charges 44 40 4
Fixed assts 70 70
Totd Public Protection 2,804 4,325 3,025 1,300
Public Assstance
Sdaries and benefits 3 3 3
Sarvices and supplies 8,118 8,163 1,479 6,684
Other charges 3 5 4 1
Totd Public Assstance 8,124 8,201 1,483 6,718
Debt sarvice
Interest 4,819 4,819 463 4,356
Total Expenditures 20,022 21,620 6,653 14,967
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (14,318) (14,367) 823 15,190
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses):
Trandersin 500 500
Transfers out (125) (125)
Total Other Financing Sour ces (Us) 375 375
Net Changein Fund Balance (14,318 (14,367) 1,198 15,565
Fund Balance at Beginning of Yesr,
asPrevioudy Reported 14,985 14,985 14,985
Adjugmentsto beginning fund baance 4,082 4,082 4,082
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as Retated 19,067 19,067 19,067
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 4,749 4,700 20,265 15,565
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Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are used to account for accumulation of resources for, and payment of, principal and interest on the
County’ s general long-term debt.

RECREATION AND PARK BONDS FUND

This Fund is used to accumulate monies for payment of recreation and park bonds. Financing is provided by specific
property tax levies.

STORM DRAINAGE BONDS FUND

This Fund is used to accumulate monies for payment of storm drainage bonds. Financing is provided by specific
property tax levies.

PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY FUNDS

These Funds are used to accumulate resources for payment of general long-term debt incurred for the various financing
activities of the County of Contra Costa Public Financing Authority.

PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION FUNDS

These Funds are used to accumulate resources for payment of general long-term debt incurred for the various financing
activities of the Contra Costa County Public Facilities Corporation.

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (RDA) FUNDS

These Funds are used to accumulate resources for payment of general long-term debt incurred for the purchase of rea
property within the area of the Redevel opment Agency.

PENSION BOND FUND

This Fund is used to accumulate monies for payment of taxable pension obligation bonds. These bonds were issued to
reduce or extinguish the County's Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL).

ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS FUNDS

These Funds were established to account for the accumulation of monies for payment of Assessment District debt issued
to fund Assessment District capital improvement projects.
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Asds

Cach and investments
Accounts reca vable and accrued revenue
Duefrom other funds

Total Asets
Liabilitiesand Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued lighilities

Dueto other funds
Advance fromother funds

Tota Liabilities
Fund Balances

Resarved for:
Deht sarvice
Unresarved, designated for:
Future projects
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilitiesand Fund Balances

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Recregtion Sorm Public
and Park Dranage Fnancing
Bonds Bonds Authority
$ 21 44,636
8
29 44,636
10215
10215
29 5329
29,092
29 34421
$ 29 44,636
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Public

Fadlities Redevel opment Penson Assesarent
Corporaion Agency Bond Didricts Totd
3536 6,927 5,005 5,088 65,213
93 128 232
2,713 2,713
3,536 7,020 7,846 5,091 68,158
1,001 2 o4 1,297
10215
0 0
1,181 2 204 11,602
3536 5,839 7,844 4,887 27,464
29,092
3,536 5,839 7,844 4,887 56,556
3,536 7,020 7,846 5,091 68,158
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI TURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Recredtion Sorm Public
and Park Drainage Finencing
Bonds Bonds Authority
Revenues
Taxes $ 527 5
Use of money and property 1,005
I ntergovernmenta 9
Other revenue
Total Revenues 536 5 1,005
Expenditures
Current:
Generd Government
Public Assstance 2
Capitd outlay 24.821
Debit service
Principa 445 5 4130
Bond i ssuance cost 112
Interest 84 1 8,689
Total Expenditures 531 6 38,052
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 5 (1) (37,047)
Other Finandng Sour ces (Uses):
Trandersin 13,728
Trandersout (1,248
Prooeads fromissuance of debt 12,650
Tota Other Financing Sour ces (Uses) 25,130
Net Changein Fund Balances 5 (D (11,917)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, asPrevioudy Reported 24 1 42,321
Adjusmentsto beginning fund balances 4,017
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, asRestated 24 1 46,338
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 29 34,421

108



Public

Facilities Redevd opment Penson Assessment

Corporaion Agency Bond Didricts Totd
3,071 6,211 9814
3450 297 920 11 5,783
9
1,282 325 1,607
3450 3,368 2,202 6,647 17,213
192 7 3,580 3781
24,821
2,145 700 15,915 1,687 25,027
412
1,592 2,624 19,354 1,041 33,385
3,929 3,324 35,276 6,308 87,426
(479 44 (33,074 339 (70,213)
349 31,825 45,902
(216) (1,464
12,650
349 31,825 (216) 57,083
(479) 393 (1,249 123 (13125
4,015 5,446 9,056 4754 65,617
37 10 4,064
4,015 5,446 9,093 4,764 69,681
3,536 5,839 7,844 4,887 56,556
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
RECREATION AND PARK BONDSDEBT SERVICE FUND
FORTHE ASCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Fnd Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Postive
Orignd Fnd Armounts (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 529 529 527 @
Intergovernmenta 5 5 9 4
Total Revenues 534 534 536 2
Expenditures.
Current:
Public Asssance 28 28 2 26
Debt service
Principd 445 445 445
Interest A &4 &4
Total Expenditures 557 557 531 26
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (23 (23) 28
Net Changein Fund Balance (2 () 28
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 24 24 24
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 1 1 29 28
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
STORM DRAINAGE BONDS DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiance with
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Postive
COrigind Hnd Amounts (Negtive)
Revenues.
Taxes $ 6 6 5 @
Expenditures:
Dett service
Principa 5 5 5
Interest 1 1 1
Sarvices and supplies 1 1 1
Total Expenditures 7 7 6 1
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures [€)) [€)) @
Net Changein Fund Balance @ @ @
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1 1 1
Fund Balance at End of Year $
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Postive
Origind Fnd Amounts (Neggtive)
Revenues.
Taxes $ 3,107 3,107 3071 (36)
Use of money and property 297 297
Total Revenues 3,107 3,107 3,368 261
Expenditures.
Deht sarvice
Principd 700 700 700
Interest 2407 2407 2,624 (217)
Total Expenditures 3,107 3,107 3,324 (217)
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 4 14
Other Finandng Sour ces:
Trandersin 349 349
Total Other Financing Sources 349 349
Net Changein Fund Balance 393 393
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year 5,446 5,446 5446
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 5,446 5,446 5839 393
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Revenues

Use of noney and property
Other revenue

Total Revenues
Expenditures

Current:
Public Assgance
Debt sarvice
Principd
Interest
Total Expenditures

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PENS ON BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE HSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

Other Finanding Sour ces:
Trandasin

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Changein Fund Balance

Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year,

asPrevioudy Reported

Adjugmentsto beginning fund balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balanceat End of Year

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Acdtud Positive
Origind Fnd Amounts (Negetive)
$ 1,063 1,063 920 (143
1,414 1,282 (132
1,063 2477 2,202 (275)
44 44 7 37
12,406 15,915 15,915
15,163 19,354 19,34
27,613 35,313 35,276 37
(26,550) (32,836) (33074) (238
25,539 31,825 31,825
25,539 31,825 31,825
(1,011) (1,011) (1,249) (238)
9,056 9,056 9,056
37 37 37
9,093 9,093 9,093
$ 8082 8,082 7,844 (238
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Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

CAPITAL PROJECTSFUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition of land or acquisition and
congtruction of major facilities other than those financed in the proprietary fund type.

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (RDA) FUNDS

The Redevelopment Agency was formed for the acquisition of real property and construction of improvements thereon in
the County's unincorporated areas for the purpose of removing or preventing blight.

COUNTY FACILITIESFUNDS

These Funds are used to report improvements to Juvenile Hall facilities and other miscellaneous capital projects.

ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS FUNDS

These Funds were established to account for al the capital improvement projects constructed using Assessment District
funds.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
CAPITAL PROJECTSFUNDS
JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Redevd opment County Assessmant

Agency Fadlities Didricts Totd
Asds
Cash and investments $ 39,711 180 10,028 49919
Accounts recaivable and accrued revenue (net) 1 1
Due fromother funds 515 515
Land hdd for rede 122 122
Total Assts $ 40,349 180 10,028 50,557
Liabilitesand Fund Balances:
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued lighilities $ 131 78 1 210
Dueto other funds 391 391
Advances from other funds 824 824
Total Liabilities 1,346 78 1 1425
Fund balances:
Resarved for:
Encumbrances 37 37
Land hdd for rede 122 122
Unresarved:
Desgnated for capitd projects 33,844 38,844
Undesignated 102 10,027 10,129
Total Fund Balances 39,003 102 10,027 49132
Total Liabilitiesand Fund Balances $ 40,349 180 10,028 50,557
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI TURES AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCES
CAPITAL PROJECTSFUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Redevd opment County Asessment
Agency Fadlities Didricts Totd
Revenues
Taxes $ 28271 2,827
Use of money and property 1,833 2 235 2070
I ntergovernmenta 588 588
Other revenue 27 27
Total Revenues 5,275 2 235 5512
Expenditures
Current:
Gengd governmant
Public protection 78 78
Public essgtance 3,798 3,798
Public ways and fadilities 1
Deht service
Interest 24 24
Tota Expenditures 3,82 78 1 3,901
Excess (Defidiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 1,453 (76) 234 1611
Net Changein Fund Balance 1,453 (76) 234 1611
Fund Balances a Beginning of Yeer,
asPrevioudy Reported 37,428 178 9,774 47,330
Adjustmentsto beginning fund ba ances 122 19 141
Fund Balances a Beginning of Year, asRestated 37,550 178 9,793 47521
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 39,003 102 10,027 49,132
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY CAPITAL PROJECTSFUNDS
FOR THE HSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Fnd Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Positive
Origind FHnd Amounts (Negetive)
Revenues.
Taxes $ 3,246 3,246 2,827 (419
Use of money and property 292 292 1833 1541
I ntergovernmentd 588 588
Other revenue 3,153 3,153 27 (3,126
Total Revenues 6,691 6,691 5,275 (1,416)
Expenditures.
Current:
Public Assgance
SHaies and benefits 8 9 S
Sarvicesand supplies 295 2,95 2,95
Other charges 38,449 38,448 3,798 34,651
Totd Public Assgance 41,402 41,403 3,798 37,605
Dett sarvice
Interest 24 (24)
Total Expenditures 41,402 41,403 3822 37,581
Excess (Defidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (34,711) (34,712 1,453 36,165
Net Changein Fund Balance (34,711) (34,712 1453 36,165
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year,
asPrevioudy Reported 37,428 37,428 37,428
Adjustmentsto beginning fund balance 122 122 122
Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year, as Restated 37,550 37,550 37,550
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 2,839 2,838 39,003 36,165
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COUNTY FACILITIESCAPITAL PROJECTSFUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Vaiancewith
Find Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actud Positive
Origind Fnd Amounts (Negative)
Revenues.
Use of money and property $ 2 2
Total Revenues 2 2
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Protection
Sarvices and supplies 178 178 78 100
Totd Public Protection 178 178 78 100
Total Expenditures 178 178 78 100
Excess (Ddfidency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (178) (178) (76) 102
Net Changein Fund Balance (178 (178) (76) 102
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 178 178 178
Fund Balanceat End of Year $ 102 102
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Nonmajor Governmental Fund

PERMANENT FUND

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not principal, may
be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs. The County’ s permanent fund is included in the
combining financial statements of the nonmajor governmental funds (starting on page 81).

LIBRARY GIFT PERMANENT FUND

This fund is used to account for principal trust amounts received and related interest income. The interest portion of the
fund is used to support the County Libraries.
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Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is to have the costs (expenses, including depreciation and
amortization) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed primarily through
user charges; or where the County has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or
net income is appropriate for capital mai ntenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

AIRPORT FUND

This Fund was established to account for the financial activities of the Buchanan Field and Byron Airport aviation
facilities. Revenues include receipts under rental and lease arrangements involving County airport facilities, and State
and Federd aid.

HOUSING AUTHORITY FUNDS

These Funds are used to account for the financial resources designated for housing and housing assi stance to low income
residents of Contra Costa County.

SHERIFF LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING CENTER FUND

This Fund was established to account for the financial activities of the Sheriff Law Enforcement Training Center. The
Center provides training to law enforcement personnel from the County Sheriff’s Office and other agencies. Revenues
include tuition fees paid by the student or law enforcement agency and State aid.

MAJOR RISK MEDICAL INSURANCE FUND

This Fund accounts for operations of the County's participation in the State's Major Risk Medical |nsurance Program.
The Program is designed to provide health insurance to Californians who are unable to obtain coverage on the open
market. The Contra Costa Health Plan acts as the fiscal intermediary for the State. The County is not at risk for the costs
of services in the Program, which is funded through a combination of subscriber premiums and State funding from
tobacco tax monies.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002*
(In Thousands)
Sheiff Law Magor
Housing Enforcemant Risk Medicd
Airport Authority  Training Center Insurance Totd
AsHs
Current ass4s
Cash and investments $ 1186 12540 13,726
Accounts reca vable and accrued revenue (net) 137 2330 165 540 3172
Inventories 9 9
Duefromother funds 97 97
Notesrecevable 1,659 1,659
Prepaid items and deposits 57 14 191
Totd current asts 1,486 16,663 165 540 18,854
Cepitd asdts
Nondepreciable 9,539 4,702 14,241
Deprecicble, net 17,750 12,879 46 30,675
Total Asts $ 2875 34,244 211 540 63,770
Liabilitiesand Net Assts
Ligbilities
Current ligbilities
Accounts payable and accrued lighilities $ 242 2071 124 4 2441
Accrued interest ! 54
Dueto other funds 205 745 443 1,393
Deferred revenue 7,706 7,706
Current portion of long-term debt 670 37 2 709
Totd current lighilities 1,171 9,814 871 447 12,303
Noncurrent portion of long-termlighilities
Cepitd leese obligdtions 1,546 1,546
Conpensated absences 46 330 15 391
Bonds and notes payadle 734 185 919
Tota noncurrent portion of longtermlichilities 2,326 515 15 2,856
Total Liabilities 3497 10,329 386 447 15,159
Net Assts
Invested in capitd assts, net of related debt 24,345 17,581 46 41,972
Unregtricted 933 6,334 (721) 3 6,639
Total Net Assets 25,278 23915 (675) 93 48,611
Total Liabilitiesand Net Asets $ 28775 34,244 211 540 63,770

* Hous ng Authority Funds reported as of March 31, 2002
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSESAND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRI SE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002*
(In Thousands)

Sheiff Law Magor
Housing Enforcemat  Risk Medica
Airport Authority  TraningCenter  Insurance Totd

Operating Revenues

Chargesfor sarvices $ 3,002 3,536 200 931 7,669
Other revenue 130 Y4 1,074
Total Operating Revenues 3,132 4,480 200 931 8,743
Operating Expenses
Sdariesand enployee benefits 1,015 479 1494
Sarvicesand supplies 824 501 931 2,346
Other charges 279 61,942 32 62,253
Deprediation 1,887 2,952 4,839
Total Operating Expenses 4,005 64,84 1,102 931 70,932
Operding income (10ss) (873 (60,414) (902) (62,189)
Nonoper ating Revenues (Expenses):
Saeand federd grants 130 59,459 242 59,831
[ nvestment income 23 271 29
Interest expense (293 (144) (437)
Tota Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (140) 59,586 242 59,688
LossBefore Tranders (1,013) (828) (660) (2,501)
Trandersout (55) (15) (70)
Changein Net Assets (1,068) (828) (675) (2,571
Net Assetsat Beginning of Year, asPrevioudy Reported 25,367 26,365 93 51,825
Adjustmentsto beginning net assts 979 (1,622) (643)
Net Assetsat Beginning of Year, asRetated 26,346 24,743 93 51,182
Net Asstsat End of Year $ 25278 23915 (675) 93 48,611

*Hous ng Authority Funds reported as of March 31, 2002,
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002*
(In Thousands)

Sheriff Law Magor
Housing Enforcement Risk Medicd
Airport  Authority  Training Center Insurance Totd

Cash Flowsfrom Operating Activities

Ceash rece ved from customers/other funds $ 3013 11,615 35 1,142 15,805

Cash payment to suppliersfor goods and services (1,083) (58,351) (233) (1,465) (61,132

Cash payment to employeesfor services (1,012 (6,195) (432) (7,639
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 918 (52,931) (630) (323) (52,966)
Cash flowsfrom Noncapital Financing Activities:

Sate and federd grants 130 59,459 242 59,831

Transferspaid (55) (15) (70)

Dueto other funds 449 323 772
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital

Financing Activities 75 59,459 676 323 60,533
Cash Flowsfrom Capital and Related

Financing Activities

Acquisition and congtruction of capitd assets (123 (2,048) (46) (2,217)

Interest paid (205) (205)

Lease purchase obligation principa payment (600) (600)

Principa paid on bonds and certificates (60) (60)
Net Cash Usad in Capital and Related

Financing Activities (988) (2,048) (46) (3,082
Cash Flowsfrom I nvesting Activities:

Interest recaived on investments 23 271 2A

[nvestments, net (321) (321)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 23 (50) (27)
Net Increasein Cash and Cash Equivalents 28 4430 4458
Cash and Cash Equivalentsat Beginning of Year 1,158 8,110 9,268
Cash and Cash Equivalentsat End of Year $ 1186 12,540 13,726

Reconciliation of Operating Lossto Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities
Operating Lass $ (873 (60,414) (902) (62,189)
Adjustmentsto Reconcile Operating Lossto
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciaion 1,887 2,952 4,839
Changesin operdting assets and liabilities:
Decrease (incresse) in:

Accounts receivable and accrued revenue (124) (1,487) (165) 211 (1,565)
Inventories 8 8
Due from other funds 5 5
Prepad items and deposits 1 49 50
Incresse (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued lighilities 7 (33) 124 3 101
Employee bendfits payable 3 7 17 91
Due to other funds 10 29%6 (537) (231)
Deferred revenue 5,925 5,925
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ 918 (52,931) (630) (323) (52,966)

Noncash capital financng activities (Airport):
Accrued interest $

Lease discount amortization
Copitd asst adjustment

RIS

* Hous ng Authority Funds reported as of March 31, 2002,
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

SELF-INSURANCE FUNDS

These Funds are established to account for administrative costs and for payments of claims under the various insurance
programs. Revenues are primarily premiums paid by other operating funds and interest on investments. The insurance
programs are:

Employee Dental Insurance

Employee Medical Insurance — Fund terminated as of June 30, 2002
Long-Term Disability Insurance (Management Employees)
Workers Compensation Insurance

e County General

* FireProtection

Automotive Liability Insurance

Public (General) Liability Insurance

State Unemployment Insurance

Medical Liability Insurance

Specia District Property Insurance
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Employee Employee Long-Term
Dentd Medicd Dischility
Insurance Insurance Insurance
AsHts
Cach and investments $ 1,892 1,829
Accounts recaivable and accrued revenue (net)
Due fromother funds 72
Total Asts $ 1,892 72 1,829
Liabilitiesand Equity
Liabilities
Dueto other funds $ 43 72 26
Clamspayade:
Current 472
Noncurrent 425
Total Liabilities 515 72 451
Net Asgts
Unrestricted net assats 1,377 1,378
Total Liabilitiesand Net Assets $ 1,892 72 1,829
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Workers Workers
Conpensation  Compensation Soecid
Insurance Insurance Autormotive Public Sae Medicd Didrict
County FHre Lighility Lighility Unemployment Lighility Property
Gengd Protection Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Tota
33,291 7,062 2,04 28,247 2,352 3,503 635 80,365
1534 126 75 80 1815
73 1674 1 1,820
34,825 7,188 2127 29,9% 2432 3,503 636 84,500
717 133 255 16 13 1275
13434 1313 390 1,987 221 1,262 19,079
38,995 6,425 1515 2,251 6,365 75,976
53,146 7871 1,905 24,493 237 7,640 96,330
(18,321) (683) 22 5,503 2,195 (4,137) 636 (11,830)
34,825 7,188 2127 29,9% 2432 3,503 636 84,500
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE HSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Employee Enployee Long-Term
Dentd Medica Disshility
Insurance Insurance Insurance

Operating Revenues:

Chargesfor savices $ 7,358

Other revenue 72

Total Operating Revenues 7,358 72

Operating Expenses

Savices and supplies 499 104

Bendfit and daimexpense 6,577 A3

Total Operating Expenses 7,076 1,047

Operating Income (L 0ss) 282 72 (1,047)
Nonoper ating Revenues:

Saeand federd grants

I nvestment income 28 64
Income(Loss) Bfore Tranders 310 72 (983)
Trandersin
Trandersout
Changesin Net Assts 310 72 (983)
Net Assetsat Beginning of Year, asPrevioudy Reported 1,067 683 2,361
Adjustmentsto beginning net assts (755)
Net Assstsat Beginning of Year, as Retated 1,067 (72) 2,361
Net Asstsat End of Year $ 1,377 1,378
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Workers Workers

Compensation  Compensation Secid

Insurance Insurance Autonotive Public Sae Medicd Didrict

County Fre Liahility Lighility Unermployment Lighility Property

Gengrd Protection Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Totd

14,233 1,546 547 6,561 02 282 31,429
94 1,036
14,233 1,546 547 6,561 902 94 282 32,465
2,742 295 3 4,397 36 1,275 177 9,618
25,096 3,695 551 5173 542 2 131 42706
27,838 3,990 644 9,570 578 1,273 308 52,324
(13,605) (2444) (Cl) (3,009 324 (309 (26) (19,8%9)
10 10
1,806 267 1,045 50 4 13 3,277
(11,799) (2,167) 97 (1,969 374 (305) (13 (16,572
3,000 3,000
(11,799) (2,167) (97) (1,964 374 2,695 (13 (13572
(6,522) 1,484 319 7467 1821 (6,832 649 2497
(755)
(6,522) 1484 319 7467 1821 (6,832 649 1,742
(18,321) (683) 222 5,503 2195 (4,137) 636 (11,830
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Employee Enmployee Long-Term
Dentd Medicd Disshility
Insurance Insurance Insurance
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customerg/other funds $ 7,358 176

Cash payment to suppliersfor goods and services (7,114) (662) (1,068
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 244 (486) (1,068
Cash Flowsfrom Noncapital Financing Activities

Sate and federd grants

Trandersrecaved

Dueto other funds 72

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities 72
Cash Flowsfrom Investing Activities:

Interest recaived on investments 28 64
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 28 64
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 272 (419 (1,004
Cash and Cash Equivalentsat Beginning of Year 1,620 414 2,833
Cash and Cash Equivalentsat End of Year $ 1,892 1,829
Reconciliation of Operating Incometo Net Cash

Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ 282 72 (1,047
Adjugtmentsto reconcile oper ating income (10ss)

to net cash provided by operating activities

Changesin operating assets and ligbilities:
Decresse (incresse) in:
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 7
Duefrom other funds 27
Incresse (decresss) in:
Accounts payable and accrued lighilities (23
Dueto other funds (38) (662 2
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Adtivities $ 244 (486) (1,068)
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Workers Workers
Compensation  Compensation Soedid
Insurance Insurance Automotive Public Sae Medicd Didtrict
County Fre Liability Liability Unemployment Liability Property
Generd Protection Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Totd
13,643 1,517 510 4,900 896 970 283 30,253
(19,003 (2504 (239 (4,557) (582 (2,243 (328) (38,300)
(5,360) (987) 271 343 314 (1,273 (45) (8,047)
10 10
3,000 3,000
72
10 3,000 3,082
1,806 267 1,045 4 13 3,277
1,806 267 1,045 50 4 13 3,277
(3,554 (710 271 1,388 364 1,731 (32 (1,688)
36,845 7772 1,783 26,859 1,988 1,772 667 82,553
33,291 7,062 2,054 28,247 2,352 3,503 635 80,865
(13,605) (2,444 97 (3,009 324 (309) (26) (19,859)
(590) (29) 13 ® 6 1 (528)
(37 (1,674 (1,684)
9,14 1,422 44 4,983 (956) 15,034
(359) 64 9 30 4 (14) (20) (1,010)
(5,360) (987) 271 343 314 (1,273 (45) (8,047)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS

TAX LOSSES RESERVE

This Fund was established as a reserve for all delinquent secured taxes. It accumulates gains from tax
sales and specified amounts of penalties and interest collected on delinquent secured taxes to cover
possible future losses on the sale of tax-deeded property.

UNAPPORTIONED TAXES
These Funds account for unsecured taxes receivable, delinquent secured taxes, amounts which are
impounded because of disputes or litigation and amounts held pending authority for apportionment.

OTHER AGENCIES

These Funds account for assets held by the County for individuals, private organizations and other
governmental units. These funds include payroll deduction clearing and collections clearing funds.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDICUARY ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Bdance Bdance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
Tax LosesReserve
AsHs
Cach and investments $ 20204 9,068 8,160 21,112
Due from other funds 4,103 5,983 4,103 5,983
Total Assets $ 24,307 15,061 12,263 27,095
Liabilities
Dueto other funds $ 59 63 59 63
Tax |oss guarantess 24,248 10,240 7,456 27,032
Total Liabilities $ 24,307 10,303 7,515 27,095
Unapportioned Taxes
AsHs
Accounts receiveble $ 8,490 73,652 81,176 966
Due from ather funds 4531 6,482 11,012 51
Taxesrecevable 117,045 1,399,192 1,383,764 127,473
Total Assets $ 130,116 1,479,326 1,480,952 128,490
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 26,325 35,347 3,702 28,970
Dueto other funds 27,580 7,323 17,342 17,561
Unapportioned taxes 76,211 1,356,158 1,350,410 81,959
Total Liahilities $ 130,116 1,398,828 1,400,454 128,490
Other Agendes As Restated:
AsHs
Cash and invesments $ 114,976 1,577,905 1,584,402 108,479
Accounts receiveble 21,987 20451 31,657 10,781
Due from ather funds 5,162 17,801 19,200 3,763
Total Assets $ 142,125 1,616,157 1,635,259 123,023
Liabilities
Warrants outstanding $ 34,829 584,625 579,321 40,133
Accounts payable 9,027 651,030 654,506 5,551
Dueto other funds 31411 20529 4221 7,719
Dueto other agenciesand didtricts 66,858 297,584 294,822 69,620
Total Liabilities $ 142,125 1,553,763 1,572,870 123,023
(continued)
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDICUARY ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

TatasAgency Funds

AsHS

Cash and investments
Accountsrecaiveble
Due from other funds
Taxesrecavable

Total Asets
Liabilities
Warrants outstanding
Acoounts payeble
Dueto other funds
Unapportioned taxes
Tax |oss guarantess
Dueto other agenciesand digtricts

Total Lisbilities
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AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Bdance Bdance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
135,180 1,586,973 1,592,562 129,591
30477 94,103 112,833 11,747
13,846 30,266 34,315 9,797
117,045 1,399,192 1,388,764 127,473
296,548 3,110,534 3,128 474 278,608
34,829 584,625 579,321 40,133
35352 636,377 687,208 34521
59,0650 27,915 61,622 25,343
76,211 1,356,158 1,350,410 81,959
24,248 10,240 7,456 27,032
66,858 297,584 294,822 69,620
296,548 2,962,899 2,980,839 278,608
(conduded)






CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

139






COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDUL E OF FUNDING SOURCES

Genera Capital Asas

Land

Buildings and improverments

Buildings and improverments - lease purchases
Equipment

Equipment - lease purchese

Infrastructure

Condruction in progress

Tota Governmental Funds Capital Assts

Investmentsin Capital Asstsfrom:
Generd obligetion bonds
Federd grants
Saegranits
Generd fund
Soecid revenuefunds
Other government agendies
Gfts

Tota Governmental Funds Capital Assts

JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

60,108
313,765
131,974

94,348

8,367
304,094
53,502

966,158

10,240
45,153
79,409
386,134
442,119
1,667
1,436
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Building &
Buildings & Improvements
Improve - Lesse
Function and Activity Totd Land ments Purchases Equipment
Genera Government:
Legidative
and adminigtrative 4 476 476
Finance 1,008 9 849
Counsd 47 47
Personnd 61 61
Elections 1,849 1,849
Communications 4,339 13 3,665
Property management 22,462 1,092 1,694 18,585
Plant acquigtion 461,267 54,396 245,050 130,280 490
Other generd 6,826 5312
Total General Government 498,335 54,396 246,164 131,974 31,334
Public Protection:
Judicd 1,503 1,485
Police protection 13,585 7 874 10,612
Detention and correction 35,536 1,492 30,988 1,320
Hre protection 46,184 2,020 16,862 27,302
Hood contral 149,457 177 24 1,014
Protectiveinspection 2,308 2,207
Other protection 4777 2,606 2,151
Total Public Protection 253,350 3,696 51,354 46,091
Health and Sanitation:
Hedth 2421 6 2,078
Hospitd care 817 141 631
Sanitation 1,006 924 82
Total Health and Sanitation 4,244 141 930 2,791
Public Assstance
Assgance administration 3213 2,984
Aid programs 340 74
Veeaan's svices 7 7
Other assstance 2,944 888 1,126 914
Tota Public Asssance 6,504 888 1,126 3,979
Education:
Library services 7,231 349 5572 1,310
Agriculturd education 6 6
Total Education 7,237 349 5572 1,316
Public Waysand Fadilities:
Public ways 191,632 141 4,285 8,812
Total Public Waysand Fadilities 191,632 141 4,285 8,812
Recreation and Cultural Services
Vetean'smemorid buildings 25 25
Recredtion fadilities 4831 497 4334
Total Recreation and Cultural Services 4,856 497 4334 25
Total General Capital Assets $ 966,158 60,108 313,765 131,974 94,348
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Equipment
Purchases

Infrastructure

Congtruction
in Progress

661
1091

1514

31,051

3,416

31,051

2,092
1,736

101

133,861

14,381

3,967

133,861

14,381

16

511

91

170,233

8,070

91

170,233

8,070

8,367

53,502
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGESBY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE HSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Bdance
Jduly 1, 2001 Badance
Function and Activity (as restated) Additions Deetions Transfers  June 30, 2002
General Gover nment:
Legidative and adminigtrative $ 693 46 (251) (12 476
Finance 1,951 171 (1,119 1,008
Counsd 109 (62) 47
Personnel 122 (61) 61
Elections 1,626 339 (125) 9 1,849
Communications 4,058 423 (142) 4,339
Property management 21,372 2,647 (1,522 (35) 22,462
Plant acquisition 411,185 50,347 (74) (191) 461,267
Promotion 3 3
Other generd 6,24 817 (281) (4) 6,826
Total Genera Government 447,413 54,790 (3,635) (233) 498,335
Public Protection:
Judicid 1,801 334 (632 1,503
Police protection 13,902 1,374 (1,960) 269 13,585
Detention and correction 37,599 50 (2,118) 5 35,536
Fire protection 41,429 6,719 (1,964) 46,184
Food control 149,318 184 (45) 149,457
Protective inspection 2,432 367 (491) 2,308
Other protection 5419 135 (750) (27) 4,777
Tota Public Protection 251,900 9,163 (7,960) 247 253,350
Health and Sanitation:
Hedth 2,715 188 (482) 2421
Cdiforniachildren's services 16 (16)
Hospitd care 949 103 (221) (14) 817
Sanitation 1,010 (4 1,006
Tota Health and Sanitation 4,690 291 (723) (14 4,244
Public Assstance:
Assstance administration 3,279 1,067 (1,233 3,213
Aid programs 167 257 (84) 340
Veeran's services 15 (8 7
COther assistance 3,193 116 (365) 2,944
Tota Public Assistance 6,654 1,440 (1,590) 6,504
Education:
Library services 6,713 635 (117 7,231
Agricultura education 6 6
Total Education 6,719 635 (117) 7,237
Public Waysand Fadilities
Public ways 170,533 21,860 (761) 191,632
Total Public Ways and Fadilities 170,533 21,860 (761) 191,632
Recreation and Cultural Services
Veteran'smemorid buildings 25 25
Recredtion facilities 4,333 498 4,831
Total Recreation and Cultural Services 4,358 498 4,856
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 892,267 88,677 (14,786 966,158
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

GOVERNMENT-WIDE EXPENSESBY FUNCTION
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)
Percentage

Function Amount of Totd
Generd government $ 11554 105%
Public protection 365,757 330
Hedth and sanitation 184,109 16.7
Public assstance 328450 29.8
Education 16,364 15
Public ways and fecilities 56,197 51
Recrestion and culture 793 01

I nterest on debt 36,340 3.3
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
GOVERNMENT-WIDE REVENUES
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Percentage
Program Revenues Amount of Tota
Charges for services $ 250,536 21.4 %
Operating grants and contributions 544,900 46.5
Capital grants and contributions 12,573 11
General Revenues
Taxes 238,684 20.4
Grants/contributions not restricted 77,741 6.6
Investment earnings 27,035 2.3
Other 20,158 1.7
Total Program and General Revenues $ 1,171,627 100.0 %

148



COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
GENERAL COUNTY REVENUESBY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(In Thousands)

Hscd Licensss, Fines

Yexr Parmits& Forfeitures Useof Charges

Ended Franchise and Money ad Inter- for

June 30, Taxes Fess Pendties Propaty  governmentd  Savices Cther Totd

1993 $ 226,565 14,445 6,728 27,280 367,112 92,866 7,693 742,639
194 173,334 12529 12,654 27,953 448668 102545 14,750 792,483
1995 167,185 13332 21,306 30,600 478350 14034 14,923 866,050
1996 179431 14,569 20477 33,903 470211 130087 21,360 870,038
1997 184,805 14,265 17,343 35,457 469257 127,208 25585 873920
1998 179,331 14,194 16,249 42,168 471,208 130468 19,844 873,462
1999 192,915 16,221 17,088 40,649 502908 145210 27,283 2,274
2000 204,383 20,395 19,000 37,956 564,286 169240 35020 1,050,283
2001 296,644 25,749 18,296 43,632 490842 188545 27,166 1,000,874
2002 322,635 35,277 18525 23,764 545724 196588 94,280 1,236,793

NOTE: Indudesdl governmentd fund types.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
GENERAL COUNTY EXPENDITURESBY FUNCTION

LAST TEN ASCAL YEARS
(In Thousands)

Fscd

Year Public Debt

Ended Gengrd Public Hedth & Public Ways & Savice

June 30, Government Protection  Sanitdion  Assdance  Educaion Fadlitiee & Other Totd

1993 % 66,211 226,248 136,933 239,151 11,342 42542 27,068 749,495
194 66,008 229,263 154,556 275,713 9,260 34,743 40,817 810,360
1995 69,828 270,099 157,787 293,24 9,3A4 35,336 80,156 915,84
1996 84,137 257,933 138,243 286,457 12,878 39,536 72,515 891,699
1997 79,195 272,415 132432 272,163 11,439 32,566 65,904 866,114
1998 85,786 266,707 147 867 268,633 11,774 33,071 76,088 889,926
1999 108,963 287,538 157,041 289,570 12,828 45,855 72,385 974,180
2000 101,772 307,260 164,142 302,690 14,216 50,508 84,363 1,024,951
2001 106,380 325,821 161,220 294,317 14,589 54,611 79,084 1,036,022
2002 130,351 378,011 182,164 337,673 16,367 88,830 95,164 1,228,560

NOTE: Indudesdl governmentd fund types. Hedth and Sanitation indudes operating trandfersto the
County Hospitd and HMO Enterprise Funds ($37,187,000 for fiscd year 2001-2002).
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
GENERAL COUNTY REVENUESBY SOURCE -

CONSTANT DOLLARS(1)(2)
LAST TEN FHSCAL YEARS
(In Thousands)

Fscd Licensss, Fines

Year Permits&  Forfdtures Useof Charges

Ended Fanchise and Money ad Inter- For

June 30, Taxes Fees Pendties Propaty  govanmentd  Savices Other Totd

1993 ¢ 156478 9977 4,647 18,841 253548 64,138 5313 512,942
194 117,716 8,506 8,591 18978 304,615 69621 10,014 538,041
1995 111,20 8875 14,183 20,369 318422 93429 9,934 576,502
1996 117,301 9524 13,387 2,164 307,34 8043 139%4 568,777
1997 117,287 9,053 11,007 22503 297,815 80,733 16238 554,636
1998 110,087 8713 9,975 25,886 289,262 80,091 12182 536,196
1999 114,083 9,593 10,105 24,038 297,403 8872 16134 557,228
2000 115,962 11,572 10,780 21,535 320,164 96,023 19870 595,906
2001 159,332 13830 9,827 23435 263638 101,270 14,591 585,923
2002 173,292 18948 9,950 12,764 203116 105590 50,639 664,299

NOTES (1) Indudesdl governmentd fund types

(2) Theinformetion for the years 1993 through 2002 has been adjusted using the average Consumer
Price Index-Urban for each year with abase point of Decenber, 1983, egud to 100.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
GENERAL COUNTY EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION - CONSTANT DOLLARS(1) (2)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(In Thousands)

Fscd

Yexr Public Debt

Ended Gengd Public Hedth & Public Ways & Savice

June 30, Govenmeat  Protection  Sanitdion Assglance Educaion Fadlities & Other Totd

1993 % 45,729 156,259 4,574 165,171 7,833 29,382 18,695 517,643
194 44,815 155654 104,933 187,191 6,287 23,588 27,712 550,180
1995 46,482 179,796 105,034 195,236 6,253 23522 53,357 609,680
1996 55,003 168,620 90,375 187,268 8419 25,846 47,406 582,937
1997 50,261 172,839 84,048 172,729 7,260 20,668 41,826 549,681
1998 52,662 163,724 90,772 164,907 7,228 20,301 46,708 546,302
1999 64,437 170,040 92,869 171,242 7,586 27,117 42 806 576,097
2000 57,743 174,332 93,130 171,739 8,066 28,657 47,866 581,533
2001 57,138 175,003 86,54 158,082 7,836 29,332 R AT7 556,462
2002 70,013 203,035 97,843 181,369 8,791 47,712 51,114 659,877

NOTES (1) Indudesdl governmentd fund types. Hedlth and Sanitation ind udes operating transfers to the County Hospitd and
HMO Enterprise Fundsin congtant dollars ($19,973,000 for fiscd year 2001-2002).
(2) Theinformetion for the years 1993 through 2002 has been adjusted using the average Consumer Price Index - Urban
for each year with abase point of Decamber, 1983, equd to 100.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (1)

LAST TEN HSCAL YEARS
(In Thousands)
Assessd Vdue Net Increase

Fscd

Yexr Asessad

Ended Red Persond Vduedf Taxdble Per-
June 30, Property Property Totd Examptions Property Armount centage

1993 $ 59,800,740 $ 2501057 $ 62301797 $ 908476 61393321 $ 29711 509 %

194 61,824,575 2,685,105 64,509,680 1,081,984 63,427,696 2,034,375 331

1995 63,992,943 2,406,789 66,399,732 1,105,367 65,294,365 1,866,669 2HA

1996 65,949,619 2417,931 68,367,550 1,221,083 67,146,462 1,852,097 234

1997 67,846,683 2,657,824 70,504,507 1,262,407 69,242,100 2,095,638 312

1998 69,194,267 2513679 71,707,946 1,393,145 70,314,801 1,072,701 15

1999 72,525,051 2728990 75,254,041 1,554,486 73,699,555 3,334,754 4381

2000 77,475,617 2,495,049 79,970,666 1,683,078 78,287,583 4,583,033 6.23

2001 83,329,641 2,936,004 86,265,645 1,637,667 84,627,978 6,340,390 810

2002 92,091,316 3,350,098 95,441,414 1,951,214 93,490,200 8,862,222 1047
NOTE:

(1) ArtideXIlA, added to Cdifornia Congtitution by Proposition 13 in 1978, fixed the base for va uation of property
ubject to taxes & the full cash vaue which gppeared on the Assessor's 1975-76 assessmant roll. Theredfter, full
cash vadue can beincreasad: @) to reflect annud inflation up to 2 percent; b) to reflect current merket vaue a
time of ownership change; and ¢) to reflect merket va ue for new condruction.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
GENERAL TAXESLEVIED AND COLLECTED

LAST TEN ASCAL YEARS
FHeed Year

Ended Generd Taxes Generd Taxes

June 30, Levied (1) Collected (2)
1993 $ 613,933,210 $ 613,933,210
194 634,276,960 634,276,960
1995 652,943,650 652,943,650
1996 671,464,620 671,464,620
1997 692,421,000 692,421,000
1998 703,148,010 703,148,010
1999 736,995,550 736,995,550
2000 782,875,880 782,875,880
2001 846,279,780 846,279,780
2002 934,902,000 934,902,000

NOTES (1) General taxesare caculated a 1 percent of total assessed valuelesslocal exemptions
(2 Generd County taxes collected are the same as the amounts levied, because the Courty follows
Cdifornids dternate method of gpportionment (the Tegter Flan). Under the Tegter Flan, dl
amounts levied are goportioned to the County and other taxing agencies regardless of whether
they are collected in the current yeer or not. A Tax Losses Resarve Fund insures losses reaulting
when a property is s0ld for taxes, and the procesds are insuffidient to pay the outstanding
amounts due
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTSLEVIED AND COLLECTED

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS(1)
Fscd Year

Ended Foecid Assessments Soecid Asesarents

June 30, Levied (2) Callected (3)
1995 $ 4,809,648 $ 4,809,648
199%6 3,693,552 3,693,552
1997 3,232,099 323209
1998 2,946,192 2,946,192
1999 3,155,064 3,155,064
2000 3,027,937 3,027,937
2001 3,030,800 3,030,800
2002 2,600,958 2,600,958

NOTES: (1)

@
©)

Daa for this schedule are provided for years in which specid assessmat det with government
commitment has been reported separately in the CAFR. Dataare not available for years prior to fiscd year
1994-1995.

Foedid assessmantsare amounts levied to pay specid assessment debat with government commitment.

Soecia assessments collected are the same as the amounts levied, because the County follows Cdifornias
dternate method of goportionment (the Tegter Flan). Under the Tedter Flan, dl amounts levied are
goportioned to the County and other taxing agencies regardiess of whether they are callected in the current
yeer or not. A Tax Losses Resarve Fund insures | osses resulting when a property is sold for taxes, and the
proceads are inaufficient to pay the outstanding amounts due,
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

PROPERTY TAX RATES(1)
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fscd Yer County- County Locd
Ended wide Soecid Soecid Agency
June 30, Rae Didtricts Didtricts Didricts Schools Cities Totd
1993 1.0000 0011 0071 0345 0153 0192 10772
194 1.0000 0011 .0068 0321 0190 .0143 10733
1995 1.0000 .0010 0071 0314 .0206 0147 1.0748
1996 1.0000 .0010 .0068 .0338 0223 .0153 10792
1997 1.0000 .0010 0064 .0309 0263 .0148 1074
1998 1.0000 .0009 .0063 0304 0297 0142 10815
1999 1.0000 .0008 .0061 0262 0342 .0139 10812
2000 1.0000 .0006 0055 0091 0334 0135 10621
2001 1.0000 .0006 0047 0067 0318 0131 1.0569
2002 1.0000 .0005 0044 0074 0357 0133 10613

NOTE: (1) In June, 1978, Cdifornia voters goproved Propasition 13 which redtricted the taxing power of locd
government agencies. Individud agencies do not establish their own property tax rates, except for voter
goproved indebtedness. Indteed, acountywide rateis levied with the proceeds digtributed to dl agencies
according to formulas specified by the Sae legidature. The countywide rate is 1 percent of full cash
vaue ($1 per $100 of taxable assessed vauation). The rates shown above are percentages of assessd

vauation.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
PROPERTY TAXES

DIRECT AND ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(In Thousands)
FHscd Year County Locd

Ended Specid Specid Redeve opment

June 30, County Didricts Didricts Schoals Cities Agency Totds
1993 $ 155,713 65,974 134,037 278,128 125,246 56,494 815,592
1994 101,541 75,565 143162 335,343 127,425 58,774 841,810
1995 97,074 75,845 147,215 364,439 132,043 58,766 875,382
1996 100,025 78,752 157,323 374,506 136,030 59,137 905,773
1997 102,901 81,617 157,386 383,348 137,713 61,122 924,177
1998 103,519 84,097 169,578 390,822 134,065 62,598 944,679
1999 109,632 79,057 178,329 416,242 139,426 65,433 988,119
2000 115,829 81,995 176,174 444,126 144,964 71,203 1,034,291
2001 123479 90,555 188,040 479,738 154,298 78,553 1,114,663
2002 134411 98,966 213930 535,689 168,551 93,530 1,245,077

NOTE: This schedule showsthe property tax levies by mgor group of taxing agencies.

157



9'6. 850'2€0'22 95 TY6'EE €L'T 9//'195'02 OVT'€LT'/8T'T 2002
60'8L 186'/¥2'vC ZT10°'0S0'TE /ST 0T¥'82.'9T ¥GE'TE8'Z90'T T00Z
el 02.'928'22 Ot'€95'TE 297 8ST'706'ST 998'6/5'T86 0002
6819 692'22€'12 901'858'2€ 9T 6ST'G/E'ST 9TT'/E1'6E6 666T
'es 2€1'80G'6T LT¥'002'L€ V.1 9€/'/¥G'ST €G1'T85'268 866T
Z80% 6ESYST LT ve'2e0'ey 80C €20'/50'8T ¥/6'085'698 /66T
S A 4% T18°0/9'8T 08E'€66'TY A4 1€£2'962'8T 985'6TS 758 9661
699G TT2'60L 172 Tv.'185'ey 162 6.€'0¥9'0 T59'G617'€28 G66T
160L G9G'GeZ' 1€ G65'966'EY 092 90T'259'02 0€8'sEV' 6. 66T
8€29 ZaT'2v0'62 112'€SS'9Y 6T'e ¥02'6€2'7C ¥62'655'09. €66T
/S'€9 €€£'855'9¢ GE8'08L'TY e 166'28.'7C 780'€96'7T. Z66T
6.9/ GT19'€60'7C 12E'VIETE S6C /89'29.'6T ¥2Z1'720'699 T66T
6€'/8 99/'/61'12 Ly1'Tv6've 8r'e OTL'9v.'VT ZT7'1£6'€65 066T
8z'Z8 TGS'SZT'0C 0.¥'09%'72 0SC #9G'/8E'€T 816'2T2'GES 686T
T5°€L 86T'0EY'ST 1¥9'2/0'S2 982 992'SS6'€T G6.'8ST'/8Y 8861
4% 7 206'€6E'LT 96.'S91'€C z8¢C ¥9.'0€€'2T 082'0.5'9ey /86T
TE'S6 6ST'99.'22 1.6'G88'€C ¥6°C /96'G98'TT G8G'€50'E0Y 9861
6116 8775'99T'8T GT/'958'6T 86'C ZS¥'9v9'0T ¥6T'956'9GE G86T
/S'S. €19'0€€¥T /€0'€96'8T 882 66£'9TZ'6 8/5'698'6TE 86T
Z5'.S GT9'8ST'TT 9/G'86€'6T 6 8/G'182'0T T99'/S.'v62 €861
90°TS €85'00.'8 YIS TVO'LT 66°€ T6V'/G5'0T 06T',68'%79¢ Z86T
16'8S 626'€TC'L 6S.'7e'eT €0 688'G6T'L T96'0€9'L€2 1861
99 70T G2/'902'0T €vE'0r0'0T e LTV'T16'Y 615'€28'202 0861
6.'80T 620'2ET 0T ZE0'ETE'S 8L'T SYE'T0S'E TET'Z81'96T 6.6T
9916 986'7T9'TT 9/T'0/2'CT 65T OV8'eV6'S G8T'0S6'€LE 8/6T
1206 2/9'c10'0T 190'29T'TT T 02e'seL'y 608'2€9'TEE 1161
% GL'EL L XARK:] $  2EV'8/9'TT $ % 9T l€2'02T'S $ ozr'seroee $ 9/6T
Soxe | juanbu Ied ocaunt e SIeo A |[e 0} ogaunt ogaunt >>m|_ xXel ‘oc aung
J0 afejusosed pun ankesay 0caunC e sexe | e wenbulpq e wenbulpq Tea A papu3
B Se aAIBs9y S350 Xel Wwenbulpq Eelol ANaT 1UBIIND ANaTUBIIND WD oA esH
Jo afeleded Jo uoiuod el

S3IONINONITIA ANV SIIATT XYL ALYId0dd

V1S0D VH1NOJ 40 ALNNOD

158



COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA (1)

LAST TEN HSCAL YEARS
Fiscd Ratio Of Net
Year Asssd Vdue Gross Deht Service Net Bonded Debit  Net Bonded
Ended of Texable Bonded Monies Bonded ToAssssd  Debt Per
June30, Populaion Property Deht Avalahle Deht Vdue Cqoita
1993 855109 $ 61,393320000 $ 37,650000 $ 3097 $ 37,610,003 0.061 4398
194 868,600 63,427,697,000 374,392,000 1,233,000 373,159,000 0.588 42961
1995 883,390 65,294,365,000 373,161,000 2,616,000 370,545,000 0.567 41946
1996 870,724 67,146,462,000 366,517,000 2,371,000 364,146,000 0542 41821
1997 879,206 69,242,100,000 360,830,000 2,513,000 358,317,000 0517 407.55
1998 900,683 70,314,801,000 352,965,000 2,766,000 350,199,000 0.498 383.81
1999 916,403 73,699,555,000 317,695,000 2,711,000 314,984,000 0427 34372
2000 930,025 78,287,588,000 304,635,000 3,857,000 300,778,000 0.384 32341
2001 972,103 84,627,978,000 299,270,000 10,656,000 288,614,000 0.341 296.90
2002 981,555 93,490,200,000 282,905,000 7,875,000 275,030,000 0.294 280.20

NOTE: (1) Does not indude Public Financing Authority debt, Public Facilites Corporation debt, Redeve opment Agency debat
nor gpecid assessment debt with government commitment.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

New Dwelling Units (1) Congtruction Vduation

Hscd Yer
Ended Sngle Multiple Non- Bank

June 30, Family Famly Residentid Residentiad Depodits (2)
1992 3,279 614 638,714,000 207,099,000 9,102,176,000
1993 3,026 451 590,000,000 183,156,000 11,462,467,000
199 3,682 230 583,734,000 164,684,000 12,804,748,000
1995 3,137 618 619,685,000 190,443,000 13,193,833,000
1996 3,080 450 584,108,000 170,069,000 14,194,988,000
1997 3,105 381 582,793,000 180,794,000 15,210,082,000
1998 3144 999 738,939,000 235,905,000 15,500,256,000
1999 3,909 504 852,256,000 234,752,000 17,746,965,000
2000 3,692 1,071 841,990,000 328,854,000 19,744,740,000
2001 4,144 776 921,370,000 340,959,000 19,042,604,000

Source (1) Economic Sciences Corp: 1991-2001

(@ Federd Depost Insurance Corporation - Bank Deposits have been restated to indude
depastsfromdl inditutions.

Informetion for thefisca year ended June 30, 2002 isnot yet avalable.

NOTE

160



Assessed Vdue of Taxable Proparty

161

Residertia Commerdd Indugtrid Land Totd

$ 37,770532000 $ 7656657000 $ 11,839835000 $ 1105112000 $ 58422,186,000
40,184,960,000 7,655,329,000 12,413,013,000 1,140,017,000 61,393,319,000
42,295,193,000 7,602,074,000 12,357,698,000 1,172,732,000 63,427,697,000
43,971,060,000 7,556,205,000 12,591,768,000 1,175,332,000 65,294,365,000
45,312,034,000 7,448,151,000 13,281,211,000 1,105,065,000 67,146,461,000
46,568,404,000 8,805,645,000 12,775,064,000 1,092,987,000 69,242,100,000
47,836,713,000 9,456,047,000 11,924,385,000 1,097,656,000 70,314,801,000
50,500,004,000 9,865,342,000 12,187,476,000 1,146,733,000 73,699,555,000
54,364,322,000 10,563,204,000 12,026,728,000 1,333,334,000 78,287,588,000
59,629,822,000 11,590,814,000 11,955,053,000 1,452,289,000 84,627,978,000



RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDI TURESFOR GENERAL

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES (2)

LAST TEN HSCAL YEARS
Ratio Of Debt
Fscd Yer Totd SaviceTo
Ended Debt Totd Generd Totd Generd
June 30, Principa Interest Savice Expenditures (1) Expenditures
1993 $ 32000 $ 3800 $ 7083000 $ 749,495,000 .0009
1949 614,000 6,021,000 6,635,000 810,360,000 .0082
1995 1,278,000 22,338,000 23,616,000 915,893,000 .0258
199% 4,000,000 22,435,000 26,435,000 891,699,000 0296
1997 5,703,000 22,242,000 27,945,000 866,114,000 .0323
1998 7,475,000 21,952,000 29,427,000 889,926,000 0331
1999 9,370,000 21,539,000 30,909,000 974,130,000 .0317
2000 11,325,000 20,952,000 32,277,000 1,024,951,000 0315
2001 15,730,000 18,330,000 34,060,000 1,036,022,000 0329
2002 16,365,000 19,439,000 35,804,000 1,228,560,000 .02901
NOTES (1) Indudesdl governmentd fund types

(2) Does not indude Public Financing Authority, Public Fedilities Corporation, Redeve opment
Agency nor Assessmert Digtrict debat.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Assessed Vaue of Taxable Property $ 93,490,200
Debt Limit Five Percent of Assessad Vaue (1) $ 4,674,510
Armount of Delat Applicableto Debt Limit (2)

Totd Bonded Debt 344,005

Less Asssin Debt Sarvice Funds 7,875

Tota Amount of Delat Applicableto Debt Limit 336,130
Legd Debt Margin $ 4,338,330

NOTES (1) Sedtion 29909 of the Cdifornia Government Code limits
Gengrd Ohligation Bond indelatedness to five percent of the
totd assessad vdudtion of dl taxable red and persond
property within the Courty.

(2 Doesnat indude Public Financing Authority, Public Fadilities
Corporation nor Assessment Didrict debt.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

DIRECT GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT:
Contra Costa County Generd Fund Obligations
Contra Costa County Pension Ohligations

TOTAL DIRECT DEBT

OVERLAPPING DEBT:

Contra Costa County Board of Education Cert. of Participeation
Contra Costa County Mosguito Abatement Cart. of Participation
Alameda-Contra Codta Trangt Didtrict Cert. of Participation
East Bay Municipd Water Digtrict and Spedid Didtrict No. 1
Acdanes and Liberty Union High Schodl Didtricts

Martinez Unified Schodl Didtrict

Pittsburg Unified Schodl Didtrict

Lafayette School Didrict

S Ramon Valley Urified School District & Educ. Fadlity Corp.

SRV Unified School Didtrict

Other Schoal Digricts Overlgoping Tax and Assesament Debt
Antioch Unified Schoal District Certificates of Participation
Other Schoal Didtricts Generd Fund Obligations

Cities Ovelgoping Tax and Assessmant Deht

Gity of Concord Generd Fund and Judgment Oblligetions
Gity of Richmond Generd Fund Obligations

Gity of Richmond Pension Obligations

Gity of Antioch Generd Fund Obligetions

City of San Ramon Generd Fund Obligations

Other Cities Generd Fund Obligetions

East Bay Regiond Park Didtrict

Hospitd Authorities

Other Spedid Didtricts Cart. of Participation

Other Specid Didricts Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debit
Community Fadilities Didrict

1915 Act Assesament Bonds (EStimete)

West Contra Cogta Unified Schoadl Didrict

Mt. Diablo Unified School Didtrict

Contra Costa Community College Digtrict

TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT
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Debt Appliceble July 1, 2002 )

Percentege Amount
100.000 334,355,000 @
100.000 281,425,000

615,780,000

100.000 2,720,000
100.000 1,055,000
10.889 2,506,648
49589 + 6,018 5,411,977
100.000 129,142,569
100.000 41,348,920
100.000 28,585,000
100.000 28,200,000
100.000 29,755,000
100.000 62,129,416

.414-100.000 95,287,039
100.000 19,673,575

.140-100.000 44,111,125
100.000 16,154,977
100.000 42,095,000
100.000 51,904,469
100.000 31,360,000
100.000 20,672,996
100.000 22,580,000
100.000 38,120,000

44,549 74,595,073
100.000 2,555,000
100.000 11,340,000
100.000 1,480,000
100.000 266,420,000
100.000 461,352,000
100.000 122,450,000
100.000 69,400,000
100.000 50,000,000

1,772,405,784
(continued)



COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

TOTAL GROSSDIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 2,388,185,784
Less: San Ramon Unified School Dist. Certificates of Participation
(Self-supporting from GIC from Bayerische Landesbank) 8,885,000
East Bay Municipal Utility District (100% Self-Supporting) 2,767,066
TOTAL NET DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT $ 2,376,533,718
2001 - 2002 Assessed Value of Taxable Property $ 93,490,200,000
Less: Redevelopment Increments 8,835,385,357
Adjusted Assessed Valuation $ 84,654,814,643
Population 981,555
Ratio to
Full Cash Per
Value (%) Capita
Direct Debt (Includes County L ease Revenue Obligations) 0.73 $ 627
Total Gross Direct and Overlapping Debt 2.82 2,433
Total Net Direct and Overlapping Debt 281 2,421

(1) Source: The offical statement, County of Contra Costa, California 2002-2003 Tax and Revenue Anticipation
Notes, Series A. Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation
bonds and non-bonded capital lease obligations.

(2)  Excludes the Notes and the $25,440,000 2002 Series B Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds delivered by the
County on September 5, 2002.

(concluded)
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
TEN PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Percent Of Totdl
2001 - 2002 Secured Secured
Assessd Assessd
Taxpayer Typeof Busnes Vduation Vaudion
Chevron USA Petroleum Refining $ 2,140,798,550 2290 %
Equilon Enterprise Petroleum Refining 1,331,376,042 142
Tosco Corporation Petroleum Refining 966,368,816 103
Pecific Bl Utility 704,468,787 0.75
Pacific Gas& Hectric Utility 703,265,721 0.75
Mirant Delta Utility 558,875,128 0.60
GMAC Commerad Red Eqate Financing 413,656,815 0.44
Seeno & Asociates Condruction 366,611,669 0.39
USS Posco Sed Production 333,729,421 0.36
ORECM Escrow Red Eqate Financing 268,001,606 0.29
$ 7,787,152,555 832 %
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA

DEMOGRAPHICS- POPULATION

Date of Spedid
Incor - Censue
Jurigdiction pordion 1960 1970 1975 1980 1990 2000 2002

Artioch 2/2/1872 17,305 28,060 33,215 43559 61,379 84,485 96,735
Brentwood ~ 1/1/1948 2,186 2,648 3,662 4434 7,515 23,090 20641
Clayton 3/18/1964 1,385 1,70 4,325 7,219 11,373 10,978
Concord 2/2/1905 36,208 85,164 U673 1083251 110640 114932 123935
Dawille 7/1/1982 28,675 40,484 43,003
B Carrito 8/20/1917 25437 25,190 22,950 2731 2,634 23,874 23511
Hercules 12/15/1900 310 252 121 5,963 16,554 19,552 20,140
Lafayette 7/22/1968 20,484 19,628 20879 24482 24,360 24411
Martinez 4/1/1876 9,604 16,506 18,702 22582 33,510 37,034 36,715
Moraga 11/13/1974 14,418 15014 14,780 17,006 16,507
Oekley 7/1/1999 26,157
Orinda 7/1/1985 16,704 17,436 17,833
Findle 6/25/1903 6,064 13,266 15337 14,253 17,147 18,657 19,429
Rittsourg 6/22/1903 19,062 20,651 24,347 33034 47,190 54,383 59,910
Fessant Hill  11/14/1961 24,610 25,398 25124 31,115 33,168 33,360
Richmond 8/7/1905 71,584 79,043 70,126 74,676 83,718 U369 101,076
SnPadlo 4/26/1948 19,687 21,461 19,392 19,750 24,709 26,827 30,912
SnRamon 7/1/1983 34,170 45,704 46,237
Wenut Crek  10/19/1914 9,903 39,844 46,034 53,643 60,542 64,710 65,883
Totd Incorporated 217350 378565 409,793 463218 642,733 751,445 826373
Unincorporated 191680 177,240 173036 194034 154548 178580 155182
TOTAL COUNTY 409030 555805 582828 657252 797,281 930025 981555

Source: 1950-1990 U.S. Census, 2001-2002 Cdifornia Sate Department of Finance.
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COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA
MISCELLANEQUSSTATISTICS

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION: Contra Costa Courty islocated near San Franciscointhe Bay Area. It
is bordered by San Francisco Bay and San Pablo Bay on the Wes, by
Sisun Bay and the Sacramento and Sen Joaguin Rivers on the North,
by the ddta country of San Joaquin County on the East and by

Alameda County on the South.
ALTITUDE Sealevd t0 3,349 fet
AREA OF COUNTY: 732.6 quare mlesof land and 73.3 square miles of weter.
COUNTY SEAT: Martinez, Cdifornia

FORM OF GOVERNMENT: Gengrd Law County, governed by afive member Board of Supervisors,
Contra Cogta County is one of the origind 27 counties established when
Cdiforniabecareagaein 1850.

MARCH 2002
PRIMARY ELECTION
REGISTERED VOTERS 478,754
NUMBER VOTING 187,49%
PERCENT VOTING 3.16
ROADS 741.03 miles of County maintained streets and roadsin the unincorporated
aess
COUNTY EMPLOYEES NUMBER OF
AT JUNE 30: PERCENT OF EMPLOYEES
NUMBER OF INCREASE PER THOUSAND
YEAR EMPLOYEES (DECREASE) OF POPULATION
1998 7,215 35 80
1999 7,749 74 85
2000 8321 74 89
2001 8,64 40 89
2002 8,788 15 9.0

*Ful-time equivd ents, authorized and funded. Does not ind ude ermpl oyees of the courts or independent
firedigricts. Source: County Adminigrator.
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